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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of Nanyang Commercial
Bank, Limited (hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Bank hereinafter as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Principal Activities
The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The principal activities of the Bank are provision of
banking and related financial services. The principal activities of the Bank's subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the

Bank” to the Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 37.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately HK$2,670,000.

Shares Issued
No shares were issued by the Bank during the year. Details of the issued shares of the Bank are set out in Note 33 to the Financial

Statements.

Directors
The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Board of Directors

Chairman: Zhang Weidong*
Vice Chairman: Chan Sai Ming (appointed as Vice Chairman effective from 8 January 2021)
Directors: Yang Yingxun*

Liu Jun (appointed effective from 8 January 2021)

Sun Jiandong

Cheng Kin Kong (appointed effective from 12 January 2022)
Lau Hon Chuen*

Lan Hong Tsung, David*

Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna*

Li Shu Pui*

# Non-executive Directors

* Independent Non-executive Directors
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors (continued)

Save for Messrs. Chan Sai Ming, Sun Jiandong and Cheng Kin Kong being also directors of a subsidiary of the Bank, other directors

of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Cheng Zeyu Zhang Zaiming™ Shen Jiamu Ye Yonggang Cheng Zhenghong
Xia Jun Li Xin## Hui Wai Hing Chong Wing Kwan Lam Kin Ho
Lee Hon Chuen* Lee Chung Yan** Lam Pui Yee*™ Leung Ling Tsz, Tiffany”

# resigned effective from 5 November 2021.

## appointed effective from 12 August 2021.

* resigned effective from 6 December 2021.

** appointed effective from 17 November 2021.

*** Acted as a director of a subsidiary of the Bank during the period from 17 November 2021 to 31 January 2022.

A appointed effective from 6 December 2021.

In accordance with Article 81 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, Messrs. Sun Jiandong, Lan Hong Tsung, David and Li Shu Pui

retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 82 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, Mr. Cheng Kin Kong retires at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities
At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any

other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation to the Group's business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Bank or his/her connected entity had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were

entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Bank against any liability
incurred by him/her in relation to the Bank. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit of Directors against liability which may
lawfully be insured by the Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 comply with the requirements set out in the Banking

(Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by Ernst & Young.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Weidong
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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Corporate Governance

The Group strives to achieve high standards of corporate governance and followed CG-1 “Corporate Governance of Locally

Incorporated Authorised Institutions” of the Supervisory Policy Manual issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Board of Directors and the Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business.
As at the end of the year, the Board comprises nine Directors with a variety of different experience and professionalism. Among them,
three are Executive Directors, while the remaining six are Non-executive Directors. Of the six Non-executive Directors, four are
Independent Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and
four board meetings were held in the year with attendance rate of 97% in the year. The Management, led by the Chief Executive, is
responsible for formulating and implementing detailed programmes to effect the approved strategies and policies, and providing
detailed reports on the Group’s performance to the Board on a regular basis to enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities
effectively. The Board currently has set up the following five committees to oversee the major areas of the Group. Details of the

committees are given below:
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Strategy and Development Committee

Strategy and Development Committee is responsible for the consideration and suggestion of the medium and long term development

strategies of the Group. Its main duties include:
- preparation of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies for the Board’s approval;

- examination, proposing, monitoring, review and update of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies and recommend the

Board on necessary adjustments of the strategies;

- examination of the formulation of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies and ensure all the potential plans in a certain

selective scope have been adequately considered;

- monitoring the implementation of medium and long term strategies in accordance with established standards and provide

directive guidance to the Senior Management on the implementation;

- examination of material merge and acquisition plans proposed by the Senior Management and advise the Board on the plans;

and

- giving advice to the Board on the Bank’s major investment, capital expenditure and strategic commitment and monitoring the

implementation of the aforesaid.

During the year, the Strategy and Development Committee has convened two meetings. As at the end of the year, members of the
Strategy and Development Committee included Messrs. Zhang Weidong (Chairman), Chan Sai Ming, Liu Jun* and Sun Jiandong.

Among them, Chan Sai Ming, Liu Jun and Sun Jiandong were Executive Directors of the Bank.

* Appointed as member effective from 8 January 2021.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and the financial reporting process;

- internal control system;

- performance of internal audit functions and internal auditors;

- appointment of external auditor and evaluation of external auditor’s qualifications, independence and performance;

- periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards and legal and regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and
- enhancement of the corporate governance framework.

During the year, the Audit Committee has convened six meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of Audit Committee were
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna (Chairman), Mr. Lan Hong Tsung, David and Mr. Li Shu Pui. All were Independent Non-executive Directors

of the Bank.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the risk management of the Group in the

following areas:
- formulation/review of the risk management framework and risk management strategy of the Group;

- oversight of all risk profile of the Group, and identification, assessment and management of material risks faced and foreseen by

the Group;
- oversight of the subsidiaries’ risk management, internal control and all risk profile which have impact on the Group;

- review, oversight and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management policies, procedures, system

framework, risk management systems, infrastructure, resources and internal control;
- review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Group and monitoring of the implementation of the aforesaid,;

- assessment on the remuneration system which should align with the risk culture and risk appetite from the risk management point

of view; and

- monitoring the Group’s sustainability-related risk management, and employing effective strategy, control and mitigation measures

to climate change.

During the year, the Risk Management Committee has convened five meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of the Risk
Management Committee were Mr. Li Shu Pui (Chairman), Mr. Yang Yingxun, Mr. Chan Sai Ming*, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen* and Ms. Chiu
Lai Kuen, Susanna. Among them, Mr. Chan Sai Ming was Executive Director of the Bank; Mr. Yang Yingxun was Non-executive

Director; Mr. Lau Hon Chuen, Mr. Li Shu Pui and Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna were Independent Non-executive Directors.

* Appointed as member effective from 8 January 2021.

Connected Transaction Committee

The Connected Transaction Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of connected transaction of the Bank in

the following areas:
- review and approve the Bank's connected transaction policy;

- regularly receives connected transactions information and fully understands the management of connected transactions of the

Bank and gives guidance; and

- in accordance with the provisions of laws and administrative regulations and fair and equitable business principles, timely approve

the bank’s major connected transactions.

During the year, the Connected Transaction Committee has convened four meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of the
Connected Transaction Committee were Messrs. Lau Hon Chuen (Chairman), Chan Sai Ming, Liu Jun* and Lan Hong Tsung, David.
All were Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan Hong Tsung, David were Independent Non-executive

Directors.

* Appointed as member effective from 8 January 2021.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group in, among others,

the following areas:

human resources, remuneration strategy and incentive framework of the Group;
monitor the culture-related matters of the Group;

selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and certain senior executives as designated by the Board from

time to time (defined as “Senior Management”);

structure, size and composition of the board of directors and committees shall be governed by the principle of diversity of board
members (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, geographical location,

professional experience, skills and knowledge etc.) of the Board and Board Committees;
remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior Management and Key Personnel;
effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees; and

training and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior Management.

Key tasks performed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2021 included the approval, review and proposal to the

Board on the following according to its responsibilities and authorities:

formulation, review and amendment on major human resources and remuneration policies, including the review of the “Directors’

Remuneration Policy” etc.;

the total resources for 2020 variable remuneration pool, 2021 fixed remuneration review;

performance appraisal results of the Senior Management and Key Personnel for year 2020;

proposal on staff bonus for year 2020 of the Senior Management and Key Personnel;

review of the Mandate, Working Rules and Standing Agenda of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

review of Directors’ Independency Policy;

election of Directors for 2021;

Directors’ independency report and performance assessment report for 2020;

self-evaluation report of the Board and Board Committees for 2020;

consideration of the matters relating to the adjustment and appointment of the Directors and Board Committee members of the
Group;

consideration of the appointment, resignation, promotion and related remuneration matters of Senior Management and Key

Personnel; and

2020 Independent Review Report on Compliance of Guildeline on a Sound Remeuneration System.

During the year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has convened two meetings. As at the end of the year, the members

of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were Mr. Lan Hong Tsung, David (Chairman), Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Yang

Yingxun. All were Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lan Hong Tsung, David and Mr. Lau Hon Chuen were

Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration

management”. It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to encourage staff to enhance their

performance, and at the same time, to strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with the broad principles set out in the HKMA'’s “Guideline on

a Sound Remuneration System” and applicable to Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited and all of its subsidiaries.

“Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the HKMA'’s

“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”:

» “Senior Management”: The senior executives directly managed by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-
wide strategy or material business lines, including Chief Executive, Executive Directors, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief

Officers, other members of Management,, Board Secretary and General Manager of Audit Department.

» “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities involve the assumption of material risk which may have
significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material business lines, heads of major

subsidiaries, head of trading, as well as heads of risk control functions.

Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfill the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk management within the framework of the Remuneration
Policy of the Group, Human Resources Department is responsible for proposing the Remuneration Policy of the Group and will
seek consultation of the risk control units including risk management, financial management and compliance if necessary, in
order to balance the needs for staff motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The proposed
Remuneration Policy will be submitted to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the Board
of Directors for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors will seek opinions from
other Board Committees (e.g. Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary under the

circumstances.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

® Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

1. Performance Management Mechanism

The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism to formalise the performance management at the levels
of the Group, units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be cascaded down under the framework of balanced
scorecard whereby the performance of the Senior Management and different units (including business units, risk control units
and other units) would be assessed from the perspectives of financial, building blocks/key tasks, risk management and
compliance. For individual staff at different levels, annual targets of the Group will be tied to their job requirements through
the performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals will be appraised on their achievement against targets,
their contribution towards performance of their units and fulfilment of risk management duties and compliance and adherence
to the Group’s corporate culture, etc. Not only is target accomplishment taken into account, but also the values-based
behaviours and sufficient risk management during the course of work, ensuring prudent operation and sustainable

development of the Group,

2. Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk into practice, based on the risk adjustment method
of the Group, the key risk modifiers of the bank have been incorporated into the performance management mechanism of
the Group. Risk adjustment focuses on major issues such as risk compliance, internal control audit, risk management, liability
and liquidity management. The size of the variable remuneration pool of the Bank is subject to the risk adjusted performance
results approved by the Board and is subject to its discretion. This method ensures the Bank to decide the Bank’s variable
remuneration pool after considering risk exposures and changes and to maintain effective risk management through the

remuneration mechanism.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)
®  Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

3. Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and “variable remuneration”. The proportion of the fixed and
variable remuneration for individual staff members shall strike a balance depending on job grades, roles, responsibilities and
functions of the staff. In general, the higher the job grades and/or the greater the responsibilities, the higher will be the
proportion of variable remuneration so as to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk management and
sound long-term financial stability. Fixed remuneration can be in the form of cash or in other forms, such as benefits in kind;

while variable remuneration will be granted to staff in the form of cash.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors
including the remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will determine the remuneration based on
the affordability of the Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As mentioned above,

performance assessment criteria include quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-financial indicators.

According to the Bank Bonus Funding Policy, the size of the variable remuneration pool of the Bank is determined by the
Board on the basis of the financial performance of the Bank and the achievement of non-financial strategic business targets
under the long-term development of the Bank. Thorough consideration is also made to the risk factors in the determination
process. The size of the pool is subject to the Board’s approval and the Board can make discretionary adjustment to it if
deemed appropriate under prevailing circumstances. When the Bank’s performance is relatively weak, no variable

remuneration will be paid out that year in principle. However, the Board reserves the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the
risk-adjusted performance of the units, and that of each individual staff. The performance and remuneration arrangement of
risk control personnel are determined by the achievement of their core job responsibilities, independent from the business
they oversee; for front-line risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting and performance evaluation is applied to ensure
the suitability of performance-based remuneration. Within the acceptable risk level of the Group, the better the performance

of the unit and the individual staff, the higher will be the variable remuneration for the individual staff.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

®  Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

4. Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value
creation of the Group

To realize the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risks and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required
to be deferred in cash if prescribed requirement is met. The higher amount of the variable remuneration granted to the staff,

the higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral period lasts for three years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration will be determined by the Board of Diretors by considering factors such as
annual financial performance and the occurrence of material risk accidents to determine whether the vesting of the deferred
variable remuneration met at the bank level. When the vesting of the deferred variable remuneration has met the prescribed
requirements of both the bank and and individual levels, the deferred variable remuneration would be vested following the
corresponding schedule. However, if a staff is found to have committed fraud, or any financial or non-financial factors used
in performance measurement or variable pay determination are later proven to have been manifestly worse than originally
understood in a particular year, or individual behaviour / management style pose negative impacts to the business unit and
even the Group, including but not limited to improper or inadequate risk management, etc., the unvested portion of the

deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff would be forfeited.
5. Annual Review of Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review with reference to regulatory requirements, market

conditions, organizational structure and risk management requirements, etc.

® Disclosure on remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the

HKMA to disclosure information in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.
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Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
ﬁ* Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 37 to 273, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
ﬁ* Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of loans and advances to customers

Refer to significant accounting policies in Note 2.14, = We obtained an understanding of the Group’s
critical accounting estimates and judgements in @ credit management policies and practices. We
applying accounting policies in Note 3.1, and | evaluated the Group’s impairment methodology,
disclosures on credit risk and loan impairment : including the management judgment over portfolio
allowances in Note 4.1 and Note 22 to the financial | segmentation, the criteria of significant increase in
statements. credit risk, and the measurement approach for
expected credit losses.

The Group has adopted a forward-looking expected
loss impairment model to estimate the expected | We tested the design and operating effectiveness
credit losses (“ECLSs”) on its advances to customers. : of the key controls over credit assessment; loan
The assessment of credit risk and the measurement | classification; stage classification; and calculation
of ECLs are required to be based on unbiased and | of impairment allowance processes. Our control
probability-weighted  possible  outcomes and : testing on the loan impairment processes included
reasonable and supportable information at the | an evaluation of the governance over forward-
reporting date about past events, current conditions | looking economic scenarios. We also tested the
and forecasts of future economic conditions. | system interfacing of inputs or other data sources
Significant management judgement and estimation | such as internal loan grading and probability of
are involved in developing and using models and the | default.

selection of inputs into the calculation of ECLs,
including: We adopted a risk-based sampling approach for
our loan review procedures. We selected samples
1) segmentation of financial assets according to | based on the characteristics of individual items,

credit risk characteristics; considering the industry (including loans granted to
2) estimation of the probability of default, loss given | Mainland property developers), the geographic
default, exposure at default; location of the operations of the borrower, internal
3) identification of criteria for determining : loan grading and past due history throughout the
significant increases in credit risk; and year. We formed an independent view on the loan

4) selection and estimation of macroeconomic | staging through reviewing the borrowers’
factor forecasts; and the probability weightings of | information  focusing on  their financial
forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios. performance, expected cash flows, valuation of
collaterals and other available information.

For the expected credit loss allowance as at 31
December 2021, we performed testing of the data
quality by sample checking to the data source and
re-computed management’s calculation of the
impairment allowance. Also, we involved our
inhouse specialists in assessing management’s
consideration of forward-looking information,
including macroeconomic factor forecasts and
probability-weighted economic scenarios by
comparing to market forecasts from external data
providers.
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Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
ﬁ* Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued) How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)
Impairment assessment of loans and advances to customers (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, gross advances to @ For loans and advances classified as Stage 3, we
customers amounted to HK$295,563 million, ' re-calculated the impairment allowance by
representing 55.11% of total assets; and the | reviewing inputs such as expected cash flows and
impairment allowance for advances to customers : valuation of collateral on a sample basis. For each
amounted to HK$4,013 million, representing 93.39% sample selected, we also assessed the
of the total impairment allowance for financial | reasonableness of expected cash flows and
instruments. reviewed the collateral value used where
applicable.

Because of the significance of the impairment
allowance recorded by the Group and the | In connection with the COVID-19 pandemic, we
management judgements and estimation involved, | expanded our loan review samples’ selection
the impairment assessment of loans and advances to | criteria. We assessed the loan classification and
customers is considered a key audit matter. loan staging taking into account the additional risk
control measures implemented by management.
Also, we evaluated the forward-looking
macroeconomic factor forecasts and probability-
weighted economic scenarios adopted by
management, considering the uncertainties in
economic conditions due to COVID-19.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key controls related to
credit risk disclosures. We also assessed the
completeness of the credit risk disclosures against
the requirements of HKFRSs.

Valuation of financial instruments

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in | We evaluated and tested the design and operating
Note 2.12, critical accounting estimates and effectiveness of the key controls related to the
valuation of financial instruments, including
independent price verification, review and
approval.

judgements in applying accounting policies in Note
3.2, and disclosures on fair values of financial
instruments in Notes 5.1 and 5.2 to the financial
statements. We obtained understanding and evaluated the
Group’s policies on leveling of financial instruments

The Group has applied valuation techniques to Measured at fair value in the fair value hierarchy.
determine the fair value of financial instruments that = W€ assessed the leveling classification by referring

not ted in active markets. Th luati to the valuation methodology adopted, assumption
are _0 quote '_ ac '_Ve o arkets. These va ga on and inputs used for the financial instruments on a
techniques require significant observable inputs sample basis.

other than quoted prices and significant
unobservable inputs, involving management using
subjective judgments and assumptions. With different
valuation techniques and assumptions applied, the
valuation results can vary significantly.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

Valuation of financial instruments (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities measured at fair value
amounted to HK$165,273 million and HK$7,230
million, respectively, representing 30.82% and 1.54%
of total assets and total liabilities respectively.
Financial instruments which had significant
observable inputs other than quoted prices in the
valuation were categorised within level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy. Financial instruments which had
significant unobservable inputs in the valuation were
categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
A higher degree of estimation uncertainty was
involved in valuation of financial instruments
categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s financial
assets measured at fair value which were
categorised within level 2 and level 3 amounted to
HK$144,358 million and HK$18,989 million,
respectively. The Group’s financial liabilities
measured at fair value which were categorised within
level 2 amounted to HK7,133 million.

Because of the significance of the financial
instruments recorded by the Group and the
management judgements and estimates involved in
the valuation, valuation of financial instruments is
considered a key audit matter.

On a sample basis, we selected financial
instruments that were classified as level 2 in the fair
value hierarchy to evaluate their valuation. We
checked the parameters used in each valuation
against observable market data. For financial
instruments where the fair value was determined
based upon broker quotes, we compared the
executable quotes observed from the market
against the inputs used by management.

With the assistance of our inhouse valuation
specialists, we focused on the valuation
methodologies and assumptions used in valuation
of financial instruments that were classified as level
3 in the fair value hierarchy. For observable inputs,
we compared against independent sources and
externally available market data. For unobservable
inputs, we performed comparative analysis for
individually significant items, such as using the
discount rate referenced from similar transactions
to evaluate the reasonableness of the
assumptions. On a sample basis, we also re-
performed valuations to evaluate valuation
techniques, assumptions and estimates adopted
by the Group in the discounted cash flow models,
which are commonly used in the market.

We also assessed the completeness of the fair
value measurement disclosures against the
requirements of HKFRSs.

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Huen Chun Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2022
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SEEIESHE Consolidated Income Statement
FFeE:
BE12 H 31 HilHEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2021 2020
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FIEWA Interest income 11,720,933 12,499,239
FIESZH Interest expense (5,395,517) (6,130,752)
FRIEWA Net interest income 6 6,325,416 6,368,487
PR & Fe A< A Fee and commission income 1,808,783 1,707,266
AR E R e Fee and commission expense (93,239) (87,810)
R E EEEIA Net fee and commission income 7 1,715,544 1,619,456
TR G S Net trading gain 8 310,889 80,867
DA lEE M bat AfRLE 2 Rl T Net gain on financial instruments at fair value
Holes through profit or loss 61,759 435,846
HAeRlEE 2R e Net gain on other financial assets 9 153,292 249,769
HAtr &= A Other operating income 10 22,515 18,588
FERUREXEFERTZ BEBUA Net operating income before impairment
allowances 8,589,415 8,773,013
NERER L R Net charge of impairment allowances 11 (1,499,269) (1,359,147)
FREEBULA Net operating income 7,090,146 7,413,866
BT Operating expenses 12 (3,340,265) (3,184,611)
=gyl Operating profit 3,749,881 4,229,255
BN e E TSR Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 13 - (2,950)
& BV - BEM RER Net loss from disposal/revaluation of
TFESTE properties, plant and equipment 14 (7,831) (7,899)
[ETeEnpavall Profit before taxation 3,742,050 4,218,406
FRIA Taxation 15 (510,963) (403,136)
ERERSH Profit for the year 3,231,087 3,815,270
J:2350 Dividends 16 - -

545 & 273 H B AL A% The notes on pages 45 to 273 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
R Z AR IY -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2020
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Profit for the year 3,231,087 3.815.270

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:

Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

Change in fair value of equity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive

income (4,176) 22,946
Premises:

Revaluation of premises 67,323 (184,028)
Deferred tax 3,306 46,489
70,629 (137,539)

Defined benefit plan:
Actuarial gain/(losses) on remeasurement 3.930 (21,720)
Deferred tax (648) 3.584
3,282 (18,136)
69,735 (132,729)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:

Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Change in fair value of debt instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive

income 166,943 247,506
Changes in allowance for expected credit
losses 39,049 13,352

Release upon disposal of debt instruments

at fair value through other comprehensive

income reclassified to income statement (165,857) (261,805)
Amortisation with respect to debt

instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income transferred to at

amortised cost reclassified to income

statement 3,353 9,524
Deferred tax (27,399) 30,167
16,089 38,744
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December

Change in fair value of hedging instruments
under net investment hedges
Currency translation difference

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

2021 2020
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(60,921) (132,309)
516,950 1,113,091
472,118 1,019,526
541,853 886,797
3,772,940 4,702,067

545 & 273 H B AGE S The notes on pages 45 to 273 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

T Z BB
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Advances and other accounts

Financial investments

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

40

(5
Notes 2021 2020
AT AT T

HK$°000 HK$'000

19 64,703,312 58,173,310
19 2,684,141 555,979
20 27,022,570 22,913,313
21 834,964 1,031,063
22 292,037,365 277,085,133
23 138,007,929 132,889,241
24 327,610 341,080
25 8,759,766 8,220,738
31 352,791 430,257
26 1,600,552 4,058,047
536,331,000 505,698,161
21,653,972 33,064,316

27 6,415,312 6,650,987
21 814,670 1,882,953
28 383,781,386 351,629,928
29 31,755,227 24,014,435
30 19,022,499 18,724,809
289,842 421,732

31 812,882 864,890
32 5,451,286 5,416,390
469,997,076 442,670,440
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SCreEEAER () Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

ffeE
W12 H 31 H As at 31 December Notes 2021 2020
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
[N EQUITY
(EZN Share capital 33 3,144,517 3,144,517
fhtE Reserves 53,874,517 50,568,314
e N e iR - N Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 57,019,034 53,712,831
HHNEAT A Additional equity instruments 34 9,314,890 9,314,890
BEARUEEE Total equity 66,333,924 63,027,721
BEfE ARG Total liabilities and equity 536,331,000 505,698,161

% 45 £ 273 H @ A% &% The notes on pages 45 to 273 an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
e AR -

KEREGH 20224 3 H 24 Himi#®  Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2022 and signed on behalf of the Board by:
AN A ERREE

BRATEH Chan Sai Ming 285 Liu Jun
#HHE Director HE Director
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STEHERBENR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

{etiffi
Reserves
VAVINIER
FEbat AH A2
HW G A
SR Reserve for
HYINEATH EECRR =1 fair value
%N Additional  EAEEHE Premises through other [a=gr i MRk HFEEF
Share equity Capital revaluation comprehensive Regulatory Translation Retained 4
capital instruments reserve reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
BT BT BT BT T BT T JBHETT BT BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
202041 H1 H At 1 January 2020 3,144,517 9,314,890 605 6,497,373 416,618 2,694,377 (396,440) 37,118,852 58,790,792
aRigingll] Profit for the year - - - - - - - 3815270 3,815,270
HAr s Other comprehensive
income:
FE Premises - - - (137,539) - - - - (137,539)
FLUEMZSEFET#E 2 Actuarial losses on
HEEEE defined benefit plan - - - - - - - (18,136) (18,136)
NfEE(EsT AHEAM  Financial instruments at
ZHUL EE 2 BT fair value through
=1 other
comprehensive
income - - - - 61,690 - - - 61,690
G NESR T, Change in fair value of
BZAnEEE hedging instruments
under net
investment hedges - - - - - - (132,309) - (132,309)
Bl Currency translation
difference - - - 21,125 16,565 - 1,075,401 - 1,113,091
AR Total comprehensive
income - - - (116,414) 78,255 - 943,092 3,797,134 4,702,067
LHAEANE AR T HZEAE  Distribution payment for
additional equity
instruments - (465,138) - - - - - - (465,138)
R /(2 EE A Transfer from/(to) retained
eamings - 465,138 - - - (240,898) - (224,240) -
720204212 A 31 H At 31 December 2020 3,144,517 9,314,890 605 6,380,959 494,873 2,453,479 546,652 40,691,746 63,027,721
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SEERBER (&)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

G
Reserves
BRE
SRR AR
THBES
EiE Reserve for
BNEATIR AR fair value
Az Additional B Premises  through other BB BERE B
Share equity Capital revaluation comprehensive Regulatory  Translation Retained KRst
capital _instruments reserve reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
BT BT EWTT BT BWTT BWTT b b BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
w2211 818 At 1 January 2021 3,144,517 9,314,890 605 6,380,959 494,873 2,453,479 546,652 40,691,746 63,027,721
SEEERSF Profit for the year - - - - - - - 3,231,087 3,231,087
HA2mEmas - Other comprehensive
income:
B Premises - - - 70,629 - - - - 70,629
FEFZSEFETEZ  Actuarial gains on
HEALG defined benefit
plan - - - - - - - 3,282 3,282
AnfE#{bst A,  Financial instruments
ZEBREZ ST at fair value
B through other
comprehensive
income - - - - 11,913 - - - 11,913
FRTEEETEET Change in fair value
Bz AnE®(t of hedging
instruments under
net investment
hedges - - - - - - (60,921) - (60,921)
BRI Currency translation
difference - - - 10,103 (83) - 506,930 - 516,950
SHEBEAEEE Total comprehensive
income - - - 80,732 11,830 - 446,009 3,234,369 3,772,940
S {TEEINEA T EER  Distribution payment
for additional equity
instruments - (466,737) - - - - - - (466,737)
HiREHERT Transfer from retained
earnings - 466,737 - - - 182,565 - (649,302) -
2021412531 H  At31December 2021 3,144,517 _ 9,314,890 605 _ 6,461,691 506,703 _ 2,636,044 992,661 _ 43,276,813 _ 66,333,924

* PREFEGRIRHUREAE RS - e

oy A7 B R 2B B A R (R SR AT — AU or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised.

I CEAEARAGEI S I TR )

SRS * In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses

% 45 & 273 H L EALE ST The notes on pages 45 to 273 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

ez AR -
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GCEHERESR Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FFeE:
BE12 H 31 HikHEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2021 2020
AT AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
RERBHESRE Cash flows from operating activities
IR RIS S22 R A Operating cash inflow before taxation 35(a) 188,278 1,071,347
SRR Hong Kong profits tax paid (441,134) (793,029)
AT ISR Overseas profits tax paid (190,053) (40,623)
KBRS (FE) /#KASHE Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating
activities (442,909) 237,695
BB ERE Cash flows from investing activities
JEAWISE ~ 23 RLasetis Purchase of properties, plant and equipment 25 (351,182) (144,978)
HEYISE - 50 R e R EEIE Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 1,034 320
HEEE RS IR Net cash outflow from investing activities (350,148) (144,658)
REEBZHERE Cash flows from financing activities
SEITEREE 5 M AFAGE Issue of debt securities and certificates of
deposit 7,740,792 8,543,319
TS TIRE R BN A Cost paid for issuance of subordinated
liabilities - (168)
A TEEINE BHEE Distribution payment for additional equity
instruments (466,737) (465,138)
T EEEER Distribution payment for subordinated
liabilities (206,870) (206,187)
MTHEAE Payment of lease liabilities (232,940) (267,165)
BEEB SRR Net cash inflow from financing activities 6,834,245 7,604,661
4 K E IR 4 TE H i Increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,041,188 7,697,698
N1 B 1 HZ2RS REERSTEH Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 49,739,227 41,173,772
[ERGEEIEIN S R EERESTEEHY Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
R cash equivalents 604,470 867,757
#12 B 31 HZHE&REFEHSIEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 35(b) 56,384,885 49,739,227

5 45 2 273 H 2B ALEEHTS  The notes on pages 45 to 273 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
e 2 AR oy
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R SRR M= Notes to the Financial Statements
1. FEHEE 1. Principal activities

FAEREEIRIT AR A TN E & Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong (hereinafter as the

sEEeIr CTRE TARSRTT ) K “Bank”) and its subsidiaries were incorporated in Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with the

HIff @A BN & A LT8R Bank hereinafter as the “Group”). The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong
(DU HEREAIRITL R " A% Kong Banking Ordinance.

D AT RIS R T

IRBIFTR E SR F] 2 B hRgRAT -

RERIT F B HRIT S AHRE =2 The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking and related financial services.
B Rl - AR T Z B A EIN The principal activities of the Bank’s subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of
FEBERHEGA M8k — ARIT the Bank”. The address of the Bank’s registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
M AT ) A - AERITZ AERE Kong.

i 3t 41k Ry 7 A op PR R 2 o

151 5% -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certificated Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are carried at
fair value or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Repossessed assets are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts or fair values
less costs to sell as further explained in Notes 2.23.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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MBHRFBHE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FESHEE () 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 4E8UEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) 2021 1H1H (@) Amendments that are relevant to the Group and initially adopted for the first
AN gEEY time for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2021
KAz EALEM
RREYEST
REARE R Z SR
Applicable for
BT A& financial years
Amendments Content beginning on/after
TRV 9 5% - FhgsE RN TSR 2021413 1H
RIZE 39 5% - FABEM B H S AR 7
SR~ EBV B AERISE 4 5 B
B A 16 5F (KK(EET)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 1 January 2021
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
TRV SRS 16 57 (4EaT) THE 2021 F4H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Leases 1 April 2021
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) }r20214E1 5 1 HE

(&) Amendments that are relevant to the Group and initially adopted for the first
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time for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2021 (continued)

« Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, “Interest

Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2”. The amendments address issues that might
affect financial reporting when an entity replaces the old interest rate benchmark
with an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the IBOR Reform. The
amendments complement those issued in 2019 and relate to:

- changes to contractual cash flows — a company will not have to derecognise or
adjust the carrying amount of financial instruments for changes required by the
reform, but will instead update the effective interest rate to reflect the change to the
alternative benchmark rate;

- hedge accounting — a company will not have to discontinue its hedge accounting
solely because it makes changes required by the reform, if the hedge meets other
hedge accounting criteria; furthermore, if an entity reasonably expects that an
alternative benchmark rate will be separately identifiable within a period of 24
months, it can designate the alternative reference rate as a non-contractually
specified risk component even if it is not separately identifiable at the designation
date; and
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MgERNEE (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. TEeEEEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) ¥2021 41 H 1 HiE (a) Amendments that are relevant to the Group and initially adopted for the first

BN ETEEERX time for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2021 (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 GEEERE (8

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EfEMEA R EAERN

(b) Amendments and interpretation issued that are relevant to the Group but not

B RaE e R yet mandatorily effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021
R 2021 FEHERTERAN

ZIEET R

rEsEMm Z BiT & The following amendments and interpretation have been issued and are mandatorily

st 2022 421 1
RFEAVE: kL=

effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2022:

SHEEAGTRAIMEERY -

= P

Applicable for
Ba]/ g AE financial years
Amendments/interpretation Content beginning on/after
RN B SRS 3 5% (KE5T) ESEZRS % 202241 H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022

AEETEAE 1 gk (8YEET) RENEIER BN &I 2023415 1H

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Current or Non-current liabilities 1 January 2023
B 5 5% (2020) MBHRERY - BaFREER A E I EERA 20231 H1H

HK Int 5 (2020)

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

1 January 2023

AEEEREE 198 R & B B AR
f’E%EE[ %258 (&fgE])
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

BRI R

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

2023 1H1H

1 January 2023

FaEEgHEAE 8 5f (K4E3T) FatlEtiE 2023 1H1H
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
EoBEsEaE 12 98 (48T B BRI 5 A (Y AR A (A R A A 20231 H1H

Amendments to HKAS 12

Deferred Tax related to Assets and L|ab|||t|es arising from a
Single Transaction

1 January 2023
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 EREE (8D

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) T4 A L FH B

(b) Amendments and interpretation issued that are relevant to the Group but not

{E R E N K yet mandatorily effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021
R 2021 AFERFIEAR (continued)

ZEEThER (8D

TR HREAERIE 3 « Amendments to HKFRS 3, “Reference to the Conceptual Framework”. The
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amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in 2018. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its requirement for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability, that for some types of liabilities
and contingent liabilities, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should instead refer to HKAS
37. The exception has been added to avoid an unintended consequence of updating
the reference to the Conceptual Framework. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. Earlier application is permitted if at the same time or earlier an entity
also applies all the amendments made by Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, issued in June 2018. The application
of the amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Amendments and interpretation issued that are relevant to the Group but not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, “Classification of Current or Non-current liabilities”. The
amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping
entities determine whether, in the balance sheet, debt and other liabilities with an
uncertain settlement date should be classified as current (due or potentially due to
be settled within one year) or non-current. The amendments include clarifying the
classification requirements for debt an entity might settle by converting it into equity.
The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted.
The Group is considering the financial impact of the amendments on the Group’s
financial statements.

HK Int 5 (2020), “Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause” . This
interpretation is revised as a consequence of Amendments to HKAS 1,

“Classification of Current or Non-current liabilities” issued in August 2020, to
align the corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion. The amendments
are to be applied retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Group is
considering the financial impact of the interpretation and the timing of its application.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Amendments and interpretation issued that are relevant to the Group but not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021
(continued)

« Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies”. The amendments replace the requirement for entities to
disclose their significant accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their
material accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept
of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Group
is considering the impact of the amendments and the timing of its application.

« Amendments to HKAS 8, “Definition of Accounting Estimates”. The amendments
clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Also, they clarify how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Group is considering the financial
impact of the amendments and the timing of its application.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 $EEEE ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EFEAEAEEHERN

(b) Amendments and interpretation issued that are relevant to the Group but not

B RaE e R yet mandatorily effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021
R 2021 FEERRIERGN (continued)

2B ()

o EBEEEAIS 12 5t

« Amendments to HKAS 12, “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
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from a Single Transaction”. The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. The amendments shall be applied to transactions related to
leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the -earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other component of equity
as appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied
prospectively to transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Early adoption is permitted. The Group is considering the financial impact of the
amendments and the timing of its application.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Improvements to HKFRSs

« “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments to HKFRSs which the
HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises amendments that result
in accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purpose as
well as terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of individual
HKFRSs. These improvements will not have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and all
of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary,
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 EEws 2.3 Segmental reporting
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The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Management, which is the chief operating decision maker of the
Group, that allocates resources and assesses the performance of operating segments.
Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining
operating segment performance.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred
in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedge or qualifying net investment
hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount
of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in the income statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
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Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income are included in other
comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

« assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the end of the reporting period;

« income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the translation reserve in equity
through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments are taken to other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in the translation reserve. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to in the income statement, as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value
is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are treated as separate derivatives
when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are designated as hedges
and are effective hedging instruments, then they are subject to measurement under the
hedge accounting requirements.

For derivative instruments being designated as hedging instrument in an effective hedge,
the method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on the nature of
the item being hedged.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of the economic relationship, credit risk, the hedge
ratio and an evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedging instruments in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flow of hedged items. These criteria should be met before
a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for under hedge accounting. Hedge accounting
may become ineffective if the hedging instrument and the hedged item lose economic
relationship, or a significant change of the counterparties’ credit risks that dominates the
fair value change of the hedging instruments or the hedged items.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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(b)

fair value hedges are recognised in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the
hedged risk.

For fair value hedge relationships where the hedged items are debt instruments
carried at fair value through other comprehensive income, changes in fair value are
recorded in the income statement whilst hedge accounting is in place. When the
hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated
for reasons other than derecognition, the cumulative effective hedged portion of fair
value change recognised in the income statements are amortised by the effective
interest method back to the revaluation reserve. If the hedged item is
derecognised, the unamortised cumulative effective hedged portion of fair value
change recognised in the income statement are reclassified to revaluation reserve
immediately.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Accumulated
gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

60



) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

PRI (80
2. EEEEBER (80D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6 SRT R

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

AR EE BT (O
F> T TR AR ZHH
TR HABLUFETT
AT SO A EEE
A (E 5 ARl A b
B A TR AR
BEAMRRNIIE -

2.7 FIEWA RS IREE R

PGB AR H

FTA RS R A
HFLE W AT T
FEE R PR -

HIEFEER—EHES
R s L (Y B
JAS A e A A [ S ] 5
F WA BF S S Y T
% HIEFREAE R TR
FHET I H sl i 20
LEEDNARE FE S I
A BB 0 HEERL By
B B A (R T
I PR - AER TR TR
FUZRI - AGEEE R
BRI - S RE R TR
HIFTA B EIRR Qe rTE
RE B ETHBEE
FieftrER)  Brg%
JEARAHYE HIRR - SR
B ELIRETEY & TR 42k
USRI ~ i (E 3
AR DU BB I
Az 11 Y B AR N B —
83 Z AHRER Rl

EIRFTA DA R R i
BB AR 5 B
THAYHR AR S 5L
L (] E 2 5
75 VB E N T B A1
QIESCEEERORIISYON
FOF]ESZH DOSER R -

TR E 4
DURY < il T EE TSR K L 9B
Ktk GHEitETERERR
IR 350 R 2GR < MR T T M ER
RF (S FHAY AR FEfTeki%
EERERFEUA - H %
T 7 SN 4 (R e
RFEWA -

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all financial
assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g. prepayment
options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid
or received between parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

For all hedge transactions where interest rate is the hedged risk, interest income or
interest expense from hedged instruments such as fixed rate debt securities are disclosed
on a net basis together with net interest income/expense arising from the hedging
instrument such as interest rate swap.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the written down value
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.
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(continued)

Fee income from services are recognized over time at a fixed or variable price on a
systematic basis over the life of the agreement when the contract requires services to be
provided over time such as account service and credit card fees, or recognized at a point
in time under transaction-based arrangements when service has been fully provided to
the customer such as broking services and loan syndication arrangement.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition and subsequently measured
financial assets as: (i) at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), (ii) at amortised cost
(“AC”) or (iii) at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments, or the
election of fair value option. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Except
for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss, all transaction costs of
financial assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has three sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, those
designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception, and financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Afinancial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets
are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows and selling, and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially recorded
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investments are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial
asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement. However, interest
income which includes the amortisation of premium and discount is calculated using the
effective interest method and is recognised in the income statement.

For equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition to
recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains or losses in other comprehensive
income without subsequent reclassification of fair value gains or losses to the income
statement even upon disposal (non-recycling). Dividends on equity instruments classified
as fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised in other operating
income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established. Equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

The treatment of translation differences on fair value through other comprehensive
income securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded derivative that
significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement.

(3) Deposit, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities,
and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities, and
other liabilities, other than those classified as trading liabilities or designated at fair value
through profit or loss are carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period using the effective interest method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder
and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities and reported
under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under
such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) an ECL provision and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated amortisation recognised over
the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the liability relating to
financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income statement.
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2.10 Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn loan commitments (continued)
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Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the
customer. These commitments are in the scope of the expected credit losses
requirements as set out in Note 2.14.

The expected credit losses provision for financial gurantees and loan commitments are
reported under “other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements.

2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets subsequently measured at FVPL, at FVOCI and
AC are recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases or sells the
assets. Loans and advances and other financial assets are recognised when cash is
advanced to the counterparty. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the Group either continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no retained
control. If the contractual cashflow of FVOCI or AC financial instruments are renegotiated
or modified, the modified contractual cashflow should be discounted using the original
effective interest rate, and compared with the original amortised cost before impairment.
If the difference is material, the original financial instrument should be derecognised and
then re-recognised with the present value aforementioned. Otherwise, the difference is
adjusted to the original carrying value and accounted for in the profit or loss.
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2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of financial instruments (continued)
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Trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at FVPL, debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue and subordinated liabilities are recognised on the trade date. Deposits
that are not designated at FVPL are recognised when money is received from customers,
other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are
derecognised from the balance sheet when and only when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a pre-
determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase agreement are referred
to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an obligation to re-
sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under a
resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash received
from the counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase agreements
are not derecognised and are recorded as investment in securities or financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income. Reverse repos or securities borrowing
are initially recorded in the balance sheet as Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash paid to the
counterparty. Financial assets received as collateral under reverse repurchase
agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The difference between sale and
repurchase price is recognised as interest income or interest expense over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method.
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The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses the price within the bid-offer spread that is most representative of the
fair value of financial instruments, where appropriate, includes using on the residual of
the net offsetting risk position of portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities in
cases the Group manages such groups of financial assets and liabilities according to
their net market risk exposures. Despite the Group measures the fair value of these
groups of financial instruments on a net basis, the underlying financial assets and
financial liabilities are separately presented in the financial statements unless the
offsetting criterias are fulfilled.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation techniques,
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious metals are
initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or
losses on precious metals are included in net trading gain/loss.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the
following items:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- debt securities measured at FVOCI; and

- loan commitments and financial guarantees issued, which are not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including equity securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) and derivative financial assets,
are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments and financial guarantees outstanding, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the loan commitment draws down on the
loan/the beneficiary of the financial guarantee claims on the financial guarantee and (ii)
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down/the financial
guarantee is claimed.
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The expected cash shortfalls are discounted where the effect of discounting is material.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date; or

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

The Group will account for expected credit losses within the next 12 months as Stage 1
when those financial instruments are initially recognised; and to recognise lifetime
expected credit losses as Stage 2 when there has been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition. Lifetime expected credit losses will be recognised for credit-
impaired financial instruments as Stage 3 if one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred and
interest will then be accrued net of the impairment amount of the respective Stage 3
financial assets.

72



) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

PRI (80
2. EEEEBER (80D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

214 SREERE (&)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

REEFEECEEL
(D WA PR
B mEAER (A )
ERAA K AT BE S #H (R
HEALEENEERE N
(i) 3% el E ] 90
R AREEHERET B A
FRHYEEREME B
ECE (R ¢ )5 &N Y
%5 7 BT 8 15 1 JFE 5 4K B
FORTHEMERRE -

FERHE B IR R IR 2
THRAYEHE B
R N BHEOR e B
BTINRRS - AT R H 3
S Y < TR A LB
LTRSS H A5 T U
HETLLE AR EEE G ERE L
TER > AR EARR
- REEESFEEIHIH S
ESEillSH
- R TR E
ERFHER(WORA T
PRECTHIHR B A
- KAANECERER AR
SCTH IR Y LA
FH T OB BUAE
BIBH IR A STH %
b > BIRNETTH
S E IR E
FEARAFEE -

HLEHOREE B B R AR T
= AR TR
Y —JTHT H 3 R ™5 [ )
pE i R R UIEREE P S
HY H - FEE Tl E 1IAAHE
EROKEE A BB OR AR
EEE bR EE I
AR G5 8 S ROKEE
MBS EORFTH S R B R
IR B R s, -

The Group considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to act on such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment and financial guarantee) has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. The Group takes
into account following information, including but not limited to:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or
internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the group.

For loan commitments and financial guarantees, the date of initial recognition for the
purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the date that the Group becomes a party
to the irrevocable commitment. In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a loan commitment and financial
guarantee, the Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on the loan and
guarantee to which the loan commitment and financial guarantee relates.
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Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in income statement. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve.

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2.7 is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired (Stage
3), in which case interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
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Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Potential indications of
impairment may include significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is also
required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank’s balance sheet exceeds the carrying
amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its consolidated balance sheet.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on
which properties are situated) that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are
classified as investment properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are
classified as investment properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as
premises in consolidated financial statements.
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Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The work in progress item is stated
at fair value. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of
premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement up to the amount previously debited.
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Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on which
properties are situated) are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are shown
at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external independent
valuers less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. In the intervening periods, the directors review the carrying amount of
premises, by reference to the open market value of similar properties, and adjustments
are made when there has been a material change.

All plant and equipment and right-of-use assets other than leasehold land are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Historical cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis
of its respective assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are charged against premises
revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are
expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income
statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises revaluation
reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released and transferred from the
premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost or revalued
amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Properties

Over the life of government land leases
Plant and equipment

2 to 15 years
Right-of-use assets

Shorter of useful lives and lease terms

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at the end of each
reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of information are
considered to determine whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset'’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on
date of disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to the income statement.
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At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use over the contract
period.

(1) As a lessee

On the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value
of the lease payments payable over the lease term, after taking into account payments to
be made in the optional period if the extension option is reasonably certain to be
exercised, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
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(1) As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses except for the following types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are carried at fair
value; and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and buildings that do not meet the definition
of investment property where the Group is the registered owner of the leasehold interest
are carried at revalued amount.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a change in the group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in income statement if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘Properties, plant and equipment’ and presents lease liabilities separately in
“Other accounts and provisions”.
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(2) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is
a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets
to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity less than three months from the date of
acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions, short-
term bills and notes classified as investment securities and certificates of deposit.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.
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(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under either
recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are available to the Group’s
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as
a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged
to the income statement as incurred and represent contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees
who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions or to
meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds separate from
those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave and
the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leaves are
non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s entitiement is not used in full. Except
for unexpired annual leaves, they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 EEEF] (&) 2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
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(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts are
significant.

(4) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the defined benefit plan, is
recognised immediately in the consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to income statement in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in income statement at the earlier of:

the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 EEEF] (&) 2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(4) SREFzmidF = 1#] (& (4) Defined benefit plan (continued)
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability.
The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
“interest expenses” and “operating expenses” in the consolidated income statement by
function:

service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses
on curtailments and non-routine settlements

net interest expense

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and the
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax
expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 K FARFEFTSTIR (8D

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)
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The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment provisions, depreciation
of premises and equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including at fair value
through other comprehensive income securities and premises. However, the deferred
income tax is not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred
income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income and revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred income tax is also credited or
charged to other comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the income
statement together with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property is determined
based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment property will
be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured
at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as “non-current
assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
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2.25 KAREEERAREE(E®) 2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to
changes in essential estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either the key assumptions or other
estimation uncertainties will be presented below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible
that actual results may require material adjustments to the estimates referred to below.

3.1 Impairment requirements on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all categories of
financial assets (except for financial assets at fair value through profit and loss)
requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash
flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of
underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their
interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting
judgements and estimates include:

The Group’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual
grades.

+ The Group’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL
basis and the qualitative assessment.

+ The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective
basis.
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3.1 &FEEREER (8) 3.1 Impairment requirements on financial assets (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the estimation of available tax credits and the possibility to
recover such deferred tax assets recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of business
activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and processes
for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business
processes and ensure various risks are properly managed and controlled in the course of
conducting business. The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure with
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, evaluate, monitor,
report, and control various risks that may arise. These risk management policies and
procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and business
strategies. Various groups of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk
management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest decision-
making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk management. The
Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary responsibility for the formulation
of risk management strategies and risk appetite, establishing a sound risk culture and risk
management system to implement these strategies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established by the Board of
Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, reviewing and
approving high-level risk management policies and monitoring their implementation,
recommending senior risk management organisational framework to the Board, including
credit approval authority for the Chief Executive and scope of credit approval for the Credit
Approval Committee. The Risk Management Committee would refer any specific transaction
to the Board if it is deemed so significant that Board approval is desirable. The Risk
Management Committee, from the risk management viewpoint assesses whether incentives
created by the remuneration system are aligned with the risk culture and risk appetite, and
whether remuneration awards appropriately reflect the level of risk-taking and consequences.
It also assists to fostering a strong risk culture within the Group. The Audit Committee assists
the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the internal control system.

The Credit Approval Committee is responsible for reviewing or approving credit business or
credit management related matters within the authorisation granted by the Board of Directors,
monitoring the credit activities of the Group and reporting to the Risk Management Committee
regularly. The Chief Executive is responsible for organising and implementing the risk
management strategies and objectives established by the Board of Directors, managing
various risks and ensuring significant risk exposures are properly managed.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which are independent from
the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds of risks.
Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating
various risk management policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including establishment of
an organisational structure that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient
independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate
internal control environment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on
product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management, respective
product management units are responsible for formulating business and product development
plans, and proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic development
unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s overall strategies. Units that are
responsible for risk management, legal, compliance and finance, etc. are accountable for risk
assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units work closely with
relevant risk evaluating units to identify and assess the risks of new products. Risk evaluating
units conduct independent review on the risk assessment results and the corresponding risk
management measures. Products can only be launched upon completion of the product due
diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our customers. All new treasury
products require approval from a specialised committee before launching.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book,
as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally
from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FEREE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisational structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility
for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management committee authorised by
the Chief Executive, is responsible for the implementation of the credit risk management
strategies as well as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group’s loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different units of the Group
have their respective credit risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the first
line of defence. The risk management units, which are independent from the business units,
are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and have the primary
responsibilities for providing an independent due diligence through identifying, measuring,
evaluating, monitoring, reporting and controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks
and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies
and procedures. They report directly to the Chief Risk Officer, Credit and Loans
Management Committee, Chief Executive, Credit Approval Committee and Risk
Management Committee.

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited (“NCB (China)”) sets up independent risk
monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and submits management information and reports
to the Bank on a regular basis.
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The Board of Directors
delegates credit approval authority to the Credit Approval Committee and the Chief
Executive. Based on management needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the
credit-related subordinates or committee within the limit authorised by the Board of Directors.
The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority according to the credit business nature,
rating, the level of transaction risk, and the size of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously revising
its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk
associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are subject
to thorough risk assessment and proper approval. In general, most of the credit applications
will be reviewed and assessed by independent officer(s) of risk management unit(s) before
approval, with exceptions given to designated advances which satisfy certain conditions.
After funding being drawn, these designated advances will be (randomly) reviewed by
designated unit(s) which is(are) independent from the front line business units. Obligor
ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given default)
are assigned to credit applications for non-retail exposures to support credit approval. Retail
internal rating systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans, personal loans, etc.
Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to
support credit approval.
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fEE R BERTL F B (8D Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

B (D Advances (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, customer
and counterparty. The Group monitors changes in counterparty credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five categories with
reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is in current meeting its repayment obligations
and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing difficulties which
may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects
to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the net realisable value of
the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options
(such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit ratings,
assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on customer/security issuer
basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the investment. For derivatives,
the Group sets customer limits to manage the credit risk involved and follows the same
approval and control processes as applied for advances. On-going monitoring and stop-
loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with counterparties and
also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or
equities is made in the failure of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities.
Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

99



) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

PRI (80
4. CRIEBREE (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

BEHmREMmEEEE
2363

G B T FEA T S A B
EHAYE BRI EBEER
EARERE > UM LA
AR EEARO) B
FREGEEESR - (s
EEZR (B R PR A E
A G BR E R R
(H{E - WA S
BAFMEE R R BRI T £R
FA (R B 4 (B 5 2R R 7
o VEREAEE T
dh o AL CEIT AT
ME B EATE A Y2
HEATAE - WFFZE > A
AR ORERA DA S ]
TERSE 2N -

IR =R HERD
B0 REEERHEER
ARIABGIRIL ~ (5 848k
K E#IsE

22021 412 A 31 H »

AL BN AR

FERAARELIE I T H

B
(2020 4 : 4%) -

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is
revalued on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group
has established a mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. If necessary, collateral is
insured with the Group as the primary beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was permitted to
sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2020: Nil).
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology

For impairment assessment, an impairment model is introduced in compliance with
HKFRS 9, it requires the recognition of ECL for financial instrument held at amortized cost
and fair value through other comprehensive income. Under HKFRS 9, ECL is assessed
in three stages and the financial assets and commitments are classified in one of the three
stages.

Stage 1: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon origination and the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
loss allowance is measured at an amount up to 12-month ECL;

Stage 2: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon origination but the credit
risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL;

Stage 3: if the financial instrument is credit-impaired, with one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred, the loss allowance is also measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL.
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The Group leverages the parameters implemented under internal models where feasible
and available to assess ECL. For the portfolios without models, all other reasonable and
supportable information such as historical information, relevant loss experience or proxies
are utilized. The measurement of ECL is the product of the financial instrument’s
probability of default (“PD”), loss given default (“LGD”) and exposures at default (‘EAD”)
discounted at the effective interest rate to the reporting date.

ECL is measured at an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. The Group adopts three economic scenarios in the ECL
measurement to meet the requirements of HKFRS 9. The “Base case” scenario
represents a most likely outcome and the other two scenarios, referred to as “Upside”
scenario and “Downside” scenario, represent less likely outcomes which are more
optimistic or more pessimistic compared to Base case scenario.
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The Base case scenario is made reference to macroeconomics forecast provided by
internal economic research unit. For the Upside scenario and Downside scenarios, the
Group makes reference to the historical macroeconomics data.

The macroeconomic factors make for the major operating countries/regions include:
HK GDP growth rate, HK Inflation, HK unemployment rate, HK Property price growth,
China GDP growth rate and China unemployment rate are applied in the economic
scenarios. These macroeconomic factors are considered to be important to the Group’s
ECL in statistical analysis and business opinion.

The probability assigned for each scenario reflects the Group’s view of the economic
environment, which implements the Group’s prudent and consistent credit strategy of
ensuring the adequacy of impairment allowance. A higher probability is assigned to the
Base case scenario to reflect the most likely outcome and a lower probability is assigned
to the Upside and Downside scenarios to reflect the less likely outcomes. The probabilities
assigned are reviewed each quarter.

The ECL methodology has been validated by independent Model Validation Unit and
approved by the Risk Management Committee. The Management is responsible to review
model performance and changes in ECL.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

Summary of credit risk by stage distribution at 31 December 2021 is, as follows:

2021
ARE4RE
Gross carrying amount
R R ESRT
BHA R Bk
HIEEER AR SRS HAhE MR R gt
Balances and
placements
with banks
and other Advances
financial and other Financial Other  Financial Loan
institutions accounts investments assets guarantees commitments Total
AT BT BT BT A%t BT BBt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
66,843,102 286,848,521 137,365,510 1,196,997 53,639,221 134,471,585 680,364,936
- 4,772,799 - - 41,162 283,292 5,097,253
- 4,429,091 592,486 7,228 - - 5,028,805
66,843,102 296,050,411 137,957,996 1,204,225 53,680,383 134,754,877 690,490,994
2020
WRTHIZE(E
Gross carrying amount
B ESRT
e HA <Rt I=¢ 04
A4S ER HARIA eREMEE  HMEE  HBER ERORYE sl
Balances and
placements
with banks
and other Advances
financial and other Financial Other Financial Loan
institutions accounts investments assets guarantees commitments Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT ATIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
58,106,346 274,747,138 132,366,431 3,390,840 39,793,209 127,006,157 635,410,121
- 2,973,052 536,138 4,637 5,868 563,061 4,082,756
75,380 2,494,903 - 3,830 - - 2,574,113
58,181,726 280,215,093 132,902,569 3,399,307 39,799,077 127,569,218 642,066,990
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The internal rating and PD estimation process

The Group leverages the internal rating models where possible, with adjustments to
incorporate forward looking information and the HKFRS 9 stage classification of the
exposure to determine the PDs for HKFRS 9 ECL calculations. This is repeated for each
economic scenario as appropriate. The Group uses various internal rating models for its
key portfolios in which its wholesale customers or retail accounts are rated or assigned to
specific internal grades or risk pools. The internal rating models incorporate both
qualitative and quantitative information and, in addition to information specific to the
borrower, utilise supplemental information such as borrower’s/ account’s behaviour.

Wholesale lending
For wholesale lending, the repayment ability of borrowers are assessed by designated

divisions of the Group. The credit risk assessment is based on a credit rating model that
takes into account various financial information and qualitative information (such as
management quality, industry risks, group connection, negative warning signals).

Retail lending
Retail lending comprises personal loans, overdrafts and retail mortgages. These products

along with and some of the less complex small business lending are rated by automated
scorecards or statistical PD models.
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(A) =ERERE (A) Credit exposures
REH FEEEH The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group
fg K i B AR AT AT without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For on-
R S A = balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
B e AR g K amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
¥ - WNEEAEE maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are called
WEZE - fes S upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum exposure
R AR S HAR to credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.
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e

DU By FrFF R fh R The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial
HithZ E e effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as follows.

B R HR AR &

BB ENESNE

i

TESRIT R HoAth & Rk Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
TSR B e HHTF I

RN TR Collateral is generally not sought on these exposures in consideration of the
B —RAgEiE counterparty nature. However, other mitigation will be taken.

F AR 2

B R 4

T -

AN EE LR AR Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial investments

L BIEE e R

— N R E R S 5 Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

ORI & -
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Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual framework
under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”) derivative transactions are
conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following the
occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if deemed
necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will be included to form part of the Schedule
to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, margin is passed from one counterparty
to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 100. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed
on pages 274 to 275. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 36. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity
to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower deteriorates.
For contingent liabilities and commitments, 9.41% (2020: 11.37%) was covered by
collateral as at 31 December 2021.

107



) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) #BEE R HAMIRE (B) Gross advances and other accounts

HEUBEAE AT 48
B AR IR
SRR T

HEEK
EA
- %15
- EHF
- H
AE

- H5ME

al

S LS

SRTT R ELAth <A

HRHEIEIH A 2 &
K B HA G EHE
Caf AR EE
RIFITEmIIER - 78
EHSHEEZ
A BT
BT A R AT R
fEE > AIBIEmSEE
H - ARIEE S &
ESSILN R ON =S
EERSTCERA - B AER
AR ETRER - 5
B — o K
UNE 5 s 1 A
HPRER - AP R
FREE -

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised

by product type as follows:

Advances to customers

Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Trade bills

Advances to banks and other financial

institutions

2021 2020
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

33,254,925 29,167,672
120,205 57,024
29,872,625 28,633,974
223,264,723 214,086,093
9,050,383 7,777,808
295,562,861 279,722,571
487,550 390,401

- 102,121
296,050,411 280,215,093

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the principal

or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular

instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and

remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either

when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has

not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have

continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) #BEE R HAMIRE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(€:-))
e — T % TH Advances are credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
HHEHERERRK impact on the estimated future cash flows have occurred. Credit-impaired advances
W mEERHT are classified as Stage 3. The Group identifies the advances as impaired if the
HES SRREBEE exposure is past due for more than 90 days or the borrower is unlikely to pay in full
RERBERE - & for the credit obligations to the Group
FH R 12 (5 e e 2

FoSh =PEEL - W
JE\ R iR 28 90 K
DUEH » sRfERA
AT AE SR 2 HH A
REEAEES - A
9] 432 15 T 0 R K
EEX -
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor credit-impaired

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Advances that were neither overdue nor credit-impaired are analysed by internal

credit grade as follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate

- Commercial loans 215,381,175

- Trade finance

Trade bills
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2021

REME  REEUT
&t Special Substandard st
Pass mention or below Total
BT BT BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
32,918,723 31,905 - 32,950,628
118,817 - - 118,817
29,568,668 35,306 - 29,603,974
3,501,757 - 218,882,932
8,871,389 153,927 - 9,025,316
286,858,772 3,722,895 - 290,581,667
487,550 - - 487,550
287,346,322 3,722,895 - 291,069,217
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor credit-impaired (continued)

2020
FERE  WEELAT
&t Special Substandard 4=t
Pass mention or below Total
BT HARETIT BERETT ARTIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 28,896,196 20,649 - 28,916,845
- Credit cards 54,923 - - 54,923
- Others 28,372,829 32,055 - 28,404,884
Corporate
- Commercial loans 209,852,398 935,832 - 210,788,230
- Trade finance 7,433,123 27,079 - 7,460,202
274,609,469 1,015,615 - 275,625,084
Trade bills 390,401 - - 390,401
274,999,870 1,015,615 - 276,015,485
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4. CRIEBREE (8)

41 EEEE (8)
(B) HEEF R EAMARIE

(&)
(b) BHRERARE
=4
HEEHAAR S F R
EERO N
T
BFEE Advances to customers
EPN Personal
- 1548 - Mortgages
- BHF - Credit cards
- A - Others
A Corporate
- BEER - Commercial loans
- HER& - Trade Finance

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not credit-impaired

The gross amount of advances overdue but not credit-impaired is analysed as

follows:
2021
AHEE
3fEH
EREH AHEE
6MEH 6fEH
AR 3 A Overdue EREH
BT for 14
Overdue six months Overdue HHA
for or less for one HiE1E
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one st
or less months six months year Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
224,379 - - - 224,379
725 - - - 725
254,205 - - - 254,205
65,611 - - - 65,611
7,183 - - - 7,183
552,103 - - - 552,103

112



) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8)
(B) HEEF R EAMARIE

(&)
(b) BHRERARE
% (&)
BEEK Advances to customers
EPN Personal
- 1748 - Mortgages
- BHF - Credit cards
- A - Others
NG| Corporate
- BEER - Commercial loans

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not credit-impaired (continued)

2020
A
3 & H
(EEN RG] A
6 {EH 6 {EH
A 3 E A Overdue BR
EdYNN for 14
Overdue six months Overdue A
for or less for one i 1A
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one 4EE
or less months six months year Total
BT BT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
182,320 - - - 182,320
1,271 - - - 1,271
204,932 - - - 204,932
1,316,182 - - - 1,316,182
1,704,705 - - - 1,704,705
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(c) Impaired advances

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as

follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Advances to banks and
other financial
institutions

Impairment allowances -
Stage 3

Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such

advances to customers

Covered portion of such advances to

customers

Uncovered portion of such advances to

customers

Uncovered portion of such advances to
banks and other financial institutions
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2021 2020
e FEAP
gz mifE
P =e Market LEEER Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT BT HATT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
79,918 210,821 68,507 191,615
663 - 830 -
14,446 35,079 24,158 44,955
4,316,180 3,979,170 1,981,681 554,497
17,884 - 317,606 2,024
4,429,091 4,225,070 2,392,782 793,091
- - 102,121 -
4,429,091 4,225,070 2,494,903 793,091
2,532,041 1,804,583
2021 2020
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
4,225,070 793,091
1,314,864 552,798
3,114,227 1,839,984
- 102,121
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4BERF HANERIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(&

(c) BEEZ (&) (c) Impaired advances (continued)
TEHEHE SR The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of
SR HEA collateral in respect of such advances.
=
uufgfﬁ M
2021 4F 12 A As at 31 December 2021, there were no impaired trade bills (2020: Nil).
31 H  #AERE
ZH 5 R B

(2020 4 4 ) »

W5 E 4y FE B E Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
ZHEPER T
wr e
2021 2020
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FrESFHECREZ Gross classified or impaired advances to
9SS  CIek customers 4,429,091 2,392,782
FrESFHECREZ Gross classified or impaired advances to
% P SRR customers as a percentage of gross
Eg = v e advances to customers
= 1.50% 0.86%
PR R E R Impairment allowances - Stage 3
H 2,532,041 1,702,462
i E Sy B EORE Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are either
ZHEPEHREE classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of
EAEHGSRE loan quality, or classified as Stage 3.
AN AR

PR, TS
B, RE=PEE
HYEGK
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed

as follows:

2021 2020
L5 SRR e = e/t
Bath Horth
% of gross % of gross
S50 advances to $%H advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Gross advances to
customers which
have been
overdue for:
- six months or
less but over
three months 22,362 0.01% 31,102 0.01%
- one year or
less but over
six months 1,361,263 0.46% 94,566 0.03%
- over one year 690,243 0.23% 259,019 0.09%
Advances overdue
for over three
months 2,073,868 0.70% 384,687 0.14%
Impairment
allowances —
Stage 3 1,288,558 258,891
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4BERF HANERIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
(d) #HA#EE 3{EA (d) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
ZER (8
2021 2020
BT IT HEETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
b AR Current market value of collateral held
ENE PSR against the covered portion of such
AR B advances to customers 1,054,616 250,172
A EE Covered portion of such advances to
- 9=i=¢¢ customers 234,607 103,029
AR Uncovered portion of such advances to
EVBFEEE customers 1,839,261 281,658
7 B & K EORUE Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
HE A T charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
FEEANERE corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.
FHEHTHREHE
ENEEREE
BT EARER
HIYNEEEE
VI -
A 2021 &£ 12 H As at 31 December 2021, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three
31 5 g HEiHE months (2020: Nil).
W3MEHZE G

1% (2020 4 i)~
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4BERF HANERIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
(e) KELHERK (e) Rescheduled advances
2021 2020
155 S ERR AR 155 SR d AR
BHote Btk
% of gross % of gross
&8 advances to BEH advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AN BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
KR - EROFEH Rescheduled
(&R advances to
UgiAEEE 3 @ H customers net
ZEEK B of amounts
included in
“Advances
overdue for
more than
three months” 861,137 0.29% 90,110 0.03%
LEAEI1E Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
FEERNEBEWVEH renegotiated between the bank and borrowers because of deterioration in the
B ol 4 BE 7 40 HA financial position of the borrower or of the inability of the borrower to meet the
B AR THE original repayment schedule, and the revised repayment terms, either of interest
2 [E] 2R or the repayment period, are “non-commercial” to the Group. Rescheduled
Bk B KT E advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the
ZEEO Mz EK revised repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three
CHEET Y= FR % months”.
(EFER S B
SRR ) a8 3 s %
P - (BETERGTE
B2 KEHEK

DR
A - HIEiEE i
s 3 8 2 5%
#ome
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) SBEHREMIETH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
(f) ZEEREFE (f) Concentration of advances to customers
o 1t PR 35 45 S E Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
LB PR
#
THIERERE The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
B E locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For
15 53 M R AR 1 an advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different
L5 EF 2B from the customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
TEsth - G TR R
JE\ PSRN 2 -
EEPERZ
¥ O A P AE 3
B 22 5 P AE M
ENEIRUE s
M EERA
ZPTED -
BRI Gross advances to customers
2021 2020
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
o Hong Kong 186,752,209 177,130,215
o R AT Mainland of China 96,907,944 87,480,107
HAth Others 11,902,708 15,112,249
295,562,861 279,722,571
HEEER Impairment allowances - stage 1 and
YREEMESE 2 in respect of the gross advances
—fE— to customers
FEEEZ I
EXEHE 2021 2020
AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Hong Kong 687,609 653,261
o [5] AT HE, Mainland of China 736,748 550,306
HAr Others 56,618 121,771
1,480,975 1,325,338
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4BERF HANERIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
f) EEESEHERE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
o2 b B 3 Ay B Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
2P EREE
#H ()
HHAERK Overdue advances
2021 2020
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
A Hong Kong 635,665 1,940,582
o R A 3, Mainland of China 1,074,114 1,786,220
oAl Others 1,064,339 9,084
2,774,118 3,735,886
BUAHIER Impairment allowances — Stage 3 in
EE=] respect of the overdue advances
B2 BE
A 2021 2020
BT ATIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Tk Hong Kong 216,517 287,554
H EE A3t Mainland of China 681,012 1,060,965
At Others 516,360 -
1,413,889 1,348,519
BLRHIERN Impairment allowances — Stage 1 and 2
fESE—R in respect of the overdue advances
BB
ZRE%E
#H 2021 2020
AT AERETT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
ik Hong Kong 1,875 33,057
R Y HE Mainland of China 7,478 7,252
HAth Others 42 15
9,395 40,324
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4BERF HANERIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
f) EEESEHERE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
a7 3 B I 4y Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
BB PEK

HaEd ()

BB Classified or impaired advances
Lizh=¢ /4
2021 2020
BT HATIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
i Hong Kong 1,443,185 539,116
o B Y Mainland of China 1,951,421 1,850,893
HAth Others 1,034,485 2,773
4,429,091 2,392,782
PR ESSE Impairment allowances — Stage 3 in
HRFES respect of the classified or impaired
HIEE= advances
FEEZ IR
B 2021 2020
BT HERETTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
E LS Hong Kong 799,072 297,395
o [5] A Mainland of China 1,216,609 1,405,067
HAth Others 516,360 -
2,532,041 1,702,462
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(C) WlEI&EE (C) Repossessed assets
REN » REEEE During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as
R AT S AT (U [ security. The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 December are
B 7E FE T LIS summarised as follows:

12 H 31 HFFARVE
FE - HIEE IR A

feEtan T
2021 2020
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EESUES Commercial properties - 1,372
Y Residential properties - 1,683
KA Others 1,317 -
1,317 3,055
AREEEA 2021 412 The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
H 31 HRAAYE December 2021 amounted to HK$13,720,000 (2020: HK$26,151,000). The
BE 2 (HE BB repossessed assets comprise properties in respect of which the Group has acquired
13,720,000 j1:( 2020 access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors
4F Ak 26,151,000 concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.
TC)  BEREALEE
28 38 S P A R
BRI Y%
(@ UBERCPRE SRS
B3 T H B K
P 7 A0S ) 1M
S0 RN Y (3 7
1T BEE R -
= U [E] & Y S When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
BE SIS R » A consider the following alternatives:
EEEIZBF LT
FI77 AR
- PR EE(ERR - adjusting the selling prices
- EEEIEE—OF - selling the loans together with the assets
- ZHHMESEA - arranging loan restructuring
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(D) TESRTT R E fih2-Rlt% (D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
TERYEEER RATRK
TR BIESRIT K HAM The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
4 R AR 0 I A HE B other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor credit-impaired as at 31
{8 FRE Z &6k 77 December by rating agency designation.
Y 12 H 31 HEEE
RS SR T -
2021
A3 LIF
Aaa & A3 Lower AR QG
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT BT BETIT % TT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
LR T Central banks 21,546,067 - - 21,546,067
PRAT R HoAth SRR Banks and other
financial
institutions 29,637,118 8,586,788 7,073,129 45,297,035
51,183,185 8,586,788 7,073,129 66,843,102
2020
A3 DI
Aaa &£ A3 Lower R4 4=
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT BT BT OBITT
HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
LR T Central banks 17,678,912 - - 17,678,912
PRAT R HoAtr e AR Banks and other
financial
institutions 27,777,302 4,300,552 8,349,580 40,427,434
45,456,214 4,300,552 8,349,580 58,106,346
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MgEENeE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. sRIREEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(D) TESRTT R E fih2-Rlt% (D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
BHER R (continued)
(€:-))
TR EERIT R EHAM The following tables present an analysis of overdue or credit-impaired balances and
& ARSI A EHE (S placements with banks and other financial institutions as at 31 December by rating
FHRE = 45 85 R AT 7K agency designation.
712 H 31 Hiwsk
Tt SEAR ST AT <
2021
A3 DIF
Aaa £ A3 Lower AR a=t
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT AT BETIT  B%TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PRAT R FcAthr B AR Banks and other
financial
institutions - - - -
2020
A3 DI
Aaa % A3 Lower frEETAR dEst
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PRAT R HoAth SRR Banks and other
financial
institutions - - 75,380 75,380
- - 75,380 75,380
2021 2020
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR T B EH A St Impairment allowances — Stage 1 and 2 in
TR 4508 AR e respect of the balances and placements with
I PR Uk banks and other financial institutions
B2 561 1,977
FLAESRAT R Eofth Impairment allowances — Stage 3 in respect
TR &S R BTk E of the balances and placements with banks
B = IBEE BB e and other financial institutions - 75,380
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

SRITEIT At
T ARRFER R -

PasEBEet AR
eiallie

DA TR
DA BB AR
£

YEET

BIA S LRT A
f A

I8 N (e
DI e 8 LEt AR

i

4
WG

T

=112

At fair value through
other
comprehensive
income

At amortised cost

At fair value through
profit or loss

Total

At fair value through
other
comprehensive
income

At amortised cost

At fair value through
profit or loss

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of debt securities and
certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
designated for the issuers are reported.

2021
A3 DT
Aal = Aa3 Al E A3 Lower SESTLR st
Aaa Aalto Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT BT BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2,709,026 35,140,804 79,140,470 14,515,620 5,859,590 137,365,510
- 7,252,326 - - 759,598 8,011,924
2,709,026 42,393,130 79,140,470 14,515,620 6,619,188 145,377,434
2020
A3 LI
Aal # Aa3 Al & A3 Lower SRS Y=
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT AT AT AT AMTIT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
6,693,660 32,812,662 73,128,592 11,978,982 5,442,141 130,056,037
- - 1,884,988 - - 1,884,988
- 6,497,759 - - - 6,497,759
6,693,660 39,310,421 75,013,580 11,978,982 5,442,141 138,438,784
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

The following tables present an analysis of debt securities and certificates of deposit

neither overdue nor credit-impaired as at 31 December by issue rating. In the absence

of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

=

DA fE{EEt AR
el e

DigheRicAfERt &2
DA nfE2{bEt AR
=

lUESElie

DLEERPA R R
BIA LA AT

pas

At fair value through
other
comprehensive
income

At amortised cost

At fair value through
profit or loss

At fair value through
other
comprehensive
income

At amortised cost

At fair value through
profit or loss

2021
A3 DIF
Aal & Aa3 Al & A3 Lower SEETER sa=t
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT T BT BT BETIT BRI
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
2,709,026 35,140,804 79,140,470 14,515,620 5,859,590 137,365,510
- 7,252,326 - - 728,326 7,980,652
2,709,026 42,393,130 79,140,470 14,515,620 6,587,916 145,346,162
2020
A3 LI
Aal & Aa3 Al & A3 Lower AR L=t
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
6,693,660 32,812,662 73,128,592 11,978,982 5,442,141 130,056,037
- - 1,884,988 - - 1,884,988
- 6,497,759 - - - 6,497,759
6,693,660 39,310,421 75,013,580 11,978,982 5,442,141 138,438,784
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FEEE (8

(E) SRR AT
(&

TR B {5 ARk =
WE B R 2 B 1TeY
oI - AEIESR TRV
HIREOLT - A Ere st (T
NHIRFAR AR -

AanfAE{LEt AR At fair value
= through profit
or loss
A E#ELst AE  Debt securities
il e~ Pi-y at fair value
b e through other
comprehensive
income

Hr: BetE{E#EE  Of which
accumulated
impairment
allowances

DI g st AL Debt securities at
(AT = fair value
g sr through other
comprehensive
income

Hrp o ZEEPREAEFF  Of which
accumulated
impairment
allowances

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

The following tables present an analysis of credit-impaired or overdue debt securities
by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the
issuers are reported.

2021

HRTEME Hrp:
Carrying values RET R
Of which
A3 DI'F accumulated
Aal & Aa3 Al F A3 Lower JESEER, =+ impairment
Aaa Aalto Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
BT BETIT BB B%Ton BT BETIT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
- - - - 31,272 31,272 -
- - - - - - 182,098

- - - - 182,098 182,098

2020

R Hep
Carrying values FETRAE AR
Of which
A3 DI accumulated
Aal & Aa3 Al F# A3 Lower SESPAR 4= impairment
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
AT BTt BT ATt BETT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- - - - - - 181,024

- - - - 181,024 181,024
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R (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) BB FRE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
(&
B 2021 4F 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2021, there were no impaired or overdue certificates of deposit (2020:
H 2B BESEIH . Nil).

Rl (2020 42148 )
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MEEEKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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REEEEE MRS
W B EF R E
M FUEEERRE
EEEE PRI -
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EEeER(LRTTE
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TAE - HIEEHEE
1B DUEREUE VI I -
hoassH & s gE
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B R T R
MERREFEESE
b - HIREZEE R
TR RAEEG
hosEFE L - B
P F RS P
s M BRI e
& IR R R AL
JEBE: > G AR
P ég Rkt - DAORDE
RITEBL S -HIN
577> Omicron 8 f& it
T B E AT Bk
HEE - TR
8B 18 B JRF A B FT
B REEET T
TR R E R EE 5
JBE J70A0ER > DAEEAL
Omicron % f& ¥ 7o i
HEBEHEREER
b ~ B hIRE A
EEFFIE AT
EERAVB R A -

(F) 2019 5@ARm R B (F) The impact of COVID-19 on credit risk
EERRRE
IR FE 2019 5= AR % 55 In response to the COVID-19 pandemic which spread across the world, the Group
REEERIKEL » actively facilitated the relief measures rolled out by the Central People's Government
REETERE N iER and the Government of the HKSAR during the pandemic and assisted customers
Bo & o N RRBUN T affected by the pandemic. Please refer to Business Review of Additional Information
EAERFITTEE BT for brief explanations of the Group's relief measures.

The Group continues to manage its business operations during the pandemic, and
closely monitor and reduce the impact of the pandemic on customers. For loans and
advances, the Group comprehensively strengthens and enhances pre-approval and
post-lending risk management practice, adopts appropriate measures in response to
the latest economic conditions, strengthens portfolio and customer level monitoring and
communications with borrowers in order to have better understanding on changes in
creditworthiness of borrowers in a more timely manner. For industries that are more
vulnerable to the pandemic, the Group will strengthen portfolio review, pay special
attention to the impact of the pandemic on the operation and financial status of these
borrowers, perform risk assessment in a timely manner, and take instant risk mitigation
measures to safeguard the Bank's interest. In view of the quick spread of the Omicron
variant around the world, which is expected to deal a severe blow to the economic
recovery, the Group has conducted an ad-hoc COVID-19 pandemic stress test to
assess the potential impact of the Omicron variant on credit risk, risk-weighted assets,
impairment allowances and capital adequacy ratio.
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BRI (8D
4. CRIEBREE (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 oiEER 4.2 Market risk

135 i g /2 15 R < i T 355
B (HEHR - IR - REE(E
-~ BN ) B
HEHISNE ~ IS ~ BLEEATRY
sndE E LR LT T AR
SRR AR - A5
IS R EL 2 ) T 35 B f
4 o B B i 2 Y S
oy -

SRR e B - AR
A I B A L e 4 T 58
SETS SRR - (REEEEMY
JoR iz " AL ) R AR AH R B
TFB - AREEASEG T
AIREAE AR T - (e
BB R -

A B e P 2
EaRAVE R m kg &
LB TR E
HEEE mEEHAEM
5 e At BELAir - % =) H
o BRHT - mERE
frEAammmEEEHEA
BIEfTHHEEIIT BT
B 2 5 B v 5 R L
DU & B B SR A R AT
L B CREE AR A 51
T35 g $9 2 A 1 7T 952
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R R\ PR - e BIIERS 150 i e
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BT AE R AR
TS E NS IS -

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return.

The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury
business, by effective management of potential market risk in the Group’s business,
according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the basis
of a well-established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and Risk Management Committee, Senior Management and
functional units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market risk.
The risk management units are responsible for assisting Senior Management to perform
their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and compliance of
management policies and limits of the Group, to ensure that the aggregate and individual
market risk profiles are within acceptable levels. Independent units are assigned to monitor
the risk exposure against risk limits on a daily basis, together with profit and loss reports
submitted to Senior Management on a regular basis, while limit excess will be reported to
Senior Management at once when it occurs. NCB (China) sets up independent risk
monitoring teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and submit
management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iR (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

REFHZE TS E S The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
TR, PRZE » FER A ~ =1 control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but not limited to VAR (Value-
B BERIF e EI T 5 at-Risk), Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point
fgz - FEEE s AR EE Value). To meet management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified
BFEEARPRFE G E - 1 into four levels, and are approved by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability
TEEH ~ WA ~ FRSTHIE Management Committee or Senior Management respectively. Treasury business units are
DAL SR o A ( ELBL required to conduct their business within approved market risk indicators and limits. The
H) % - FEEFGISEM Group also implements regular model validation to ascertain market risk models
[REATRE FHIE &7y By appropriateness and market risk to be adequately measured and captured.

POfE sk > oy alH RS
HEEE GEAMREH
ZEENEEERAER
s - B ERALRER
H T 355 L i+ A AL PR
HEIA R SRS - AR
IR TE B HEAT T 55 L i A
RIEGES > DIREORFAUAY &
BUENH AR RE T
B RETSEE -

(A) BfE (A) VAR

AEEE B RS The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk
e R - 1 Management Committee and Senior Management on a periodic basis. The Group
ERE RS LR adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model, using a historical simulation approach
GRS EEE A2 and two years of historical market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the
2 o REEEER S — Bank over one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR
B L (- limit of the Group and the Bank.

MR SREENE - DL

M2 I S TS

BRSE > 515H9%

BEAETRIKR

ARG TH &

ASRATHIERE - I

BOEARSRENIAIRT

Y B (L PR -
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mgEE (8
(A) BigfE (4D
TRAMAEE—

fise T 5 I b B RY
JR e * o

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure’ of the Group.

24F 24F EaGd
Fy | R12A3MH EESE EERE  PERE
At  Minimum Maximum for Average for
Year 31 December for the year the year the year
BT BETT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTTS b VAR for all market risk 2021 2,233 1,661 4,863 3,837
2020 4,264 1,451 5,127 3,921
PR\ R (B VAR for foreign exchange risk 2021 1,463 760 4,466 3,464
2020 4,126 163 4,829 3,693
PSS Y VAR for interest rate risk 2021 1,277 775 2,677 1,614
2020 1,056 611 2,506 1,472
P R 2 R L VAR for commodity risk 2021 - - 1,521 509
2020 - - 1,589 615
= Note:

LA EiEE M R (e -
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PRI (80
4. CRIEBREE (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mgEE (8
(A) E&E (8D

4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A)

e 28 I e {2 R T
17 35 JE\ g Y — JH B
SHEE . HHAEHE

VAR (continued)

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed in the context of
its limitations. For example:

FEME - i

- RAEAREE RS — the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events may not
B st Rz @ fE encompass all potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;
REEE K ATAE ]

REHIRAYEIL >
HJZ — S 1F
o

- —REPEHNEE — the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or
iR R T A hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of severe
B a IfE—H illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all
NERSE - 12 positions fully;

TR B 35 oA 00 BE 52
Erd it il
TC HAE T 85 0

FERRRE - FTAE
T 5 — KA 1
N E BB A
FHEER

- RIBESR  EHRA
Q9N E(E/KFHF »
Bl R A % R AE ik
B {5 KF LA E
EHIRMNEE - D
F

— the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account losses
that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

- JE g E R DL — VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business
% [ 45 S BF Ay UE and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

B IEstEAAE - A
JE SIS — S S
5 5y e B PO T I

b
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4. CRIEBREE (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mgEE (8
(A) EEaE (&

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

REE T TR
b B FE A R PR
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B 1 R R B PR
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REERY T S
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AEFRNEEREA
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RARBELER
W o BUECRINER R
HRYE ORFFAE AT 132
KV AR R
BRPRER (BIRnEEHE K
JEBSERRER ) 17 s B
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) BN EE
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ez

(8)

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits
to assess and manage the market risk not covered by VAR. The market risk stress
testing includes sensitivity testing on changes in risk factors with various degrees of
severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events.

Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly the
HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the
Group is managed at an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are
used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap
between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g.
FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign currency-
denominated assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mgEE (8
(B) SNERER (8

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(B) Currency risk (continued)

NRYIH AL The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising from
HEXS - FEEX trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
5 B &SRS M A R completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.
BT T EANE R
b WS
BIMNEEBN 2 &8
& R AVE R IE R
2021
AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAtrohEs SN
=T Other Total
us AR foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
WEEE Spot assets 110,931,361 166,479,906 22,093,131 299,504,398
REEE Spot liabilities (100,229,498) (170,145,753) (12,901,769) (283,277,020)
EHIE A Forward purchases 21,456,500 13,790,839 5,111,037 40,358,376
AR Forward sales (32,805,271) (7,278,628) (14,170,532) (54,254,431)
(F) /RHEFHH Net (short)/long
position (646,908) 2,846,364 131,867 2,331,323
sGEREME AR TR Net structural position 9,439,231 15,615,698 - 25,054,929
2020
BT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAtryMEE SRR
ESH Other Total
us NG foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
HEEE Spot assets 104,828,483 152,426,161 23,541,049 280,795,693
HEEE Spot liabilities (102,885,199) (147,965,798)  (15,038,893) (265,889,890)
BHIE A Forward purchases 34,429,022 16,698,101 5,155,560 56,282,683
EHE Forward sales (34,703,679) (19,421,336) (13,400,132) (67,525,147)
BHE PR Net long position 1,668,627 1,737,128 257,584 3,663,339
SEREME BN FAE Net structural position 9,436,650 14,613,792 - 24,050,442
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEER (8
(C) FIREkR

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk
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Interest rate risk in Banking Book (“IRRBB”) means the risks to a bank’s earnings and
economic value arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s
asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures in Banking Book are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk in Banking Book from structural
positions are:

- IRR Gapping risk: arising from the changes in the interest rates on assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet items of different maturities and different repricing tenors. The extent
of gapping risk depends on whether changes to the term structure of interest rates occur
consistently across the yield curve (parallel risk) or differentially by period (non-parallel
risk);

Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the yield on
assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts within the same repricing
period;

Option risk: arising from interest rate option derivatives or from optional elements
embedded in an Al's assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, where the Al or its
customer can alter the level and timing of their cash flows. Option risk can be further
characterised into automatic option risk and behavioural option risk.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEER (8
©) FixEE (4

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management
in banking book. The Asset and Liability Management Committee exercises its oversight
of interest rate risk in accordance with the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management
Policy” approved by Risk Management Committee. Asset and Liability Management
Division is responsible for banking book interest rate risk management. With the
cooperation of the Financial Market Department, Asset and Liability Management
Division assists the Asset and Liability Management Committee to perform day-to-day
banking book interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not limited to, the
formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of risk indicators
and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies
and limits, and submission of banking book interest rate risk management reports to the
Management and Risk Management Committee.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department acts as the independent audit on interest rate risk
in banking book, supervises the related departments to execute the interest rate risk
function according to the policy in order to effectively control the risk. The Group’s Model
Validation Division preforms independent model validation regularly for interest rate risk
in banking book.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEER (8
©) FixEE (4

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual IR-1 “Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book” issued by the HKMA in 2018, the Group sets interest rate risk
indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and control interest rate risk. The
Group’s key risk indicators, the Net Interest Income impact and the Economic Value of
Equity impact, reflect the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net interest
income and capital base respectively. The former assesses the impact of interest rate
movement on net interest income as a percentage to the projected net interest income
for the year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic
values as a percentage to the latest capital base. The risk appetites and limits of these
two indicators are set by the Board and Risk Management Committee respectively to
monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk. In addition, the Group
monitors the interest rate risk in banking book through indicators and limits including, but
are not limited to, interest rate sensitivity gap limits, basis risk, duration and price value
of a basis point (“PVBP”).
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 EER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mpx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

AR E Y F T The Group’s indicators and limits are classified into three levels, which are approved by

FR AR S 7 = the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee and Chief

{4 > 47 5] E Financial Officer respectively. Risk-taking business units are required to conduct their

EHEZES EEA business within the banking book interest rate risk limits. In addition, risk mitigation

EEHFE O KT measures including, but not limited to, the use of interest rate derivatives, adjustment of

i‘%'@*ﬁtﬁ HKIESR portfolio duration, etc. as approved by ALCO, are effectively used to mitigate the IRRBB.
17 IR A% g 1y % Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant

%i‘% B AEAEF] departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the

3 Ji [ 5 12 R 4H & assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the adequacy of current

E N RS risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on banking book interest rate risk noted

EEAREHKE during the risk assessment process will be submitted to Risk Management Committee

EHAEZEEX for approval.

AR E e THE

HIRTTIRA 2Rl Bz
HEAT bR RE - R
B PR 4 A A 2R
PTAETLE R A
S AR - T HE
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HrEE AT ARRAER (L
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A o

AEERKABRE S The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest
FTFIBE TR 502 rate risk that the Group would face under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses and
G R TR stress tests are also used to assess the impact on net interest income arising from the
1THE AT RE K 2 1Y F) optionality of savings deposits.

SR = wariivill
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 EER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mbx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

AREEHTZHmES The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi in terms of
IT FETC A REEH] interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2021, according to the new standard IRRBB
K\ o e 2021 framework of HKMA, the Group assesses the impact of changes in the Group’s net
F12 H31 H % interest income (“ANII") and economic value (“AEVE”) respectively under 6 interest rate
BEESMEHE shock scenarios, in which optionality and behavioural assumptions of certain products
Hr R 1T R A 2= gy will also be estimated in the exposure measurement. The 6 interest rate shock scenarios
TEAEAEAEZEEEK BT include: (1) Parallel up; (2) Parallel down; (3) Steepener; (4) Flattener; (5) Short rates
f51E 6 (EF=EE up; and (6) Short rates down.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 EER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mpx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

TEEt R EE Y When calculating AEVE, commercial margins and other spread components are included
RN FIEIRER in the cash flows and discounted by the risk-free rates. The key behavioural assumptions
HYET L & P SE A include:
HRHEMAZEIEE
A DA i i e 1 25 ity
ST B E
ST RS
(1) =y AT M E (1) Partof the current account and savings account deposits (“CASA”) in HKD and USD
LY E R EEEFK are classified into core stable deposit based on historical data which would be
G LR SR I E assigned a longer interest rate sensitive tenor while the interest rate sensitive tenor
ZOBEFERITE of other non-maturity deposits is considered as “Next day”. As at 31 December
FH R & FI R R 2021, the average interest rate sensitive tenors of HKD and USD CASA is 1.60
B HepHEH F months and 1.18months, and the longest interest rate sensitive tenor is 3 months.
SR I 22 RN A A

HRETE - »
20214E12 31 H>
BILRFTLIRERK
¥ CORBOES
HAor Al R 1.60 (i A
k118 A w1k
IR 3

& H -

(2) B E (2) For retail term deposits and retail fixed rate loans subject to early redemption
[E]} H 4 8 K ET R without significant penalty, early redemption rates are calculated under different
HYZE & E B R ER portfolios.

TEBBGRE TR &

HEHIHERTIEE%E -

SEEEENES Methods of aggregation across currencies strictly follow the IRRBB Standardised
FESBEEHE Framework. The aggregate EVE losses across all applicable currencies are calculated
FAZEE(BAEZS > HY 6 as the maximum loss across the six interest rate shock scenarios.

EF B RE R

GEH OB EEEE)

iEEE T PNIOE=ES

-
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEER (8
©) Fl=mEE (F

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2021
KEEEPE F B U A E)
AEVE ANII
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
ST | Parallel up 5,328,957 (198,138)
SEATER Parallel down 27,075 198,898
B ER Steepener 1,006,962 R (N/A)
L] Flattener 392,399 NEA(N/A)
5% A Short rate up 2,071,304 A (N/A)
R Short rate down 52,236 IR (N/A)
BE Maximum 5,328,957 198,898

2020

K E R RSN L)
AEVE ANII
AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT Parallel up 3,739,133 (633,076)
SEATER Parallel down 40,229 633,461
R} Steepener 865,250 R (N/A)
ek [ Flattener 421,928 N (N/A)
SR Ay Short rate up 1,244,498 N (N/A)
IR % Short rate down 52,683 A (N/A)
B Maximum 3,739,133 633,461

#t IEEAA R

Remarks: Positive values indicate losses under the alternative scenarios.

As at 31 December 2021, the net interest income impact for all currencies is HK$199
million (2020: HK$633 million) under the interest rate parallel down scenario. The
maximum negative impact on AEVE is HK$5,329 million (2020: HK$3,739 million) under

the interest rate parallel up scenario. Compared with 31 December 2020, the Group’s

#eop e 1,99 (ST net interest income impact for all currencies is dropped by HK$434 million and maximum
(2020 4 : #:7#%6.33 negative impact on AEVE is increased by HK$1,590 million with investment in fixed rate
BoT) « KR EEN bond

PN TR 2 T

A 2R i 43 AT [

AEN - SREERY

SRy EE 53.29 (%

gL (2020 4F @

3739 L) -

2020 212 H 31 H

HHEE » AEEFFE

WL A 52 Bk /D

4.34 (BT K E

EHAY R KA H 22

MY 15.9 fF0T

FERBREELE

#2021 £ 12 H 31
H - ZERIR T
ETHERT  FAES
W T LA
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MEERIEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SEERER (§)

4.2 HEEE (8

(©) Fi=EE (8

TR T AL
B2 H 31 H2 &
B AR N HY R R
bR yE - LIRS
EYIREER AR
A % & LY EET B R
HsEHIe (Ll
FERAE) 38

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate
risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.

BE

e BB R A BEUSRAT R et
i {EibE

FESRIT R A SRR — 21—
{8 7 S E I

DB ARG SREE

LS LA
B HAHRTR
BRI E
- DA fEg b AR
treas
- DRI ESTHE
BBV
Vst ~ Sb R
HitgE (RERTEREEE)

R

2021
-z =7 FaEtE
—EARN =f@H +=fEA —EHE  HEfNE Non-
Up to 1t0 3 3to 12 1to5 Over interest =t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
ARt  A¥Te  B%Te BBt BBtk BETt B%T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Assets
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions 56,694,146 - - - - 8,009,166 64,703,312
Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - 2,348,982 335,159 - - - 2,684,141
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,171,711 3,204,022 20,356,538 717,908 - 1,572,391 27,022,570
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 834,964 834,964
Advances and other accounts 207,311,188 34,988,959 27,285,396 17,456,525 4,995,297 - 292,037,365
Financial investments
- At fair value through other
comprehensive income 13,573,438 27,721,587 22,652,260 69,484,299 3,933,926 49,933 137,415,443
- At amortised cost 592,486 - - - - - 592,486
Investment properties - - - - - 327,610 327,610
Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 8,759,766 8,759,766
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets) - - - - - 1,953,343 1,953,343
Total assets 279,342,969 68,263,550 70,629,353 87,658,732 8,929,223 21,507,173 536,331,000
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MBEREHE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. CRIEBREE (8)

4.2 THEER (8
©) FixEE (4

af
SRAT e FLpth RN AR
i

IR ASE
PAESMTA

ERHH
BT H A AR

HANRIF R (REREARES
RABERIHALR)

‘RESR

i

FIARE R GR

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities)

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

2021

—% =% FatR

—fEARN =fEA +=f8A —BhRE  HFMLE Non-
Upto 1t0 3 3to 12 1to5 Over interest =t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
AETr  BETT B TR  BYThR  BETxk AT A%t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
10,306,919 3,567,781 5,175,149 - - 2,604,123 21,653,972
2,275,979 1,880,607 2,258,726 - - - 6415312
- - - - - 814,670 814,670
187,501,013 87,730,545 85,248,950 7,431,476 61,257 15,808,145 383,781,386
2,308,085 5,906,494 5,372,701 18,167,947 - - 31,755,227
3,053,325 2,368,146 8,700,490 1,205,923 189,723 4,607,616 20,125,223
- - - - 5,451,286 - 5,451,286
205,445,321 101,453,573 106,756,016 26,805,346 5,702,266 23,834,554 469,997,076
73,897,648 (33,190,023) (36,126,663) 60,853,386 3,226,957  (2,327,381) 66,333,924
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEERE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mpx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
2020
—F =7
—EAR =fEA +={EHA —EHE AFEME Rt
Up to 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over Non- interest YA
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total

AT AT AT AT BT T AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RE Assets
EFEI & R ERUGRIT e KM &8 Cash and balances with banks
RIS and other financial institutions 52,778,399 - - - - 5,394,911 58,173,310
TESRAT R HoAth &Rl —Z+ = Placements with banks and other
{8 F N EIHA.Z AR financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - 337,676 218,303 - - - 555,979
ANEE LT AT 2 &RlE R Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,498,520 3,874,604 17,540,189 - - - 22,913,313
TTHESHMTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,031,063 1,031,063
A T Advances and other accounts 193,234,131 35,384,885 31,891,916 14,600,174 1,974,027 - 277,085,133
SRIEE Financial investments
- DA REE LA AR M2 - At fair value through other
e comprehensive income 15,383,276 28,527,507 28,514,033 55,862,458 1,768,763 54,109 130,110,146
- DR (ERT = - Atamortised cost - - 2,779,095 - - - 2,779,095
A Investment properties - - - - - 341,080 341,080
kvE B & Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 8,220,738 8,220,738
Hit&E (AiEEEREEE)  Other assets (including deferred
tax assets) - - - - - 4,488,304 4,488,304
B Total assets 262,894,326 68,124,672 80,943,536 70,462,632 3,742,790 19,530,205 505,698,161
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEER (8
©) Fl=mEE (F

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2020
—% =% Rt
—{EA R =fEA +=MEA —ZAF L E Non-
Up to 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over interest yaz
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=0 Liabilities
SRAT R HAh S R A > R Deposits and balances from banks
4hER and other financial institutions 14,010,156 12,007,788 4,568,817 - - 2,477,555 33,064,316
ANEE B B2 &RiEE  Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 2,159,973 2,576,898 1,914,116 - - - 6,650,987
TTHESHMTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,882,953 1,882,953
BEHFEX Deposits from customers 181,768,498 67,449,733 76,009,321 11,339,764 95,348 14,967,264 351,629,928
CETEBES R EGE Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - 9,664,888 4,682,608 9,666,939 - - 24,014,435
HASETE M (EIEENTRIE  Other accounts and provisions
FIRERIRAE) (including current and deferred
tax liabilities) 3,157,297 3,719,697 5,855,254 1,418,081 22,155 5,838,947 20,011,431
®EAE Subordinated liabilities - - - - 5,416,390 - 5,416,390
p=i=c5:c:f Total liabilities 201,095,924 95,419,004 93,030,116 22,424,784 5,633,893 25,166,719 442,670,440
PR R T Interest sensitivity gap 61,798,402 (27,294,332) (12,086,580) 48,037,848 (1,791,103) (5,636,514) 63,027,721
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4. SREREE (8D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 WiEEE (8
(D) BRI E

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(D) Interest rate benchmark reform

B 2017 4 7 7+ 35
SR REE R E
B 2021 4RI I HAT
B 065 R 9 S 1T
S 47 B 1 B BA
52 B (BRI
L 5 o B
s S 1R 2 R
2021 4 3 + B4
AT B R A
2021 &£ 12 H 31 H
2 b Fil 26 i
SHRAT SR R
o RS R
B ~ BT~ 7T 0 DU 1
S 2 AT
Hse < TR FHISETL ISR
ST IF 07 J U At
#AE 2023 £ 6 A 30
FI el 1551 -

FEER 2020 HEHET
SRAT RIS ORI
Mtz ok 7. F R e 4 B F
EWHEEZ A g ACH
I E - IR E R R
WERIE - P ERIREHT
R - IRATRERE
s BRYE R B E
HEAMEHEEGN
ERERGUT -

PRAT [F) A BB A

S HE TR %0

HIEAEZ DV E RIS 1R -

i 28 JE B L (B PRI

DU ez -

- R HEIT & R T
BT & IRTIE
e S T B A
55 5 T HET 3¢
HTEE AR AR TR e

- B AET BT
PR FH BL R R 4
FEEAE

In July 2017, the UK regulator, the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) announced the
discontinuation of a widely-used benchmark rate, the London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”"), by end of 2021, leading to a transition of LIBOR to Risk-Free Rates (“RFRs”)
or Alternative Reference Rates (“ARRs”). In March 2021, the FCA further announced that
publication of 26 LIBOR settings would permanently be ceased, including British Pound
(GBP), Swiss Franc (CHF), Euro (EUR), Japanese Yen (JPY) LIBOR settings and the 1-
week and 2-month US Dollar (USD) LIBOR settings after 31 December 2021, while the
remaining USD LIBOR settings would be ceased immediately after 30 June 2023.

The Group established its IBOR Transition Programme in 2020 and formed an IBOR
Steering Committee, which is chaired by the Chief Risk Officer, to lead the Transition
Programme. The Steering Committee comprises senior representatives across Front
Office, Middle Office and Back Office. The management oversight of the Transition
Programme is performed by the Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”)
and the Board.

IBOR transition exposes the Group to various risks, which the Transition Programme is
managing and monitoring closely. These risks include but are not limited to the following:

Conduct risk arising from discussions with clients and market counterparties due to the
amendments to existing contracts required under IBOR transition

Basis risk arising from asymmetric adoption of benchmark rates across assets and
liabilities
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WEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 FigREE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(D) EEFERKE (&) (D) Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)

- REEESRTTE R B - Financial risk to the Group and its clients as markets are disrupted due to IBOR
HEURELTTS G5 transition
B R B R AR S
T\

- WERATE 2 B E + Pricing risk from potential lack of market information if liquidity in IBORs reduces and
BRI RO FIE RFRs are illiquid and unobservable
JoEL g | 2 i = O B 4
BRI mESS
B{E BRI Z {2k Y
TE (B g

- N S EE &R + Operational risk arising from changes to the Group’s IT systems and processes; and
A REmES the risk of payments being disrupted if an IBOR ceases to be available

BRI R - DLR A5
RS IRAT IR 2E 4
IR 5 [ B R

HR T e e

« EAREENE PG +Accounting risk if the Group’s hedging relationships terminated and the Group
P S EilIzE A oY experienced volatility in income statement caused by profit and loss arising from
7 ) 2 e ) R existing reference rate of financial instruments transiting to RFRs

EetisETIIE &2 G i=E
TR B A G at

b
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (§) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(D) EEFRKE (&) (D) Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)

R T A E] The table below provides an overview of the Group’s exposures to significant IBORs
HZE 2021 £ 12 subject to reform that have yet transited to RFRs or ARRs as at 31 December 2021.
A 31 HiEREE The Group has excluded financial instruments referenced to USD LIBOR maturing
1) 4 Je o ) 28 B RS before 30 June 2023, except those referenced to 1-week and 2-month USD LIBOR, as
(REL 2 R 3R Ay 52 ) those exposures will expire before a transition is required.

RN EZEN

HE R R B ) 2 A B

WO o AEEEEPER
T #1202346 H 30
HZ A EI#I LI T
file BERTT FISE IR D
B AR IR G H Y
TE - FBREILEM
F2{E H B ETTiE
SRAT A SEIF B A 4t
FRE E B9 e/ T
B WRAELERT
S LA R B B
REDRIETERTE -

BT imEuR EITMBEIT AR mEERTIE HEET
TTEIZEHE [ESEHREF]A SEAFIERR
GIES
EUR LIBOR USD LIBOR GBP LIBOR Total
BT T BT BT ATIT
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
JETE SREE
Non-derivative financial assets
DA sefE AL T A B 42 T Wihs < R E 2
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 4,243,434 - 4,243,434
AR AT Y ERK
Loans and advances at amortised cost 190,405 20,554,817 720,344 21,465,566
190,405 24,798,251 720,344 25,709,000
EITTMBERT dEEt
[ESEHFEF]R
USD LIBOR Total
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
TTERBRESNEE
Derivative notional contract amount
BN T A b
OTC foreign exchange derivatives 779,690 779,690
BSMIERLT A i
OTC interest rate derivatives 4,840,752 4,840,752

5,620,442 5,620,442
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (§) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEERE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(D) EEFRKE (&) (D) Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)
HZE 2021 F£ 12 H As at 31 December 2021, all legacy contracts referencing EUR, GBP, JPY, CHF, and 1-
31 H FrAZFEUT week and 2-month USD LIBOR settings have been remediated by including appropriate
TJigE ~ HIT ~ B AERLL fallback in the contract, with no ‘tough legacy’ contracts remaining.

B BEIR 2 {EH%
TC i BRAT RIS B A
FIENA &R
BOBEIRETE 7

Feh “ELUBENEEA

& -
EA LUER T AYSE T 2 For legacy contracts referencing the remaining USD LIBOR settings, a majority of the
SRATIE SE T B R A exposures have already incorporated appropriate fallback, while the contract remediation
EENEEA &R KEy of the remaining legacy contracts, mainly loans and advances to customers and bond, is
Wy O B aa & m e 1% expected to be completed by June 2023. The Group will continue the client outreach to
FE > MFERNEAE &R support our clients during the IBOR transition.

HYE LERFFERK
K GREE R - THAT
Hry 2023 £ 6 HIE
HSERE - FESRATRISESREL
FlIZR IR AR
IR PORRE > DL

SRR

2021 FHAR » BLEEE During 2021, for loans product, migration has been started for revolving loans during
i AR ER A TE] annual reviews. Remaining migration on term loans and syndicated loans will be handled
ElEE AT - by June 2023. For treasury products, the migration on bonds and derivatives such as
Tl 6 7Y 8 HE & R0 88 (2] interest rate swaps will also be completed by June 2023 following the International Swaps
EHYHEE R Y 2023 and Derivatives Association (ISDA) protocol or clearing house arrangement.

6 FEATER - W&
EEdn T > BRI T
HAOF R 45 Ay 18 A
PR B P SR A 5 B )T
AV Bt 6 T A O
RPT4HE > 1t 2023 £
6 HIEAISER °
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (§) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEERE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(D) EEFRKE (&) (D) Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)
AL B T A HAR The Group has identified major risks arising from the IBOR Transition and mitigated most
AN T - R A of the risks by performing banking system upgrade, client outreach and contract
SRAT 24 T4 BEINE remediation, process and model changes, development of new ARR products, staff
& [EIEER -~ TRAZRIERY training and frequent management oversight of the Transition Programme. The Group
SRR ORI R A also engages actively with regulators to ensure a smooth transition from LIBOR.

HYEESLBREE ~ B T ISR
HHIRATRISE R B AR
B P B S M AR
057 b - A SR E T
MRS DR
TR fily ZRAT IR 2 4 EF
RIEFHEIE © -

SR > R EEE Y 82 However, since the Group’s main interest rate benchmark exposure is USD LIBOR, the
Tl 2 B A Ja B K 4 By 3B Group will still expose to risk due to USD LIBOR legacy contracts which are expected to
TR BERT [F R E A demise from June 2023. The Group will continue monitoring IBOR transition to ensure
o REEN R EEETEET the remaining LIBOR settings be successfully transited to ARRs.

7y 2023 £ 6 HEIE
HY SR T SR T R SEHF
BRI EYBEA &R Y
Bz o A SR AR B 2R
1T FSESr S R A8
B AHERIIEREI R
FRAT FISESR S R A
Ty i 1 51 22 (R R

Fils -

151



) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

MBEEHE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 srE& Rk 4.3 Liquidity risk
mEE R EfERT Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or pay due
AR TR E S obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity risk
JEEEE M InEETTE appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs
HAZRTS > M RESIRT under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
AR EEZ IR - K cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as the lender
EEEETS AR of last resort.

SRR - FEREL
HIEASRBIER Y
ARENRHTRE - 5
USRS A -
JERBTE /K 5 Ak
IR TR ER T
JRETRENE SR - B
HYF RS Ry IEE - 7]
VNV Bn NG e i)
TETE SR
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MEERIEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 mgEESEkE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

AEEEHEE 5
baey B > U

ARy - DIaH
HIRA AR E & A
RN R RSN EB I
Bt - HHUR AR
FraEn - AEEDE
KR EHATE SR
W o RAECRIEEN TR
HIBE AR - AR
T 87 40 R E %0
K Sl DA RIS 5
AR - REEFRIEAR
[FISARR K2 BE 5 5 T EY
REERFTK > ZHFE
EHEHISHE (BfEE
K AATFE AR
JEE ) R ATRED
HIE - LLERR AL Ay
BN E B SR IE R R
B RAEZEEIT
HRES LLEHIATRA K,
WP SEEETIE S - frall
AT - REEEIHE
BigERENE A
HIZHE(L - DU
st - PikA
A ARG A 5
FAERE T - E
iR HEEE(EE
eUtTERETR - (3R
Pk - AL
1T EEANERENE
[ ERTES | - R
BN =R B Z IR E)
A BRHLEER
B RIBERIE - A%
INEEEHRINER -
WMERURFEAPTAE T A
AR A AR YR E
b - AEERTRENE S
RS SRR kB T
WaEEARIEM -
S~ BIEDRENM:
SEEPREMELR AL
JEbg 5 | By R B
s HHEIRENE S
JEHIE] T RS ET ] -

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the liquidity of on-
and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite to
achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the
Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in place,
the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains supplementary
funding from the interbank market. According to different term maturities and the results of
funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure
(including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid
assets which provides adequate funds in support of normal business needs and ensure its
ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency.
The Group is committed to diversify the source of funds and the use of funds to avoid
excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to
the break of funding strand when problem occurred in one concentrated funding source. The
Group has established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to manage the
liquidity funding among different entities within the Group, and to restrict their reliance of
funding on each other. The Group also pays attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-
balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments and derivatives. The Group has an
overall liquidity risk management strategy to cover the liquidity management of foreign
currency assets and liabilities, collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity
risk arising from other risks, etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEsRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

R EEZE B GRRE
A E R B R R
T B A b
RIERAEHEEE - 2
b EEZ B A E
AHEHEZEGENH
FHURB R SR - b
IR E RS AT
Gz 8 g RERTT
Bl < e 7 FEUR
HUE - BEAREHE
FEEREERBE 2
WREE - CHlERTS
M EFRIES BRIE
o LinBhREAEH
ZEGET RIS
B EHIRAE o

AR ERIE
bt EEAIIRER - B H A
A~ B~ B
FIREE SRR - BE
EARPRF BN LA &
R REEEFHELER
BFEER - R R
SR~ AR
BEE ~ DURFFED
JERREAT - AGEEER A
BRI AT AR A
EER TR TR
BESNN - WiV
HHEEAT R E e R
TR CEEE SEt
G ERIE R & HE
%) eFlE AR ER R L
TR I BN & B A
BETT - AGEEIREIL T
BEAREHZY &
B R toh Bh A B AR
BT > DUEHER
BESERE -

Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk
management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RMC, the Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”) exercises its
oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in accordance
with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Asset and Liability Management Division is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with Financial Market
Department to assist the ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their
specific responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (‘LCR”), net stable funding ratio (“NSFR”), loan-to-
deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCO”), liquidity buffer asset portfolio
and depositor concentration limit. The Group applies cash flow analysis to assess the
Group'’s liquidity condition under normal conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test
(including institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) at least on monthly
basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, the
Assets and Liabilities Management System is developed to provide data and the preparation
for regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.

154



) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SElEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEsRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

FEERBESERR
2016 FAH M 2 55 B
FFH LM-2 (FR{ERTR
HESEBEE ALK
BN ) TPRYER > VR
BRSO T R EES]
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems
and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in 2016, the Group has
implemented behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash
flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to on-
balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items (such
as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual maturity
date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group
establishes MCO indicator which predicts the future 30-day maximum cumulative net cash
outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to assess if the Group has
sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order to achieve the objective of
continuing operation. As at 31 December 2021, before taking the cash inflow through the
sale of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day cumulative
cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to HK17,026,621,000 (2020:
HK$5,893,712,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit requirements.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEsRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis
scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of institution specific
and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe
liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown
rate of loan commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and
rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable
securities. As at 31 December 2021, the Group was able to maintain a positive cash flow
under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing
needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities
issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or multilateral
development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or marketable securities issued or
guaranteed by non-financial corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or
above to ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2021,
the Bank’s liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$44,050,883,000 (2020:
HK$41,405,089,000). A contingency plan is being established which details the conditions
to trigger the plan based on stress test results and early warning indicators, the action plans
and relevant procedures and responsibility of various departments. The Group tests and
updates the Plan annually to ensure its effectiveness and operational feasibility.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEsRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
REMBEILREMRE The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective from 1
1 2015F1 5 1 Hit4: January 2015 and the NSFR is effective from 1 January 2018. The Group, being classified
B (ERITE CRENNE) as category 1 authorised institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR and NSFR
HAD 5HE > MigEEE on consolidated basis. The Group is required to maintain LCR and NSFR not less than
JFEELEEFY 20181 H 100%.
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EIEEGE RSN AR By maintaining a ratio in excess of minimum regulatory requirements, the LCR seeks to
(KRS REnEE SR ensure that the Group holds adequate liquidity assets to mitigate a short-term liquidity stress
RIEREERA R H5R and the NSFR ensures the Group maintaining sufficient stable funding sources to cover
B4 E Y AT R B their long-term assets.
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EHSTAELTEEY In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to request from the Group
> ST AR additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s creditworthiness.
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MEERIEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEsRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process
will be reported to Risk Management Committee for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management policies. On the basis
of the Group’s uniform policy, the principal banking subsidiary develops its own liquidity
management policies according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own liquidity
risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk management processes
independently, and reports to the Group’s Management on a regular basis.

The information of liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio disclosures are
available under “Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information — 1. Liquidity Coverage
Ratio and Net Stable Funding Ratio” and section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s
website at www.ncb.com.hk.
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WEHENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) Maturity analysis
The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date.

Mo S G H I
BENAFMEES
SYF I H AR B 5

FRITHH -
2021
—Z =2
B —@AR  =ZER =R —Z2AfF AfEME PR
On Up to 1to3 3to12 1to 5 Over 5 B st
demand 1month  months months years years Indefinite Total
ARTT BETT BBTr A%Tr BT BT B%TT  E¥T
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
[ S RERUR T R Hifth 4@ Cash and balances with banks
e aSeR and other financial institutions 30,350,521 34,352,791 64,703,312
T R E A &Rl —%+—  Placements with banks and other
8 H N EIHE > EHRET financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months 2,348,982 335,159 2,684,141
NES R AJBR Y &BlEFE  Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- G - Trading
- S - Debt securities 725985 2,548,381 3,977,960 7,252,326
SEHIELIA AR BT ATE, - Mandatorily measured at fair
Flaziis value through profit or loss,
non trading
- B - Debt securities 10,418 717,908 31,272 759,598
- HAh - Others 404,036 655,641 16,378,578 17,438,255
- Bl - Equity securities 1,572,391 1,572,391
ST E Derivative financial instruments 263,240 128,075 64,345 104,413 272,179 2,712 834,964
SRR A HRTE Advances and other accounts
- BEERK - Advances to customers 30,173,136 8,102,517 17,691,913 51,391,375 120,475,479 63,191,634 523,791 291,549,845
- B - Trade bills 6 363,785 123,729 487,520
LRHYE Financial investments
- DA RESE i ARAL 2T - Atfair value through other
e comprehensive income
- (BB - Debt securities 4,273,174 13,717,658 25,091,880 87,316,854 3,954,302 134,353,868
- fHes - Certificates of deposit 689 310,252 1,646,884 1,053,817 3,011,642
- DR TR - Atamortised cost
- HAth - Others 592,486 592,486
- Mty - Equity securities 49,933 49,933
HEYE Investment properties 327,610 327,610
W ~ 2560 RNt Properties, plant and equipment 8,759,766 8,759,766
HirERE (HFERLERIELE)  Other assets (including deferred
tax assets) 1,133,090 396,585 20,573 (11,849) 383,427 31,517 1,953,343
BN Total assets 61,919,993 48,758,055 37,481,474 98,914,400 210,219,664 67,148,648 11,888,766 536,331,000
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEsRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) FIEFH T (&) (A) Maturity analysis (continued)
2021
- =
B —EAR =@ +-EE —EARE HEUE FHE
On Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over BHi# =t
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total

BETT  BETL BT BT B¥TRT BNTT A%TT  B%T
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000

=0 Liabilities
ST R HA SRR Y F50%  Deposits and balances from banks
4Eas and other financial institutions 3,595,374 9,315,668 3,567,781 5,175,149 - - - 21,653,972
NREE(EET AJEZE 2 & Financial liabilities at fair value
& through profit or loss - 2,275,979 1,880,607 2,258,726 - - - 6,415,312
TSR T A Derivative financial instruments 93,532 62,803 142,239 103,853 412,243 - - 814,670
= EIEE Deposits from customers 143,759,604 58,527,212 87,730,380 86,224,547 7,478,296 61,257 - 383,781,386
CBTEEE R NEDGE Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 895 2,307,190 5,906,494 5,372,701 18,167,947 - - 31,755,227
HAIETE R (EIERERTR  Other accounts and provisions
TE IR IERITEEE) (including current and deferred tax
liabilities) 4,712,123 1,729,993 2,430,703 8,943,987 2,093,446 189,723 25248 20,125,223
®IEAE Subordinated liabilities - - . - - 5,451,286 . 5,451,286
p=li=ar] Total liabilities 152,161,618 74,218,845 101,658,204 108,078,963 28,151,932 5,702,266 25,248 469,997,076
RENE£HO Net liquidity gap (90,241,625)  (25,460,790) (64,176,730) (9,164,563) 182,067,732 61,446,382 11,863,518 66,333,924
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. CRIEBREE (8)
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Assets

Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Trading
- Debt securities
- Mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss,
non trading
- Others
Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
- Advances to customers
- Trade bills
Financial investments
- At fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- At amortised cost
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Others
- Equity securities
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2020
-z =%
B —EAN =R +=EA  —EEFE EFEMLE FHEE
On Up to 1t03 3t012 1to5 Over5 HEH HEE
demand 1 month months months years years Indefinite Total
BT BNTE OBETE  OBNTRE  OBNTR OBNTT OBETT  BNTR
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
27,565,169 30,608,141 - - - - - 58,173,310
- - 337,676 218,303 - - - 555,979
- - 2,739,339 3,758,420 - - - 6,497,759
- 1,498,520 1,135,265 13,781,769 - - - 16,415,554
266,944 98,118 154,500 385,639 125,862 - - 1,031,063
27,085,817 5,688,998 24,194,159 47,302,076 115,168,007 56,624,608 631,106 276,694,771
6 112,788 262,373 15,195 - - - 390,362
- 5,098,969 10,971,693 26,019,602 76,552,439 1,792,106 - 120,434,809
- 1,150,375 4,243,333 3,319,765 907,755 - - 9,621,228
- - - 1,768,208 - - - 1,768,208
- 1,006 - 115,774 - - - 116,780
- - - 894,107 - - - 894,107
- - - - - - 54,109 54,109
- - - - - - 341,080 341,080
- - - - - - 8,220,738 8,220,738
2,694,513 1,261,574 30,083 105,781 365,301 - 31,052 4,488,304

57,612,449 45,518,489 44,068,421

97,684,639 193,119,364 58,416,714

9,278,085 505,698,161
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MEERIEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SFEIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEsRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) BIEFH T (8D

=0 Liabilities

ST R HA SRR Y F50%  Deposits and balances from banks
i and other financial institutions

NREE(EET AJEZE 2 & Financial liabilities at fair value

& through profit or loss

TEEmTHE Derivative financial instruments

BEEFR Deposits from customers

CE TS5 NS Debt securities and certificates of

deposit in issue
HAMBEVE R (EFERERHFY  Other accounts and provisions

TE IR R A ) (including current and deferred tax
liabilities)
‘EAE Subordinated liabilities
==t Total liabilities
TRETE &0 Net liquidity gap

(A) Maturity analysis (continued)

2020
Bgr —EAA =@ER  +=ER —EOF EFEME O FHE
On Up to 1t03 3t012 1to5 Over H# YA
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
BT BT OBMTT BN OBNTT BT BNTT BT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
3,136,326 13,351,254 12,007,919 4,568,817 - - - 33,064,316
- 2,159,973 2,576,898 1,914,116 - - - 6,650,987
87,292 374,686 334,686 597,326 487,056 1,907 - 1,882,953
135,638,027 61,105,318 67,449,562 76,002,051 11,339,622 95,348 - 351,629,928
139,761 119,247 2,065,633 8,022,045 13,667,749 - - 24,014,435
5541771 1,879,692 3,956,498 6,263,966 2,191,071 155,092 23,441 20,011,431
- - - - - 5,416,390 - 5416,390
144,543,177 78,990,070 88,391,196 97,368,321 27,685,498 5,668,737 23,441 442,670,440

(86,930,728) (33,471,581) (44,322,775)

316,318 165,433,866 52,747,977

9,254,644 63,027,721
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 ReEaEkE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) FIEFH T (&) (A) Maturity analysis (continued)

A [ A B R The Group has reported assets such as advances and debt securities which have been
w1{EHZ&E F overdue for not more than one month as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is
W E K AE T 58 55 repayable by different payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is
Sk TEIHA | B - actually overdue is reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported
B 1 R R FBR Y according to the residual maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which
SHIEEEE > H case the amount is reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction
BHEETERA of provisions, if any.

W 2 Bl oy A5 R

i o FAREHA 2 3

o3 A 4 AR R R B
SRR BEEE
HEEZEEGTA
B AR ER0H
FURT AHEE HIA
LHiFR 2 EEE
OB A o] AH fof 2
(A -

7 ER B EE H BH(E The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity does not imply that the
5 2 AR AR securities will be held to maturity.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for
non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.

Financial liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Subordinated liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Financial liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Subordinated liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities
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2021
—= =z

—EARN  =MA +-EA —ZEEF AEHEME  Frg
Up to 1to 3 3to12 1to5 Over HiA &EEt
1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
AT EBETT BBT T BT BETr B%Tr BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
12,913,316 3,574,153 5,191,304 21,678,773
2,276,000 1,881,000 2,261,000 6,418,000
202,445,411 88,171,263 87,412,901 8,340,985 61,257 386,431,817
2,324,771 6,143,832 5,554,850 19,921,090 33,944,543
- 207,398 829,590 6,049,858 7,086,846
5,625,939 2,385,060 8,721,090 1,207,725 189,723 18,898 18,148,435
225,585,437 102,155,308 109,348,543 30,299,390 6,300,838 18,898 473,708,414

2020
—% =%

—@HARN  =Z@EA +ZEH —Z=AF AFME s
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over A HEEt
1 month  months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BT BRI BWETIT BETOT BN T BN TT BMTT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
16,498,604 12,024,268 4,577,299 33,100,171
2,160,000 2,577,000 1,914,500 - - 6,651,500
196,887,366 67,954,496 77,757,984 12,341,969 95,705 355,037,520
274,734 2,105,599 8,593,438 14,730,677 - 25,704,448
- - 206,191 824,765 6,217,672 - 7,248,628
6,721,793 3,723,043 5,863,079 1,287,821 155,092 22,345 17,773,173
222,542,497 88,384,406 98,912,491 29,185,232 6,468,469 22,345 445,515,440
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 FEEsRE (8
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows
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The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an asset
or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at
fair value.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
mainly include interest rate swaps and foreign exchange options (non-
deliverable) whereas derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a
gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency swaps.
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

(B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows (continued)

2021
—Z =z
—ERA =@EHR +ZER —ZHEF AFME
Up to 1to 3 3to12 1to5 Over &=t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
EMTIT AW Tr BT BT BT BT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis (95,982) (2,443) (57,342) (240,097) - (395,864)

Derivative financial
instruments settled on
a gross basis

Total inflow

Total outflow

22,662,915 17,957,415
(22,588,902) (18,017,086)

9,262,226 1,101,284 1,086,109 52,069,949
(9,256,109) (1,101,284)(1,086,109) (52,049,490)

2020
—F =%
—{EHAAN =HA  +ZEA —ZHE AFME
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over st
1 month months months years 5 years Total
AT BT BB BT BT AN
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis (93,648) (9,546) (53,811) (122,757) (290)  (280,052)
Derivative financial
instruments settled on
a gross basis
Total inflow 20,162,296 16,529,023 19,825,166 - 56,516,485

Total outflow

(20,446,247) (16,748,791) (20,071,073)

- (57,266,111)
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B EHE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEsRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) AL FEIH 47 (B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

ZRITRAER

(&)
(c) & & & & £ 4 (c) Off-balance sheet items

HH
EHORYE Loan commitments
H A &£ Hp The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments as
2021 &£ 12 H 31 at 31 December 2021 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and
H 7 28 F K 55 it other facilities totalled HK$134,755,362,000 (2020: HK$127,569,218,000). Those
e 8 K HA loan commitments can be drawn within one year.
EZRINERE T
H> HE8e8E
et

134,755,362,000
L (2020 £ < g
127,569,218,000
TL) > WWEEFUK
PETR— A2
He -

FUF F5 45 R Fe HoA Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

AR

REED 2021 £ Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31 December
12 § 31 HZ % 2021 totalled HK$52,037,217,000(2020: HK$33,002,671,000) are maturing no
& R Ko HoA B 755 later than one year.

Bl AR

52,037,217,000

TL(2020 41 &

33,002,671,000

JT) - HEIEIA D

A4
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HREH

4.4 Capital management

FEEELEIEN T E

B2 4 R B e E R
JRU AR e AR R A B A 7S
JETKE > [RIEE s B A 2K
BRI - EEARET
Z B s AL
BARLER WA BT
FTase DU B ~ [
B R TE IR MY B
i

N TRESE VAR 257
—EARNEAEHE
SR - Bt
DRt SR AR S R SR %
Eﬁ/‘jmﬁﬁ /ﬁf‘t/ﬁﬁﬁzﬁ
FERRIFIVIDR - HE A
EHEETAELSE
BB AT M - A
FE 15 R B L SRAT 3%
%f%é%IEA”%‘E’J/i
BARUE  sRALATT

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and controls on
capital management to support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported
periods in respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAREHE (B

4.4 Capital management (continued)

AR (SRR
b)) BEDERATAE (%
JEf ) stEESTRIET RS
R\ be B A K ke 5
JEBEEATK

AREE R EE
EMBINERAAE
B EFAEERLS
H T EATDR AR (G
B R s R ATE
FRIEREBR R AEOR - TAR
B CGRITZEEARERD
5 317C s =it
A Rt B SIS E
Wi 17 2R H T 5 B &
AREDK -

AR 2021 A
VAT e sl 7 DATRT
&8 E 5 E BUR T it
MEFEEERT ) NAYE
K - HEEREE ST
HIES] - WEEATE R
EfEFr A AR £
—SETARAEEESICY
e E YRR B BB P RE A
HNEA » fEiiase e A S
B (R A — S
R RIE—PEALER R
R RASEALLR - [Fl
AT B AL
FREE TR > DSE
PSRRI e R
RHVABGER] - AR
FNEEATE R EHERER
BRI A
2 WEHRIES SR
JE g R 1 R Fo B A oz
R A A

The Group adopts standardised (credit risk) (“STC”) approach and standardised (market risk)
(“STM”) approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge and the market risk capital charge
respectively.

The Group adopts the standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate
the capital charge for the CVA risk of the counterparty and the standardised (operational risk)
(“STO”) approach to calculate the operational risk capital charge and, with the approval from
the HKMA, excluded its structural FX positions pursuant to section 317C of the Banking
(Capital) Rules in the calculation of the market risk capital charge.

The Group adopts an internal capital adequacy assessment process (‘ICAAP”) to comply with
the HKMA'’s requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in
2021. Based on the HKMA'’s guidelines on Pillar Il, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the
extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately captured under
Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital
ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the
aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which enable the flexibility for future
business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation. The Group considers this ICAAP as an
on-going process for capital management and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital
structure where appropriate in relation to the overall risk profile.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)

A AREEEGEH EE In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted to the Board
EEAIRE] HEFEAE for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the implications
EHREEOERLTBEE of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return on equity,
FEEfE - BEAIR BN risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital
FEORN ~ SR [ElH ~ EE requirement is determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the
RT3 Feval - Beies Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its
KRELGE S EEEAR business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk, return and
TN FE M TR capital adequacy.

RIERT R ERK

J5 DAPREE SR EIRE 4R R

TFHER R EMERER

e - Boaskss
JE& > PR ~ (Bl ¥REL

PN =) g B Ll
(A) BEEGORLE (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation

EEHENSGEE R The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the Bank

HETIIRE (SR1T¥ and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
(CEAR) HAI) A Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with

WITRES TE&E HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank’.

JE¥E E 2 W A H

4R - IEE TR T

[Tl e S
Hd AR &R A I
nE > HAEER
T % — AERAT =
hiE=FACiNE
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(A) EEBeaR R (&) (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)
ARG s A HI & The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
S A AL consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of consolidation are as follows:
EERESGOEE
NI S A 5 2 5F
AT
2021 2020
=3k B B B
oy Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
BT BEWETIT AT IT HERTIT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEEREIRTEIAR Nanyang Commercial Bank
A= | Trustee Limited 16,807 16,698 16,746 16,637
EFEEEEEAIRA Kwong Li Nam Investment
=] Agency Limited 4,724 4,585 4,914 4,561
FEVEREFESRIT (R Nanyang Commercial Bank
N) BIRAE (Nominees) Limited 1,430 1,430 1,441 1,441
HEEMEEHEN AR NCB Wealth Management
INHE* Advisor Limited* 5,117 4,981 1,777 1,610
TN R 2021 4R *This subsidiary was newly acquired in 2021, the comparative figures are based on the
HUCEE > FaEdg L pre-acquisition data

Wl AR RtE
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(A) EEBeaR R (&) (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)
A The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries
SEETREON T 8% — of the Bank’.
& 4517 2 W 8 A
e
#2021 F 12 H 31 There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
H > SN consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31
" HERELEEER December 2021 (2020: Nil).
ESFEHE - A
EE s ERGR S
HlE (2020 41 4 )o
2021412 H 31 Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting scope
H > IR A of consolidation and the regulatory scope of consolidation where the methods of
HEFEEFE: consolidation differ as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
AR E H E 4
& i [ 1 A E
&re57772(2020 4
) o
(B) BEALLE (B) Capital ratio
2021 2020

R — A CET1 capital ratio

EE 12.54% 12.89%
—EEARLER Tier 1 capital ratio 15.02% 15.61%
HEBARLER Total capital ratio 18.46% 19.26%
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) EALE®R (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
HARETE D &R The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above capital
PE 3 2 HIR IR 1Y 47 ratios is analysed as follows:
BE ARG
T
2021 2020
AT HETT
HK$’000 HK$°000
LR — AR A A T CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
FefctiiH
HESTAESLE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
Rt — R E RS instruments 3,144,517 3,144,517
[N byl Retained earnings 43,323,642 40,738,381
EL RS Disclosed reserves 10,542,440 9,821,320
BT R A i CET1 capital before regulatory deductions
—HER 57,010,599 53,704,218
WIERE—REA B CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
IR
fh{EEEE Valuation adjustments (91) (118)
EAIBRIR AR I & (Y Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities
RN A (352,791) (430,257)
WAHEEGENAE Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
RA B t9(E b risk on fair valued liabilities
BT A AT (940) (2,133)
R +-Hh fe ey (B Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
KACERR) #THE revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and
B G ELN RiE investment properties)
N PEE (6,862,754) (6,781,431)
— MR T R Regulatory reserve for general banking risks
etk (2,636,044) (2,453,479)
g R — A A AT S Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital
EHURAEEE (9,852,620) (9,667,418)
L mH I — A CET1 capital 47,157,979 44,036,800
BN —EE R Additional Tier 1 capital 9,314,890 9,314,890
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) EALE®R (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
2021 2020
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
— B Tier 1 capital 56,472,869 53,351,690
THEAR B R Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
EEE GERTEE Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any
{ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁx{ﬁ}ﬁ{g related share premium 5,427,666 5,392,907
EREEE A A AN Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
ﬁ%ﬁ‘l’" JTME{%TE_E)EZ 1oiid reserve for general banking risks eligible for
SRIT b B inclusion in Tier 2 capital 4,413,868 4,020,931
BEEAEHLR FIRY 4 E A Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 9,841,534 9,413,838
ZHEAR - BEEUR Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
ﬁDlElA:k?fﬁ?f\**&:k Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
AN R 4 3 R from the revaluation of land and buildings
Yy (BARIE ﬁﬁ}f) (own-use and investment properties) eligible
EITEEEGmES for inclusion in Tier 2 capital
1Y R A E AU 3,088,239 3,051,644
B T ARE AR ETE IR Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital
4%E 3,088,239 3,051,644
s Tier 2 capital 12,929,773 12,465,482
HEER Total capital 69,402,642 65,817,172
136 4 (T A AN LR A The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:
—F
#2021 4F #2020 4
12H31H 12H31H
At 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020
PhsEsRErE AR Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.5% 2.5%
W EE4R BT E A EER Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.60% 0.61%
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) EALLER (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
RE (R17¥%E (& In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the Capital Conservation Buffer (‘CCB”)
&) #HAL) - 51 ARG is designed to ensure banks build up capital outside periods of stress of 2.5% of risk-
ERETEA (T CCB weighted assets (“RWAs”). The Countercyclical Capital Buffer (“CCyB“) which is set on
% ) HEHE an individual country basis and is built up during periods of excess credit growth to protect
e 1T Z B HA against future losses. The HKMA announced that the CCyB for Hong Kong is 1.00% of
Ah o gL JE b RWAs from 16 March 2020 and announced it remains unchanged on 28 October 2021
BEY 25%2& respectively.

A o 5 R GE ETE
A (TCCyB th& )
T HE R EEE
ERE - HUERE
S RIEE R
TRAAVIRL © &
B E A
T o it e 0 P Y 2
JH 3 4% fl 3 A i
2020 4£3 H 16 H
R 2021 £ 10

H 28 H4ERE Ry b

&' E Z

1.00% -

H & A #E The additional information of capital disclosures is available under section “Regulatory
o &R R Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.

ZN O =
www.ncb.com.hk
th T EEEEE | —Ef
B -
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(C) HEfEbEE (C) Leverage ratio
2021 2020
BT AEETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
—IREA Tier 1 capital 56,472,869 53,351,690
FEAREE R e Leverage ratio exposure 582,164,898 533,313,515
FEFRELS Leverage ratio 9.70% 10.00%
HRAtES LR 5 The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under section
AR SR E R TR AR “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.
| T @ H

www.ncb.com.hk
hr B EE
B -
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. BEMNAEBIAMME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

Fra LA REETEEEMT  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
HWENWENEENAE are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
YRR B A 4B HI S5 13 measurement”. The categorisation are determined with reference to the observability and
gENERE S NES R significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level input
INERBSFENTIE - %% that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

SRR S IR ETT AR R

HYRZ 2 r 2 R ER

e o RS R RS N e EET

BRERNVE Y REEHA

FOHE

- B HEEENE - Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
BEERTS P HRE liabilities.This category includes listed equity shares, debt instruments issued by certain
(RESEHEL ) - @4t governments, certain exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious metals.

iR RS - B BUT
BTHIEG LR - 515
N GNTEENRES

=
- EJE T EPMEER - Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
(iR 3= L0 e VRS TN ES the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
([EIFs S o me o\ BT majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote
EEFEAEE) oy EE from pricing services vendors. It also includes precious metals and properties with
oy e ZR - g insignificant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

EREI SN G HILTE
EE -~ AR R
JERUEAS TS R AT
EY GRS YINGIE T S BIE )
EATHGNZRET T A E

REHEEHE BB R -
- EEEREAR YRR - Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
AT AR R RN 2= the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity investment, debt
( [E|Fs R pa N\ i fEE instruments, rediscounted bills and forfeiting with significant unobservable components. It
EHEAFE) BN also includes properties with significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

BiZ - WEREEAER
A AT 2R DR 2R Y R R £
&~ B ITE - TR K
TEEIE o RN R BT AT
BTG ZRET T E
RAFFEHIYIZE

177



) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAENAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

I DL R AR P S
WRNEEMAR > AEEH
G E— MBS B
FHEHRFEHSE (R
HREA T EBEAEE
8 RRERNER) - DEEE
BEIEA R EES ML
W -

5.1 DA AfER EHERT
g

AEFEEIT T EENA
FAEE B B PRI
FeAE RS B I AT AR
HIPERI B T E BAL -
P A A T I
HATRZES 2 (HEES R
FERAAEESE - Hith
FrERHETaERE
AEMEESE - EX
il (E IR 1 L g U
e

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that
fair values are either determined or validated by control units independent of the front offices.
Control units have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation results from
front line businesses and all other significant fair value measurements. Specific controls
include verification of observable pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are reported to
the Management.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAMBNAMRE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

5.1 DA AfER EHERT

8 (&)

B AT B T 5 JEHL
HR{E - AL
fEER gL K5
B 2 5 (B 2R B X < ik T
HEVAfME -

BN AREEFRFAN
TR - HASERA A
NEESHEERESE
&~ IR~ HER R R
FEE SRR ~ IS ~ S
TFHEERZE R A - 1252
Ry mIE BRI S 28 e
TERUN 28 -

DA E AT &/t TH
D ISCERIEETTENT -

BB THE ~ (550G - EAk

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held by the
Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and
obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial instruments is as
below:

Debt instruments, certificates of deposit, rediscounted bills and forfeiting

W~ tEEIE

BB T B AN e Ehs
P ~ R P SNSRI
i ER B ERE L Y
7855 % {8 5 0 i G 3R 3
ST ITATE - i
T IR < U AE 2  — {E ]
TR TARASR 2 > Dl—
18 =T K2 e v 25 = AH 2R
JE R Y T B PR & &R
7= Z WEFE R — i DL A
R [FIE 7 it B 2R By
% FASHRHEAE
TR AL HIREER R - 758
SRR LB &
Eh ] B 22 B mT 22 HY
HGHIEEE -

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market prices from
exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow
technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present
value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then discounts
these flows using a discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market
for instruments with similar risk or a discount rate which is referred to the transaction
interest rate of instruments with similar risk as at the end of the month and inter-bank bid
rate as the final discount rate. These inputs are observable or can be corroborated by
observable or unobservable market data.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.1 PARMEEFBHISRET 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
R (&)
LTETH Derivatives

BN BHICTAE TR A
HIELFRSNAE ~ FI AR R i
HYESH ~ RS
- T TREIHIEE
T T BRI 4 A A
B st B S A E
Rt g - Frfs A28
By i 22 A T AR T
B - TTRZEN 2
TR ~ R P (EA
Bz - A RIS 8
1Kz Bl < i e AT AR
il 17 S5 ME AR R P IR AL
SHREHTEIRE A -
—HEENTIE T RS
€ N AERHEELE X
7 B Fo B -

KRB BT
ATAMFETEEME
IR B E R - A
SNl SN RIS ES
(b XS TEERE
EASEREENRAYE -
AR EE R e —
KT > PARATHII
O~ YRR Y[ R i

o

&t

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange,
interest rate or commodity. The fair values of these contracts are mainly measured using
valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The
inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest
rate, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and volatilities. Unobservable inputs such
as volatility surface may be used for less commonly traded option products which are
embedded in structured deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values
are determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”) are applied
to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market factors movement,
expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
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(A) Fair value hierarchy

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2021
R BRE% B=E% LT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Trading
- Debt securities - 7,252,326 - 7,252,326
- Mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss, non trading
- Debt securities - 730,024 29,574 759,598
- Others - - 17,438,255 17,438,255
- Equity securities 101,430 - 1,470,961 1,572,391
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) 265,547 569,417 - 834,964
Financial investments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
(Note 23)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 1,559,297 135,806,213 - 137,365,510
- Equity securities - - 49,933 49,933
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or
loss (Note 27)
- Trading - 6,415,312 - 6,415,312
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) 96,576 718,094 - 814,670
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAMENAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.1 DA AfER EHERT
8 (&)

(A ARERE (8

SRR
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(k3 AdE2E -
IS
—Ecfty
SR T A
(FitsE 21)
DA S B (st A KA
SRS
(B 23)
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f) -

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2020
Bk Bk FE=IEE) dHEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BT AT AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Trading
- Debt securities - 6,497,759 - 6,497,759
- Mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss, non trading

- Others - - 16,415,554 16,415,554
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) 267,649 763,414 - 1,031,063

Financial investments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

(Note 23)
- Debt securities and

certificates of deposit 1,162,689 128,893,348 - 130,056,037
- Equity securities - - 54,109 54,109

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

(Note 27)

- Trading - 6,650,987 - 6,650,987
Derivative financial

instruments (Note 21) 88,464 1,794,489 - 1,882,953

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the
Group during the year (2020: Nil).
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.1 B iEE BEIER T
B (8

(B) HE=BEHHEE
L)

R20214FE1H1H
g

- WraEk
HoAtr e

- DA EEAH
At < T U 2 Y
EMEEZN
EEL
- S
WME

PR ~ Wl R EH

42021 4£ 12 A 31 H

42021 4£ 12 A 31 H
FANEREENY

WEt ABGERAVARE
Bz 4EEd

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2021
Gains
- Income statement
- Other comprehensive
income
- Change in fair value of
financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
- Exchange difference
Additions
Disposals, redemptions and
maturity

At 31 December 2021

Total unrealised gain for the
period included in income
statement for financial
assets held as at 31
December 2021
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5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2021

EREE

Financial assets

SRRSO E

BLET AR

Mandatorily measured at fair value through

profit or loss

BlasnfERtA
HAtremEes
HIERRH

Financial

investments at

fair value
through other

RGN comprehensive

Non trading income

v T BetrsBss BetrsBss
Debt HAth Equity Equity
securities Others securities securities
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
- 16,415,554 - 54,109

- 608,715 - -

- - - (4,176)

- 293,291 - -

29,574 134,845,260 1,470,961 -

- (134,724,565) - -

29,574 17,438,255 1,470,961 49,933

- 27,990 - -
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. REMARARE
(&)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

5.1 B iEE BEIER T

B (8

(B) HE=BEHHEE
g (8

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

2020
BRI
Financial assets
IVVAVIRIEE N
HAth 2wl
SRAIMEDLA E 4Ry
g (= E Financial
Mandatorily measured investments at fair
at fair value through value

profit or loss through other

|zl comprehensive
Non trading income
HoAtr EidbrEa
Others Equity securities
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$000
720201 H1H At 1 January 2020 7,908,715 31,163
Wz Gains
L E - Income statement 450,003 -
- HA 4wl - Other comprehensive income
- DA nfEE AR - Change in fair value of financial assets at
4 T IR 2 7Y fair value through other comprehensive
SREVEEZ A income
fEEL - 22,946
- [ERZEE - Exchange difference 545,912 -
WE Additions 100,853,300 -
PEE ~ IR R EIHA Disposals, redemptions and maturity (93,342,376) -
2020412 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 16,415,554 54,109
72020412 H 31 H Total unrealised gain for the period included
FFEReRE ER in income statement for financial assets
NEF AU RAVARE held as at 31 December 2020
AU S M 21,583 -
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.1 B iEE BEIER T
B (8

(B) HE=BEHHEE

g (8

B 2021 4£ 12 H 31
H R 2020 4E 12 A
31 B RE =S
SHIBRMTH S
VAN =L
i Z EREERIEE
TIHERE -

E /AR R T (SW) i/ 8o
APV Wiz w3 N
EisEav il IV NI-E N
Eﬁt%ﬁ%mZ%ﬁﬁﬂ

HE > AEFERRS
BT EE AR
EAVEHEATRERA T
W EELENTE
ARHE=E2 - B
BEAER FR 5

THEENZEE=)E
e o AEEC I
o6 P B 2R o B A
FEHHIEERM TR
BT o

FE BB AR E
VEE S N st ol
A PHE
EAER BCE4A
& i ] R H A
H > RS ERE
BEE - AEER L
Dl pefifgst 2 HE
BEHET AHAMEREUL

SRR AE & FefEfE
TR ERANERS
AEBZESHNT

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, financial instruments categorised as
level 3 are mainly comprised of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
unlisted equity shares.

For certain illiquid others financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss
and fair value through other comprehensive income, the Group obtains valuation
quotations from counterparties which may be based on unobservable inputs with
significant impact on the valuation. Therefore, these instruments have been classified
by the Group as level 3. The Group has established internal control procedures to control
the Group’s exposure to such financial instruments.

The fair values of unlisted equity shares are determined with reference to multiples of
comparable listed companies, such as average of the price/earning ratios of
comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are not available. The
significant unobservable inputs applied in the fair values measurement of the Group’s
unlisted fair value through other comprehensive income equity shares are as follows:
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.1 B iEE BEIER T
B (8

(B) HE=BEHHEE
g (8

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

FEESBEARENRR

BEATHESE Relationship of

{EE A% Significant unobservable HiE unobservable inputs

Valuation method inputs Range to fair value
HifE BRI 9.6 - 32.3 HiiE BRI

Price/earning ratios (2020:7.0 - 52.7) ARERS

The higher the price/earning
ratios, the higher the fair value.

[EzEn oS

Market comparison approach

B ETFE S (20226_4 N ;359 B W FE A
Price/Book ratios : ATERE
The higher the Price/Book
ratios, the higher the fair value.

EEEMRENTE 40 - 207

SEEEREITE X

e WS TR (2020: 0.08 - 34.29) B HTRISREA 25, A Fo

EV/EBITDA The higher the EV/EBITDA ratios,

the higher the fair value.

B PERE K 2020 20 B MERG KR - A

Liquidity discount ( ’ ) The higher the liquidity

discount, the lower the fair value.

HHARS 5k N i A

Recent transaction approach N/A N/A N/A

NREEEERHAZ
AT (& A
Skt i {E MR
B & Bb RN b
{E/TR ST 8 K B A
FUH > FAETERRA % -
e R (S E Rl -
NERTTEZE2H
mEhn b 5% o RIA
5 B HL A < T U 2 A
it M) SRS 4R 3
ek /D k2,497,000
JT (2020 12 A 31
H :3#%22,705,000 7T )
FI#EHE 73,548,000
Jt(2020 4£ 12 H 31
H:f) - EIELmk
RERE YA A U (EE 2
F % A —THAY R T
SRR ALY
s B R e o {18 A1 (R
S B A Y B A A B
RATZE -

The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios, price/booking ratios

and EV/EBITDA of appropriate comparables. Had the significant unobservable inputs

applied on the valuation techniques increased/decreased by 5% (31 December 2020:

5%), the Group’s other comprehensive income and profit or loss would have
increased/decreased by HK$2,497,000 (31 December 2020: HK$2,705,000) and HK$
73,548,000 (31December 2020: Nil) respectively. When the fair value of the unlisted
shares are affected by more than one unobservable input, the aforesaid impact reflects

the most favourable or the most unfavourable change from varying inputs individually.

186




) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

BRI (8D
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

5.2 JERARET ISR

IHA

D AE R — R E I
B B T S R R
[F] @ LB 2 EOR AR
fiti - VN ZI57E R s 2
RSO D R A
BHEMTE A E -

TR 18 R SRAT S LAt

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market
information and information about various financial instruments. The following methods and
assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument
as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

< B 7 45 B N B 5
By

RERY 2GR EE R A
R SR H R —HE N
FH] > HARHERA T
{EEE -

EEEK
Ko 2 PR
WY FE S
R RIS A
s -

LA R A B ST BV

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from the balance
sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers
Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear interest at
prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

BTH
DL 6 B A s A
BLAZAEREHR
5L 5.1 PAA S fEET &
HIEH LR ZJ5%
FHIF -

B EAE
KH 5 2 B PR
G5 N 2
HETHIEL A SO -

ES T E B 7 R FaK

The fair value of debt instruments at amortisation cost is determined by using the same
approach as those debt instruments measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers
Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the balance sheet
date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

ﬁ§
BT R Z AR EREE
B 5.1 Y BAA fofEEt
BNES LR R AFRE
BRHZITEME -

‘REAH
BT R Z A nEEE
SRR 5.1 WL S fEET
BHEBE LR R FGE
BRHZITEME -

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same approach as those
debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note
5.1.

Subordinated liabilities
The fair value of the instrument is determined by using the same approach as those debt
instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(8
5.2 RN MBS B4R 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
THE (&
& DA F H R mEE BN The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments
(EEER R TESN T not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying values being
FRBIELA nEEFEN approximation of fair values.
SE T HZIEEEMNA
ofE -
2021 2020
HRIEIE ~rE ~ EmE PAY N
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
AT BT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SRIEE Financial assets
DA eRREAERT 2 Debt instruments at
EBTH amortised cost 592,486 592,486 2,779,095 2,859,873
SRIEE Financial liabilities
ESITEGER N Debt securities and
EE G certificates of deposit in
issue 31,755,227 31,912,287 24,014,435 24,178,199
‘BiEAK Subordinated liabilities 5,451,286 5,604,743 5,416,390 5,622,606
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.2 JERARET RIS
IHE (&

TRIPREHBEEH N R ER
SMTRZANESY -

R
DiggeR At B YR
LA

SR
B R
%

’RIEAME

BRI
DI eh A Est B YR
BIA

SRIEE
CE TR 5 R Ak

=X

‘RIEAMS

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair values

disclosed.

Financial assets
Debt instruments at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Subordinated liabilities

Financial assets
Debt instruments at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Subordinated liabilities
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2021
E-REhk  EE® F=/Ek 4EET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
- - 592,486 592,486
- 31,912,287 - 31,912,287
- 5,604,743 - 5,604,743

2020
E—lgik o E=IEH HaET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT AHTIT AT HAETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
- 1,898,476 961,397 2,859,873
- 24,178,199 - 24,178,199
- 5,622,606 - 5,622,606
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M EENE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.3 DI EEFEIIESRE 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

TE
G [H 3 0 — L A {E The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market to determine
iy Bk o B 1T 15 A e the fair value of non-financial instruments.

EIEERE T RAVARE -

BB Investment properties and premises

KEEZ YA S B The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the
BEYE KRR - B A8 Group'’s investment properties and premises were revalued. The valuations were carried out
B 8 EMERFED by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among
WATEAS - (S{E IR their staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
H & B AE 5 HI 5 B AT experience in the locations and categories of properties being valued. The Group's
BIRAEHT  HEFA A Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation methods, valuation
FEANEMEGERE assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at each interim and
HEGONHEETEE annual reporting date. There has been no change in valuation methods during the year.
Wz ANE - TS EYIZE

Fit e & R S R

Kl - EEENEFHER
FAERMERTI > AEEEE
g & RN A 5 A
B35 ~ (AR A (E
SR - HETTERFENE
A -

() FE - Eho nEEt (i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements
=R ANMEETE
KA

W EBE B The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either the market
YR AAE > T comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the
ST LY 2 income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
ITHAH RS E (T appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable properties
e =11l and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the
B E M E AR entire measurement.

(AEARE) - H
SR LR ER Y SE R e
AL PISE 2 Y 7
FUFHEE T - It
Be et 20 R E

ay
W

REEHEZ VAL The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC where the
AT AN F property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales price, market rent and
ST > Y RS capitalisation rate of comparable properties are generally observable either directly or
R OB T indirectly in these markets.

5o v LhiRE 2

EE TS &

FALTR — R w 1R

ILEETHES b E

R -
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 Bl fEEt BRI RS
IHE (&

"EYE R EE (8D

(ii)

G EETTYSS
G

B R = AR

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties and premises (continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is determined using

AR E Y ZE N either the market comparison approach or the income capitalisation approach, adjusted
EEEE TS for a premium or a discount specific to the features of the Group’s properties compared
WOEBUMAEARE to the comparable properties.
Hiz KLY ¥EM
ALY E 2
M PE T i (i %
REE °
T EBENTES The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
EIF M B measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as follows:
SRR AREEY)
EFTER RS E 7T
Y NN § k=
R
FHEERZEAENR R
BT BEARIBERR pilit: SRS Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
method unobservable inputs average to fair value
HAtr e (IR je v cor A MEY/E SRS Rl Re vEYE aa e 5.7% PrEmE » A ERE -
Other UL ABE AL B EZirE (2020: 4.3%) The higher the discount,
properties Market| Discount on features of the lower the fair value.

comparison the property compared
approach or| to comparable properties
income
capitalisation
approach

VAR AT LLEY A
MW B2 E 2%
LR RN
FRYZEER - BIMIERES R
Z i) - firE - #
2 gl IR

fE -
E o

T ~ ff fy S

Discount on features of a property is determined after taken into account various factors,
such as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building age/condition, floor level,
size, layout, with reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 Bl fEEt BRI RS
IHE (&

B
HeBzAnERRE
BT R (E B T
FERTTISERE R AR -

(A) DARMEAEFR

SRR
REYEE (I3 24)

VI ~ St Rt
(B3 25)
- B

HitrgE (M3 26)
- BEE

FFERIEE
ReEYsE (I3t 24)

YISk ~ S5b Reasctf
(FffE 25)
- B

HitrzE (fiak 26)

- B

REEZIEERAERN
ERIGHE G
ZJEgk 2 [ (2020
) -

Precious metals

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in
active market or market quote with certain adjustments.

(A) Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
(Note 24)
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 25)
- Premises
Other assets (Note 26)
- Precious metals

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
(Note 24)
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 25)
- Premises
Other assets (Note 26)
- Precious metals

2021
F—E% FE% E=fEsk gt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 13,400 314,210 327,610
- 382,604 6,893,850 7,276,454
133,172 241,091 - 374,263
2020
E—lEi LB E=IEER wE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT OBMTIT BN BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 13,400 327,680 341,080
- 1,621,200 5,598,890 7,220,090
157,558 247,160 - 404,718

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during

the year (2020: Nil).
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B EHE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 Bl fEEt BRI RS
IHE (&

(B) E=/B&HIHH EEY

R2021FE1H1H
g
- WraEk
- Bt BEZFE
- Hfh e EEs
- [REEE
WE
e
Esgipay |
A
PEE S A2

#2021 E 12 H31H
#2021 4 12 H 31 HEAT
T AT F PR A

RAIREHZELEEE
- EflFEZ

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2021
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Additions
Depreciation
Reclassification
Transfer in
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2021

Total unrealised gain for the year included in income
statement for non-financial assets held as at 31

December 2021
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2021
JeeREE
Non-financial assets
VI - S
&l
Properties,
plant and
&Y%  equipment
Investment EBE
properties Premises
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
327,680 5,598,890
- 2,056
- 61,401
- 100,786
- (140,129)
(13,470) 13,470
- 1,236,153
- 21,223
314,210 6,893,850
- 2,056
- 2,056
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 Bl fEEt BRI RS
IHE (&

(B) E=EBHHIHAEE
(&

202041 H1H
Wrgs
- WzsR
- REVEEARERE S
R
- EftBE R
- HAth g mEs
- [REEE
WE
IrEs
EER ey
L di
Ve 2728

2020412 H 31 H

14 2020 £ 12 H 31 HEFAHY
FEBREENFEANT AU
ESGREN B Gz k|
- TEVFE L T

i
- EiffifEEE 2 kR

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

At 1 January 2020
Gains
- Income statement
- Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net loss from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Additions
Depreciation
Reclassification
Transfer out
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2020

Total unrealised losses for the year included in

income statement for non-financial assets held as

at 31 December 2020

- Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

- Net loss from revaluation of premises
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2020

IEERIERE
Non-financial assets

Vs - 25t

et
Properties,
plant and

ey equipment
Investment B
properties Premises
BETL BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
348,420 7,154,208
(2,950) -
- (6,686)
- (101,107)
- 6,341
- (103,833)
(17,790) 17,790
- (1,415,143)
- 47,320
327,680 5,598,890
(2,950) -
- (6,686)
(2,950) (6,686)
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAENAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 Bl fEEt BRI RS
IHE (&

(B) F=EHHNHAEH

(&

AR =
FRIVIFE IR E
At E V) SEAR T 2L
LR SRR E
EZEE GED
A B AL PR
518 M B2
/I8 T9HUARY
[ACRUE il
A 2 T LR ) 3
TEMHE FRZESR -
SR E AT
B A 2 ] EEER )
SRR
A {E ) S BT b2
VIsREME B2
&/ () EHRE
AL 1M
HATEZH TSR
RETETZHE
E=PNEINC-Pd
b SIEWZEBEEA
RS =@k

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and comparable properties
during the year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with reference to
differences in features between the subject properties and the comparable properties
recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that come from recent
market transactions may be different in each year, the premium/(discount) on features
applied between the subject and comparable properties would change from year to year
accordingly. As a result, the significance of adjustments made to observable market
inputs may vary and lead to the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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PRI (80
6. JFFIRUWA

FIRURA

TR TRISE B St <A
FYRIH

HEEE

ERE

EAl

FIBH

EEELE G
#om

ERE

CS B RAPHGE

it

L £t

#fts

AFRMA

FELLA R fE R Eat AR 2
BRI ES A EPTES
RIS A RSS2 5y A1
s 11,720,933,000 T
(2020 £ : ¥
12,499,239,000 7T) B i
5,395,517,000 7T (2020
4 ¢ 35 6,130,752,000
JL)°

6. Net interest income

Interest income
Due from banks and other financial institutions

Advances to customers
Financial investments
Others

Interest expense
Due to banks and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue
Subordinated liabilities

Lease liabilities

Others

Net interest income

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2021 2020
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

486,744 546,025
8,655,833 9,067,041
2,564,111 2,864,290

14,245 21,883
11,720,933 12,499,239
(480,324) (332,917)
(3,360,672) (4,788,758)
(1,052,916) (615,134)
(209,955) (209,386)

(27,728) (18,838)
(263,922) (165,719)

(5,395,517) (6,130,752)
6,325,416 6,368,487

Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$11,720,933,000 (2020:
HK$12,499,239,000) and HK$5,395,517,000 (2020: HK$6,130,752,000) for financial assets
and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.
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7. FRBE R AEBA

R E R AEWA
Eeika

PRbg

bR <8
Sk

PRERE
ErtRatE R
fEHRER
HEE

HAl

62 =Yg ik ]
fEHRER
Sk

HAth

FIRHE RASA

HeuEA

- FRDAA e lEE AT AdRER
Z R R A

- PR KA
- PR R e

- ([ERb R HEAMZEEEE)
- MRBsE RS
- MRisE R MES

7. Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Loan commissions
Securities brokerage
Insurance

Bills commissions

Funds distribution
Payment services

Safe deposit box

Trust and custody services
Credit card business
Currency exchange

Others

Fee and commission expense
Securities brokerage

Credit card business

Payment services

Others

Net fee and commission income

Of which arise from

- financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value

through profit or loss

- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

- trust and other fiduciary activities
- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2021 2020
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000

650,203 611,581
312,536 304,096
228,536 200,961
186,088 158,908
157,515 130,461
48,422 44,788
42,635 40,570
3,336 24,535
4,558 6,120
436 391
174,518 184,855
1,808,783 1,707,266
(43,814) (41,205)
(2,487) (3,284)
9 M
(46,929) (43,320)
(93,239) (87,810)
1,715,544 1,619,456
818,543 615,823
(5,906) (4,699)
812,637 611,124
3,336 24,535
(1,372) (1,351)
1,964 23,184
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PRI (80
8. IR HMEWR

s (R JRA
- SNER 5 RS NEAL G

- MR E RN Sl TR
HH
- Hdn

8. Net trading gain

Net gain/(loss) from
- foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products
- interest rate instruments and items under
fair value hedge
- commodities

9. HitSRIEEFUZS 9. Net gain on other financial assets

DL e fEgE bt AR
W R PR
At

Net gain on financial investments measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income

Others
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2021 2020
AT T
HK$°000 HK$000
427,174 130,523

(109,839) (47,150)

(6,446) (2,506)
310,889 80,867
2021 2020

BT HRTT
HK$°000 HK$°000
165,857 261,805
(12,565) (12,036)
153,292 249,769
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MEEEIEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

10. HAMLLBUWA 10. Other operating income
2021 2020
BT BETIT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FBAEREULA Dividend income from investment in securities
- JE FHEEAE - Unlisted investments 1,905 2,165
B YZE 2 MR Gross rental income from investment properties 10,185 10,071
T BB S Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (728) (980)
FAth, Others 11,153 7,332
22,515 18,588
T HREYE S T Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is HK$132,000 (2020:
EFEENRHHEEY HK$146,000) of direct operating expenses related to investment properties that were not let
ZHEEBEKEZHBEE during the year.
132,000 T (2020 4 : #
% 146,000 7)) -
TR ABATHEERETE There was no contingent rent included in the “Gross rental income from investment properties”
M &Y 2 2 FH 4 Uk during the year (2020: Nil).
A (2020 4F © fi) -
M. BEEE SRS 11. Net charge of impairment allowances
2021 2020
BT HATT
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERRTT R HoAth 4 Rl Balances with banks and
&SR other financial institutions 1,622 (1,116)
R AR TE Advances and other accounts (1,413,149) (1,269,721)
EREE Financial investments 29,533 (24,855)
FAtr & Other assets 3,911 (1,001)
TS IELR Financial guarantees (128,263) (38,510)
B Loan commitments 7,077 (23,944)
IAE R Net charge of impairment allowances (1,499,269) (1,359,147)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

12. Operating expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- Salaries and other costs
- Pension cost
- Supplementary retirement benefits

Premises and equipment expenses (excluding
depreciation)
- leases of short-term or low-value assets
- Information technology
- Others

Depreciation
Auditor’'s remuneration
- Audit services
- Non-audit services
Other operating expenses
- Outsourcing activities fee
- Others
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2021 2020
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000

1,503,886 1,640,892
279,385 184,355
5,930 4,910
1,789,201 1,830,157
67,506 3,801
91,647 63,071
78,547 62,929
237,700 129,801
534,411 519,134
10,773 10,349
806 3,276
353,043 350,418
414,331 341,476
3,340,265 3,184,611
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13. TEEYEAETTE  13. Net loss from fair value adjustments on investment properties
ZEEE

2021 2020
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BN ERE Net loss from fair value adjustments on investment
e properties - (2,950)

14. HE EfEY3% - 28 14. Net loss from disposallrevaluation of properties, plant and
a2 1R equipment

2021 2020
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

HEEEH ~ [EE S R SE Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
ZAFEHR fittings (9,887) (1,213)

B EEZFREE (B Net gain/(loss) from revaluation of premises

) 2,056 (6,686)
(7,831) (7,899)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15. Taxation

Taxation in the income statement represents:

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation
- Over-provision in prior years

Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation
- (Over) /under-provision in prior years

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
and unused tax credits

2021 2020
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
388,288 449,802
(11,685) (19,497)
376,603 430,305
125,924 221,747
(3,230) 4,043
499,297 656,095
11,666 (252,959)
510,963 403,136

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount that

would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in other countries

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes

Tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses

Qver-provision in prior years

Foreign withholding tax

Adjustment in respect of distribution payment for
additional equity instruments

Taxation charge

Effective tax rate

2021 2020
BT HERETTT
HK$’000 HK$'000

3,742,050 4,218,406

617,438 696,037
48,474 (21,723)
(187,346) (190,507)
123,734 10,215
2 2

(24) 9)
(14,915) (15,454)
612 1,323
(77,012) (76,748)
510,963 403,136
13.65% 9.56%
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WBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
16. fEE 16. Dividends

2021 2020
57 ey i 4aE
i BT TR AEEETIT
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$’000
#4358 Dividends - - - .
2021 4F W H R B B No dividend has been declared for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

(2020 & : fiE) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs

(a) FREftRGEHE

REEGET A EEE TR
FRE SR # £ 2 R (5
TG DER T 2 MERIR IR
S H R R Oras i 2 5 i
st #l - ARER SRR G
F & SR ERSE IR ARG T
AR H A &
Z 5% e 253 K
RREEAHHZ %2
15% N E(H P B2 ki
HFH) - (B RAREREA -

FERTR IR &I B
AR AE e 10 FE2 Ll B55
T T UCEL 100% 2 @
K - BB 3 FEE 9 4
B RT RE A#% LE
(i FICHEEN b RA )
FTUCHT 30% % 90% 2 &+
PR - RSO e 2 i
O AR (R AT S

FRGI) PR -

W (SRR eIt 2000
12 51 Ot > A5
TR B R Ot i 2 5 i
BT ZETHIZZEEA R
SR B SEE fRaR S 5 A
MRAE] ReEEHA LR
BB R A A
PRAE] -

HZE2021E 128310
TEHIFR &Y 2,138,000
JC (2020 4 @ YA
560,000 jT) 2 ZUrfitk
% IR IR T fikkaE
HE 4 B e 53,785,000
JC (2020 4 @ YA
46,822,000 7T ) iALEH
] 5 FE T LR AR A
HI4Y By ki 22,154,000 IT
(12020 4 : &4 ¥
13,199,000 7T ) -

(a) Defined contribution schemes

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes exempted
under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme.
Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes
equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly contributions equal
to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries, depending on years of service. The
employees are entitled to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement,
early retirement or termination of employment after completing 10 years of service.
Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions
at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other
than summary dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are subject to
MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the Group
also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee is
BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounting to approximately HK$ 53,785,000 (2020: approximately
HK$46,822,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately HK$2,138,000
(2020: approximately HK$560,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed
approximately HK$22,154,000 (2020: approximately HK$13,199,000) for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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R (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
17. BAREMHRE (8) 17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) FEFzsETE (b) Defined benefit schemes

REHKEBET IHEFE The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its retired employees. Under
R R EM BRI ETE] the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement benefits which included fully redeemed
FHIEEERKRE T F#%: medical care, housing allowance and other retirement benefits.

#T > B TS 2 B IRAER]
BRERE B BRI

B AR ARAER] -
G S T S 2 e R AR The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in the life expectancy for
KRB LZ A s BRI CK pensioners.
BT -
FUE H 2 R AR IE T (E 2 The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit obligations
T —HIE E A E R 2021 were carried out at 31 December 2021 by using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
12 A 31 HLATEA REf method.
TEM AR RS B T A
i
TEARSREHHAR T 2 T2 The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
BRI
2021 2020
PTIRZER (%) Discount rate (%) 1.6 1.3
TEHASE R (R A S 3 R 3R (%) Expected rate of medical insurance cost increases (%) 6.0 6.0
TEEA G E A I R (%) Expected rate of social entertainment cost increases
(%) 0.0 0.0
TEER RS &b SRR Expected rate of retirement souvenir cost increases
(%) (%) 0.0 0.0
TEEAFH E18 B2 (%) Expected rate of rental increases (%) 3.0 3.0
TEEAEERR (%) Expected rate of withdrawal (%) 3.0-18.0 3.0-18.0
FEHAZE TR Expected death rate FEAOEGR FEAOEGR
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Life Tables Life Tables
2020 2019
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R (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
17. BAREMHRE (8) 17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) FEFz5=tE (&) (b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)
TEA S B R 3 SRS B A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the end of the reporting
2 BRSO period is shown below:
2021
FEFZEER] FERIZREF]
xiowa il ARz s/
OB €:4)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
EE=RE 0 in defined bEiE D> in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate  obligations inrate  obligations
BT BT
% HK$°000 % HK$’000
PrER Discount rate 0.1 (3,230) 0.1 3,320
THHHSS R R e B Expected rate of medical
insurance cost 0.5 16,670 0.5 (14,490)
2020
FUE Rt FUE RSB
HEYEZ s/ HRAEZ s/
CR) CR)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Ebs& in defined EEZRE D in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
HEEETTT AT
% HK$'000 % HK$’000
PR Discount rate 0.1 (3,130) 0.1 3,450
THHAS (R R i R Expected rate of medical
insurance cost 0.5 15,790 0.5 (13,720)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates

the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement in respect of the plan

is as follows:

2021 2020
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

Defined benefit schemes
- Current service cost 3,950 3,020

- Past service cost

- plan amendment - (440)
- Net interest cost 1,980 2,330
Total expenses 5,930 4,910

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

respect of the plan is as follows:

2021 2020
BT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Defined benefit schemes
- Actuarial gains arising from changes in
Assumptions (8,650) -
- Actuarial losses arising from experience
adjustments 4,720 21,720
Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in comprehensive income (3,930) 21,720

207



) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

BRI (8D
17. BIREFERA (8D

(b) FEFZEETE (H)

AETHIFVEREZETAT -

eI
R1F1H
R
B
-
R B2
TR ) R
TR 148

W12H31H

AFE R G AR B AR K
Z ARSI -

ARAA2 {lE LA
2FF 5

6 H£FE 10 4
104k

FRIIMERE L

FRAEA 2 KA A HEAE e e ]
RZ IR 22 4 -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

The movement in respect of the plan is as follows:

2021 2020
AT IT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Benefit liability
At 1 January 154,160 131,330
Current service cost 3,950 3,020
Past service cost
- plan amendment - (440)
Net interest cost 1,980 2,330
Actuarial (gain)/losses on remeasurement (3,930) 21,720
Benefit paid (3,500) (3,800)
At 31 December 152,660 154,160
Expected payment to the defined benefit plan in future
years are as follows:
2021 2020
EWETIT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Within the next 12 months 3,210 3,210
Between 2 and 5 years 14,670 14,380
Between 6 and 10 years 20,580 19,920
Over 10 years 281,050 271,740
Total expected payments 319,510 309,250

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period is

22 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in respect
of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the Group

during the year are as follows:

Fees
Other emoluments
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2021 2020
ARTIL AT
HK$°000 HK$'000

2,924 2,912
19,665 11,754
22,589 14,666
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. %~ 5@B¥E AL 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
(continued)

&IN5

(&)

(b) CG-5 TEEEHA

B R EENSHIFE

EEERE#H CG-5
T f 19 387 T #1122 45
51 REEREHZ
EREHANR R ERE
NERFEEFT -

(i) TREEPZFHIRTH

(i) Remuneration awarded during the year

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5

Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the HKMA,
details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of the Group
during the year are as follows:

[ Fixed remuneration
e Cash
HArf = Other forms

) Feil Variable remuneration
e Cash

I H Fixed remuneration
4 Cash
HArp = Other forms

R B Variable remuneration
4 Cash

EL BB ELSS 11 44 (2020
FrM B mEEHRARR
1544 (2020 £ : 17 %) %

AL - #2021 £ 12 H
31 HAHR AN B EEL

it

2021
EEE AR FEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel

JETE \ . JREE X .
Non- P dast Non- P 4t
deferred  Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
AT BT AT EWETIT BETIT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
30,473 - 30,473 24,480 - 24,480
4,222 - 4,222 1,837 - 1,837
7,093 9,447 16,540 7,651 5,627 13,278
41,788 9,447 51,235 33,968 5,627 39,595

2020
EEEAE TEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
R E|B318

Non- IRIE HEEt Non- IRAE Hast
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT BEETIT BT BT BT ABETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
27,101 - 27,101 30,649 - 30,649
3,963 - 3,963 2,835 - 2,835
10,483 5,972 16,455 13,714 3,996 17,710
41,547 5,972 47,519 47,198 3,996 51,194
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The remuneration above includes 11 (2020: 11) members of Senior Management
and 15 (2020: 17) members of Key Personnel. The list of members is as of 31
December 2021.
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MBER=E (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. %~ 5@EBE AE 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

&IN5 (continued)
(&)
(b) CG-5 TEH&&AEEA (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5
B R EZEANEAHE (continued)
(&)
(i) IBZEHHN (ii) Deferred remuneration
2021 2020
BREEAR EREEAR
Senior FEAB Senior FEAE
Management Key Personnel Management Key Personnel
AT BT IT AETT HERETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
IR Deferred remuneration
EFE Vested 8,300 4,217 8,172 3,691
KETE Unvested 18,490 9,496 17,343 8,086
26,790 13,713 25,515 1,777
W1H1H At 1 January 17,343 8,086 19,543 7,781
[t Awarded 9,447 5,627 5,972 3,996
[SEigii Paid out (4,720) (1,498) (6,217) (3,194)
EE#B(TAER  Paid out for members
EJEBZMER]  notin this category at
AE) the end of this year (3,580) (2,719) (1,955) (497)
W12 H 31 H At 31 December 18,490 9,496 17,343 8,086
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18. %~ 5@EBE AE 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

;EZEANEM< (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(&)
(b) CG-5 TEH&&AEEA (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5
B R EZEANEAHE (continued)
(&)
FLINEE R AR For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel mentioned in this
KM EEAB KT section are defined according to the HKMA’s Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
TANBTIRBSER System.

R {19 7 0 o) 12 45
51) E# -

- EHEEAR ERY
HEFEH S EH
A& A FHHE R
EEER > AARAEE
TS - BIEHE 48
%~ HAEHEERA
ERGWE REZE
Hase -

- EEAR EAESE
B R R R
H R =B A EARE
LR TNyl
EHAERE  HERY
B B EFEERSY
BHANR WfEEHA
HFE R AR BLAL E
B EEIEAEE—
HEA-ZHEE U
Fe 34 Jo b i HL A
s AE AL ZE —
HIEA -

R E B R
FRAM > BHBITE
- BREEAERTE
A EEE 2021 4 12
A 31 HILERERI8EH
B RE T - AREE
HEMHE - R
IR R < B A
TG HALENG S
BHCRAELEANTE -

- Senior Management: The senior executives directly managed by the Board who are
responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines, including
Chief Executive, Executive Directors, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Officers, other
members of Management, Board Secretary and General Manager of Audit Department.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve the
assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk exposure, or
whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of
material business lines, heads of major subsidiaries, head of trading, as well as heads
of risk control functions.

As of the date of these issuance of consolidated financial statements, the above
compensation packages including performance based bonus for executive directors,
senior management and key personnel for the year ended 31 December 2021 has not
been finalised. Management of the Group believes that the difference between the final
emoluments and that disclosed above will not have significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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19. EFEHES - FILE 19. Cash, balances and placements with banks and other financial

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TBUSRAT B LAt i

institutions

2021 2020
BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
EEEIR S M ERERT B E Cash and balances with banks and other financial
R IVAEER institutions
- EERS - Cash 544,912 624,920
- FRh R THIAS 6 - Balances with central banks 21,546,067 17,678,912
- TEURAT R B 4 il i - Balances with banks and other financial institutions
TEEGER 8,259,558 9,261,377
- TESRTT e ELAth < Rl — - Placements with banks and other financial institutions
&l 5 N 2 E I maturing within one month 34,353,172 30,685,326
64,703,709 58,250,535
TR Impairment allowances (397) (77,225)
64,703,312 58,173,310
TESRTT B EAth 4 Rttt — Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Z2+{EANEIHIZE maturing between one and twelve months
HATFI 2,684,305 556,111
BB (S Impairment allowances (164) (132)
2,684,141 555,979
67,387,453 58,729,289
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19. EFEHES - FI&E 19. Cash, balances and placements with banks and other financial

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TBSRAT B LAt i
farveEeR (8

HH BB E A 5~ Z AL
W

institutions (continued)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:

[ -l :9244 EFEE E=MEEE fst
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BRI BRI
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
2021 4FE1H1H At 1 January 2021 (1,977) - (75,380) (77,357)
Il Addition (511) - - (511)
IR R ={ G Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 1,752 - - 1,752
JEE S Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations 381 - - 381
bt Amounts written off - - 77,504 77,504
PR EEE Exchange difference (206) - (2,124) (2,330)
2021 4212 H 31 H At 31 December 2021 (561) - - (561)
F—PEEL HPEES E=IEE HEET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BEETIT BT BTT BIETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 (824) - (70,768) (71,592)
B Addition (1,916) - - (1,916)
&8I HERD S E B (R EE Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 803 . _ 803
BT E) Changes to model used for
impairment calculations (1,618) - - (1,618)
JEE S g Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations 1,615 - - 1,615
PR Exchange difference (37) - (4,612) (4,649)
#2020 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 (1,977) - (75,380) (77,357)

214




) NCB #1:§ 7% 644
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20. AnfEEEEFAIEZS  20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
ZEREE

mEM AR
B8 bat A=
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

e X EM #Et
Trading Non trading Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
AT BT IT AT BT AT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HNRMESIEE At fair value
% Treasury bills 7,252,326 6,497,759 - - 7252326 6497759
HAth (%75  Other debt
securities - - 759,598 - 759,598 -
7,252,326 6,497,759 759,598 - 8,011,924 6,497,759
tdlrices Equity securities - - 1,572,391 - 1,572,391 -
HAth, Others - - 17,438,255 16,415,654 17,438,255 16,415,554
7,252,326 6,497,759 19,770,244 16,415,554 27,022,570 22,913,313
#2021 F 12 H31 H 4 As at 31 December 2021, there were no financial assets designated at fair value through
B HE DL e E AR profit or loss (2020: Nil).
ANfB# 2 e Rl&E (2020
) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. AnfEE s AIEZS  20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

ZERRE (8D
ISR AL 2 SR
R L YT
EpsE

- Jk ki
Bl

- AEBLS B

- ek
it

- Jk ki

DA LR AR 2 BR
HEEHITHREZ 0 HU
T

BEE
FRAT e HeAth AR

YANikibe =

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by place of listing as follows:

Debt securities
- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Others
- Unlisted

3 AP
B bat AR
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

etk IR G

Trading Non trading
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT AHTT BT HTOT
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
7,252,326 6,497,759 759,598 -
- - 101,430 -
- - 1,470,961 -
- - 17,438,255 16,415,554
7,252,326 6,497,759 19,770,244 16,415,554

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by type of issuer as follows:

Sovereigns

Banks and other financial
institutions

Corporate entities
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PRI A
EEMEET AR
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

R IR T

Trading Non trading
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT AT IT EWTT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
7,252,326 6,497,759 - -
- - 17,438,255 16,415,554
- - 2,331,989 -
7,252,326 6,497,759 19,770,244 16,415,554
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate and commodity related
derivative financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency on a future
date.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, gold swaps)
or a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which the seller (writer) grants
the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a
put option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the financial
instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange
risk, the seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-
counter between the Group and its counterparty.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments held by the
Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these instruments
indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and certain of
them provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on the balance
sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved
or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s
exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
market interest rates or metal prices relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of
derivative financial instruments can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades OTC derivative products mainly for customer business. The Group strictly
follows risk management policies and requirement in providing derivative products to our
customers and in trading of derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A derivative
instrument must be included in the approved product list before any transactions for that
instrument can be made. There are limits to control the notional amount of exposure arising
from derivative transactions, and the maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative
transaction must be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation,
reporting and control.

218



) NCB i 44 # 4

BRI (8D

21. TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
g5t (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) PTEEMTE (&)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

RSB SR TR
A 12 A 31 HZ &4/ 4%

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts and fair value of each class of
derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

SRR A o E
2021
&8/ NffE
ZHEE Fair values
Contract/
notional BiE §=Ci-
amounts Assets Liabilities
AT AT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
[EREL Exchange rate contracts
BITHA Rz 25 Spot and forwards 5,982,586 281,426 (108,275)
riHA Swaps 47,764,446 237,686 (244,682)
SNEERS S HARE Foreign currency options
- EAHARE - Options purchased 981,200 75,561 (20,204)
- EHHARE - Options written 981,200 19,974 (49,604)
55,709,432 614,647 (422,765)
IESEES| Interest rate contracts
FHA Swaps 93,256,035 211,510 (384,668)
FEmEE Commodity contracts 820,999 8,807 (7,237)
149,786,466 834,964 (814,670)
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21. TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

g5t (8D
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(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Exchange rate contracts

Spot and forwards
Swaps

Foreign currency options

- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts

Swaps

Commodity contracts
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2020
= NRE
BLE e Fair values
Contract/

notional G =i
amounts Assets Liabilities
HARETT HARETT ARTIT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
10,760,031 350,164 (225,290)
56,549,856 404,544 (1,002,025)
2,499,871 104,597 (17,786)
2,499,871 192 (87,146)
72,309,629 859,497 (1,332,247)
91,811,423 170,885 (546,975)
219,806 681 (3,731)
164,340,858 1,031,063 (1,882,953)
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(b) Hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in fair value of financial
assets arising from movements in market interest rates.

The table below summarises the contract/notional amounts of the hedging instruments
as at 31 December 2021 by remaining contractual maturity.

2021
-z =
—EEAR =@A +=ER —ZEHE AFMUE
Up to 1t03 3to12 1to 5 Over {E=t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
EETT BETT BETT BT B¥TT BT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Interest rate swaps - - 1,019,718 5,600,425 100,000 6,720,143
2020
—F =%
—EAN  =ZEF +EA —E2AF AFMUE
Up to 1t0 3 3to 12 1to5 Over 4=
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BRTIT BT BT BN TOT BT BEETOC
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Interest rate swaps - - 863,794 6,018,333 178,286 7,060,413
The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments are as follows:
2021
AN F DA RESEE
Fair values T Z
ARAEEE)
=4 Change in fair
TR value used for
Contract/ recognising
notional BE =l hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
BT IT BT IT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Derivative financial
instruments
Interest rate swaps 6,720,143 12,262 148,141 -
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21. TSR T B ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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(b) Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges (continued)

Derivative financial
instruments
Interest rate swaps

The amounts relating to hedged items are as follows:

Financial investments
Debt securities and
certificates of deposit

222

2020
AnfE P AR S
Fair values E 2
AL
=L Change in fair
LI value used for
Contract/ recognising
notional B =L hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities  ineffectiveness
BT BT AT IT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
7,060,413 - 362,268 -
2021
FFARREERN
A SRR
Lt FARERT S
Accumulated IR S
amount of fair ZBEEE)
value hedge Change in
adjustment value used for
BEEME  included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
BT T BT T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
7,006,977 175,395 -
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21. TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

&5t (8D
(b) B Eat (&)

(b) Hedge accounting (continued)

AFMEEH (8D

Fair value hedges (continued)

2020
s ANRHEER
AVIRIEE P
BEGHeH FADARERE 3t
Accumulated HIERGER
amount of fair (B {E %8
value hedge Change in
adjustment value used for
NETEIE included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EREE Financial investments
B8 27 AT Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 7,497,077 307,522 -
e 30 3 O i ST 43 4 Hedge ineffectiveness recognised is as follows:
T

2021 2020

AT BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE GG Net trading gain . .

223




) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

BRI (8D

21. TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
&5t (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(c) EEFIRKE

(c) Interest rate benchmark reform

#2021 4E 12 H 31 H >
HhE TR b s E Y
MZLTA T RN &L
FRHEN 4841 (BT
(2020 4 : #i& 66.20
(87T ARAEE B
RN RY LY
BHAES PR AR
RUYCEEET HE R
bRy - AE SR T R
BERN 2021 £3 HE
AR 73 F T BERTT
[F) S SR AR 2
FH 2021412 5 31 H4
82 2023426 F 30
HZtk  REEERAYER
ARIECHERR T8 2023 4
6 H 30 H AL
TEfi BERAT RS S
REFREBNFRLTE
TE-FREA1 250 2 (8
A RIETTMBERIT R
e BB AE F 2R E (A F
ROTAETE - WA EEH
ROTE T EAF AR R A&
e ) 2= HEOR M T A E
H o o

At 31 December 2021, HK$4,841,000,000 (2020: HK$6,620,000,000) of the
contract/notional amounts of interest rate derivatives designated in hedge accounting
relationships represent the extent of the risk exposure managed by the Group that is
directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform and in scope of Phase 1 amendments.
The exposure at current year end excluded interest rate derivatives referenced to USD
LIBOR maturing before 30 June 2023, except those referenced to 1-week and 2-month
USD LIBOR, after the announcement by the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”), the UK
regulator, in March 2021 that the publication date of most USD LIBOR tenors are
extended from 31 December 2021 to 30 June 2023. Therefore, these exposures will
expire before a transition is required
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. Advances and other accounts

2021 2020
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Personal loans and advances 63,247,755 57,858,670
Corporate loans and advances 232,315,106 221,863,901
Advances to customers 295,562,861 279,722,571
Impairment allowances (4,013,016) (3,027,800)
291,549,845 276,694,771
Trade bills 487,550 390,401
Impairment allowances (30) (39)
487,520 390,362

Advances to banks and other financial
institutions - 102,121
Impairment allowances - (102,121)
292,037,365 277,085,133
As at 31 December 2021, advances to customers included accrued interest of

HK$543,479,000 (2020: HK$792,508,000).
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B HAHRIH T N E S B A

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are analysed by internal
credit grade and stage classification as follows:

SR PEEL AT
2021
[ -l :924 EREEE EERRE gt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BRETIT  AETT BRI
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BEEER Advances to customers
ik Pass 285,485,161 1,704,489 - 287,189,650
HERE Special mention 875,810 3,068,310 25,572 3,969,692
TEREELT Substandard or below - - 4,403,519 4,403,519
286,360,971 4,772,799 4,429,091 295,562,861
g5EE Trade bills
= Pass 487,550 - - 487,550
SRAT I FAth bR K Advances to
banks and other
financial institutions
REFELLT Substandard or below - - - .
4zt Total 286,848,521 4,772,799 4,429,091 296,050,411
2020
F—PEEL T PEES EEIEE HEET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT T T IT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEER Advances to customers
G Pass 273,673,886 1,244,428 - 274,918,314
YT Special mention 682,851 1,728,624 195 2,411,670
RGBT Substandard or below - - 2,392,587 2,392,587
274,356,737 2,973,052 2,392,782 279,722,571
GRS Trade bills
&tk Pass 390,401 - - 390,401
SR B LAt < R B Advances to
banks and other
financial institutions
e Substandard or below - - 102,121 102,121
4=t Total 274,747,138 2,973,052 2,494,903 280,215,093
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

At 1 January 2021

Addition

Derecognised or repaid (excluding
written off)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations

Recoveries

Loans written off

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2020

Addition

Derecognised or repaid (excluding
written off)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances

Changes to model used for
impairment calculations

Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations

Recoveries

Loans written off

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2020
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An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:

e B FE=FEEE fst
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BRI BT BT BRI
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(1,228,412) (96,965) (1,804,583) (3,129,960)
(805,059) - - (805,059)
538,184 38,487 524,281 1,100,952
(40,180) 40,180 - -
14,024 (14,024) - -
31,378 644 (32,022) -
33,784 (119,642) (1,270,175) (1,356,033)
185,574 (18,701) (519,882) (353,009)
- - (84,473) (84,473)
- - 678,059 678,059
(42,402) 2,125 (23,246) (63,523)
(1,313,109) (167,896) (2,532,041) (4,013,046)
ETEE PR BEIEE HaE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(1,314,079) (78,152) (1,411,506) (2,803,737)
(715,225) - - (715,225)
694,888 37,138 360,549 1,092,575
(24,163) 23,945 218 -
7,083 (171,363) 164,280 -
24,676 355 (25,031) -
22,438 84,080 (1,687,919) (1,581,401)
- - 3,179 3,179
34,206 2,234 - 36,440
76,808 10,223 (189,141) (102,110)
- - (64,217) (64,217)
- - 1,139,525 1,139,525
(35,044) (5,425) (94,520) (134,989)
(1,228,412) (96,965) (1,804,583) (3,129,960)
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23. SRE 23. Financial investments
2021

A BB st

AF A2

At fair value

through other PIEESREAIERTR
comprehensive At amortised st
income cost Total
BT BT BETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
[E£73 Treasury bills 52,059,928 - 52,059,928
Htr &85 Other debt securities 82,293,940 - 82,293,940
134,353,868 134,353,868
s Certificates of deposit 3,011,642 - 3,011,642
(BS54 AR GE 4R Total debt securities and

certificates of deposit 137,365,510 - 137,365,510
HAth Others - 592,486 592,486
JE A Impairment allowances - - .
- 592,486 592,486
[ifdharice= Equity securities 49,933 - 49,933
137,415,443 592,486 138,007,929
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23. Financial investments (continued)

2020

PAA g8 ket

AFA S

At fair value

through other
comprehensive PR AIEEE “EEt
income At amortised cost Total
AT T AT T SHET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
673 Treasury bills 46,278,659 - 46,278,659
HAE%E 5 Other debt securities 74,156,150 1,768,341 75,924,491
120,434,809 1,768,341 122,203,150
s Certificates of deposit 9,621,228 116,794 9,738,022

B8 27 AT e S8 Total debt securities and

certificates of deposit 130,056,037 1,885,135 131,941,172
T AE B Impairment allowances - (147) (147)
130,056,037 1,884,988 131,941,025
HAth, Others - 961,397 961,397
BB (S Impairment allowances - (67,290) (67,290)
- 894,107 894,107
S dhrces Equity securities 54,109 - 54,109
130,110,146 2,779,095 132,889,241
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23. Financial investments (continued)

HHBILAL S E S BT A
e Az 2 SRR AR

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances of financial investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income is, as follows:

AR B 2 AL oy i A
T
FMEEE  FEPEER  FE=REER st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT ABETT AETT BETT
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
w2021 1 H1H At 1 January 2021 (58,907) - (181,024) (239,931)
Hhn Addition (50,639) - - (50,639)
48 (R E 1 (R BLRER Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 19,384 - - 19,384
VEREE SN[ =Y Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations (5,575) - (1,074) (6,649)
[EE 12 E%E Exchange difference (1,532) - - (1,532)
B 2021 E12 A 31 H At 31 December 2021 (97,269) - (182,098) (279,367)
HPEE:  ETPEEE EEIEE HEET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BN TIT BETT
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
72020FE1H1H At 1 January 2020 (43,920) - (181,868) (225,788)
e Addition (35,876) - - (35876)
4% 1 Rl E E 28 (N LRGN Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 18,187 - - 18,187
TSR] Changes to model used for
impairment calculations 7,045 - - 7,045
NER Y v b Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations (3,638) - 844 (2,794)
PR A2EH Exchange difference (705) - - (705)
2020 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 (58,907) - (181,024)  (239,931)
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23. Financial investments (continued)

THBI B R AERH 2
SR R Rk (B 2
(5% ias I

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances of financial investments

at amortised cost is, as follows:

FMEEE  FEPEER  FE=REER st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT ABETT AETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
w2021 1 H1H At 1 January 2021 (12,115) (55,322) (67,437)
48 (R E 1 (R BLRER Derecognised or repaid (excluding
5H) written off) 12,115 - - 12,115
H R =P EG Transfers to Stage 3 - 55,322 (55,322) -
k(B S B Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations - - 55,322 55,322
% 2021412 H 31 H At 31 December 2021 . . . .
ETEE  BTMEE BEIEE HEET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BN TIT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
72020FE1H1H At 1 January 2020 (53,524) - - (53,524)
48 RS AR (R B RE Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 89 . . 89
W ISR Transfers to Stage 2 13,609  (13,609) - -
HAPN 2P B R g Impact on period end ECLs of
T ST HAR FHEATR LY exposures transferred between
Pz stages during the period - (42,213) - (42,213)
TSR] Changes to model used for
impairment calculations 346 500 - 846
NERIEE VR Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations 29,861 - - 29,861
PR AEEH Exchange difference (2,496) - - (2,496)
7 2020412 A 31 H At 31 December 2020 (12,115)  (55,322) - (67,437)
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23. &RiEE (8) 23. Financial investments (continued)
SR sy Eiit > o8E Financial investments are analysed by place of listing as follows:
WE e
2021
A fEE et
AF AR

At fair value through
other comprehensive DB ERE AT B

income At amortised cost

BT BETT
HK$°000 HK$°000
B MRS Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- RE& LN - Listed in Hong Kong 16,850,300 -
- REABDSN B - Listed outside Hong Kong 10,362,245 -
27,212,545 -
- JEEM - Unlisted 110,152,965 -
137,365,510 -
FAth Others
- JEE - Unlisted - 592,486
Rt Equity securities
- JEL - Unlisted 49,933 .
4zt Total 137,415,443 592,486
HAEZRFHIH Fiiss Market value of listed securities at
HE amortised cost )
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Financial investments (continued)

Financial investments are analysed by place of listing as follows (continued):

2020

DA e bt

A At £ g

At fair value through
other comprehensive DGR A ER T &2

income At amortised cost
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- Listed in Hong Kong 13,911,436 565,492
- Listed outside Hong Kong 9,501,322 1,202,716
23,412,758 1,768,208
- Unlisted 106,643,279 116,780
130,056,037 1,884,988
Others
- Unlisted - 894,107
Equity securities
- Unlisted 54,109 -
Total 130,110,146 2,779,095
Market value of listed securities at
amortised cost 1,780,157
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23. &RiEE (8) 23. Financial investments (continued)
SR E ST Financial investments are analysed by type of issuer as follows:
FUIT -
2021
A fEE et
AF AR

At fair value through

other comprehensive DB ERE AT B
income At amortised cost

BT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000
ENTEE Sovereigns 52,139,025 -
AN —4-=KiA Public sector entities 2,969,648 -
SRTT B HoAth 4 Riideds Banks and other financial institutions 54,799,251 592,486
INEREE Corporate entities 27,507,519 -
137,415,443 592,486
2020
DA e bt
AF AU S

At fair value through
other comprehensive DI ERATER T =

income At amortised cost

AHTIT AT

HK$’000 HK$’000

EHES Sovereigns 46,358,898 -
INEEBNL Public sector entities 2,631,574 -
SRTT B HoAth & Rilidens Banks and other financial institutions 53,643,974 2,779,095
NEFE Corporate entities 27,475,700 -
130,110,146 2,779,095
#2021 # 12 H 31 H » As at 31 December 2021, included financial investments at fair value through other
BFEAE (GBRITZE (BEAR) K comprehensive income of HK$2,969,648,000 which are eligible to be classified as public

ALY TS8R s m N & B sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules (2020: HK$2,631,574,000).

(VERIPRAYIN i=k=4lety N2
il & TR AT Rl 2
# W 2,969,648,000 T
(2020 4 :
2,631,574,000) -
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MBHFENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24, &Y 24. Investment properties
2021 2020
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
R1R1H At 1 January 341,080 355,230
AlEEHE Fair value losses - (2,950)
B REE Y - 8 Reclassification to properties, plant and
R (HfEE 25) equipment (Note 25) (13,470) (11,200)
®12H31H At 31 December 327,610 341,080
B 2 IRaEEEHLY The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of the
FIEFHARR AT leases as follows:
2021 2020
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
EEBRA Held in Hong Kong
FHAFHEY (i 50 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 153,240 177,240
FHAFELY (10 4£% 50 On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years)
) 174,370 163,840
327,610 341,080

2021412 H 31 H » %l As at 31 December 2021, investment properties were included in the balance sheet at

NEEABENZKEY valuation carried out at 31 December 2021 on the basis of their fair value by an independent
o TR R EET firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price
O METERTT A R A 57 that would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly transaction with market

2021 4£ 12 5 31 HMA R participants at the measurement date.
18 Ry BB P E AT 2 AL

B - AnEETETEEHE

AT BIE T =

MHSHENET—HL

EYFEFERSHIER
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25. W% ~ B8N Reakth

20211 A1 HZ
R FHE

WE

HIE# BT

Eiff

FERETES

BT A

(Bt 24)
VE 2 2 A

H2021 £ 12 H 31 HZ
MR E

12021 4£12 § 31 H
JRAAE A B
Fatines

H2021 £ 12 H 31 HZ
MR E

A A
ST -

HR2021 412531 H
PERAE
ffhE

Net book value at
1 January 2021
Additions
Disposals/Derecognition
Revaluation
Depreciation for the year
Reclassification from investment
properties
Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2021

At 31 December 2021
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value at
31 December 2021

25. Properties, plant and equipment

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:

At 31 December 2021

At cost
At valuation

236

Bt > BE

diiid

R it

Equipment, {EffEEE

BEE fixtures Right-of-use A
Premises and fittings assets Total
AETT A¥TR BT T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
7,220,090 553,131 447,517 8,220,738
100,786 250,396 610,924 962,106
- (10,921) (627) (11,548)
69,379 - - 69,379
(148,776) (151,233) (234,402) (534,411)
13,470 - - 13,470
21,505 12,218 6,309 40,032
7,276,454 653,591 829,721 8,759,766
7,276,454 1,575,447 1,293,292 10,145,193
- (921,856) (463,571)  (1,385,427)
7,276,454 653,591 829,721 8,759,766
- 1,575,447 1,293,292 2,868,739
7,276,454 - - 7,276,454
7,276,454 1,575,447 1,293,292 10,145,193
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25. W3¢ ~ E3M Bt

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
et~ EE
FHE
&l
Equipment,  {HfIiE&EE
FE fixtures and  Right-of-use 4Est
Premises fittings assets Total
BT BT BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20201 H1HZ Net book value at
NEELFE 1 January 2020 7,481,553 528,117 592,366 8,602,036
by Additions 12,706 132,272 87,524 232,502
HE Disposals - (1,533) - (1,533)
N Revaluation (190,714) - - (190,714)
HERETES Depreciation for the year (142,280)  (127,333) (249,521) (519,134)
A Transfer in 11,200 - - 11,200
P T2 7% Exchange difference 47,625 21,608 17,148 86,381
2020412 H 31 H>Z Net book value at
NEEDFE 31 December 2020 7,220,090 553,131 447,517 8,220,738
2020412 H 31 H At 31 December 2020
EAE S G E Cost or valuation 7,220,090 1,408,640 876,588 9,505,318
ZEtineE Accumulated depreciation - (855,509) (429,071)  (1,284,580)
202012 H 31 HZ Net book value at
e 31 December 2020 7,220,090 553,131 447,517 8,220,738
it E 2 B E S E The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
SIFTAE -
#2020 £ 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2020
HRAE At cost - 1,408,640 876,588 2,285,228
FSE At valuation 7,220,090 - - 7,220,090
7,220,090 1,408,640 876,588 9,505,318
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R (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
25. W3 ~ BEH RNt 25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
G e 2 BRTA(E HEFH 4U R iR The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
AR AT follows:
2021 2020
BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEBRA Held in Hong Kong
FHITH&T (i 50 4F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 3,897,750 4,346,583
HAFEZY (10 50 .
iﬂ)ﬁﬂ 9 (105% On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 2,512,027 2,097,590
EEBLIMNTA Held outside Hong Kong
HAFHZY (10 50 .
iﬂjﬁﬂ AL On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 769,530 738,542
JEHAFHEY (D 10 4F) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 96,247 37,375
7,276,454 7,220,090
#2021 412 A 31 H % As at 31 December 2021, premises were included in the balance sheet at valuation carried
NEEABERNZBE T out at 31 December 2021 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
eI M L R 2 BT Y surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be
HEHERTT AR A E]RY 2021 received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants at the
F£12 H 31 HUAREE measurement date.
FEFTIEET Z MG E -
EETEETEEHETER
B AT HYIE I T [ T
SUFNET—THFBENE
EUSAIER -
IRIE Ll > SE(LAER B As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
(GESFH N EEE LR recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and the income statement as follows:
EdiEne i AN
2021 2020
BT HERETTT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
g/ (&) sZEEEMWG Increase/(decrease) in valuation credited/
EEE > EiEWE S O (charged) to premises revaluation reserve
{#) 67,323 (184,028)
g/ () stiEsE 2 E Increase/(decrease) in valuation credited
{EIME, CRIE) /(charged)to income statement 2,056 (6,686)
69,379 (190,714)
2021 F12 H 31 H & As at 31 December 2021, the net book value of premises that would have been included in
R EE R A EIRE R the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated
S  REEC EEA depreciation was HK$1,004,855,000 (2020: HK$905,492,000).

RN 2 P E MR I E e
By 1,004,855,000 7T
(2020 £ : & W
905,492,000 7T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26. HEE 26. Other assets
2021 2020
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
H{El-yz3 Repossessed assets 7,335 7,220
EEE Precious metals 374,263 404,718
TEUSHETE K Fa(TE Accounts receivable and prepayments 1,222,854 3,650,770
1,604,452 4,062,708
B AE Impairment allowances (3,900) (4,661)
1,600,552 4,058,047

B AE AL (R 2 S LA
W

B2021E£1H1H

b n

E& I RAERY SR AE B (R R
)

LEE et 12

T 55 = S B

PR Pl B T B s
TR FRIR R RIS
&

WRIEES SRt 5

VE 2 A
#2021 £12 A 31 H

#2020 1H1H

B4

4 RERRER (BT LA
)

R
WEE=IE

HEPI IR R RIS
B EHTRTIHES AR

ey

SR g
S

HE 2= A
it 2020412 H 31 H

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:

At 1 January 2021

Addition

Derecognised or repaid (excluding
written off)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2020

Addition

Derecognised or repaid (excluding
written off)

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Changes to model used for
impairment calculations

Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2020
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FEE  E4BE F=RE &t

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BT BETRT  BRETT BETR

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(2,774) (18) (1,869) (4,661)

(380) - - (380)

493 18 12 523

(1) - 1 -

1 - (1 -

1 - - 1

5,016 - (1,249) 3,767

(3,151) - 1 (3,150)

(795) - (3,105) (3,900)
ETEE FTREEE E=REE HaE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

AT BT BT BT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(1,280) - (1,881) (3,161)

(1,962) - - (1,962)

25 - 1,151 1,176

1 Q) - -

1 - (M -

- (17) (354) (371)

1 1 - 2

939 1) (784) 154

(499) - - (499)

(2,774) (18) (1,869) (4,661)
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MsEENEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. A EE bt AJB2S 27. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Z RS R

2021 2020
BT HRTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
R EE Trading liabilities
- SNEELS TR K (E A - Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and
bk Notes 6,415,312 6,650,987
#2021 £ 12 H 31 HZ At 31 December 2021, there were no financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
HIGE R A e fE A bET or loss (2020: Nil).
ARz &Rl & (2020
o) o
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MBEENE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
28. ZEFEZ ke HEEt  28. Deposits from customers and hedge accounting

(a) ZEERK (a) Deposits from customers
2021 2020
BT HEETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BNHATE R R A3 :
! HETA&GE;K Demand deposits and current accounts
K
- NH| - Corporate 34,464,942 42,636,283
- {EA - Personal 4,098,393 3,914,497
38,563,335 46,550,780
BT Savings deposits
- AH - Corporate 47,794,956 33,746,258
- {EA - Personal 56,760,350 54,070,216
104,555,306 87,816,474
T ~ FHA R m Time, call and notice deposits
HIFERK
- NH] - Corporate 152,873,966 131,872,167
- EA - Personal 87,788,779 85,390,507
240,662,745 217,262,674
383,781,386 351,629,928
(b) $fdarzt (b) Hedge accounting
FYNEEBRyEE Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
2021412 H31H> As at 31 December 2021, a proportion of the Groups’s RMB-denominated deposits from
AR E FLEE o N R customers of HK$ 2,223,346,000 (2020: HK$2,162,425,000) were designated as a
FHEME P fERa hedging instrument to hedge against the net investments in foreign operations.
e 2,223,346,000 T
(12020 4F @ & W
2,162,425,000 7T ) B ¥t
HTHE > RIS
HEE -
FENGH R 2 UL There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income statement
T BV S TR U 2 25 PRI T during the year (2020: Nil).

% (2020 4« fE) -
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MBEENE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
29. EBfTEBESENEFE 29. Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

TG
2021 2020
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
(B R RATTGES o Debt securities and certificates of deposit, at

AR amortised cost
- 1Rk - Certificates of deposit 18,748,012 10,747,857
- Bt 5 - Other debt securities 13,007,215 13,266,578
31,755,227 24,014,435
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30. HAMRIE R

HE&R
HAEIRIHA
Heff

BROKE b B E R & ]
B

HH oA B R 2 BB o AT
W

B20214E£1H1H

b n

BRGNSk EE )

LEE et 12

TR

P Pl P T B
TR IR Y
B

S SR

VE 2 A
2021412 A 31 H

2020F1 85 1H

Epill|

SRS (T ELAEREH)

WEH PR

R R

HAPA P B e e
AR TR
2

BT
i SR

HE 2= A
2020812 H31H

30. Other accounts and provisions

Lease liabilities

Other accounts payable

Provisions

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Impairment allowances for loan commitments

and financial guarantee contracts

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:

At 1 January 2021

Addition

Derecognised (excluding written off)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2020

Addition

Derecognised (excluding written off)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Changes to model used for
impairment calculations

Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2020

243

2021 2020
BT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
865,378 454,071

17,812,855 18,052,064

51,899 54,660

292,367 164,014

19,022,499 18,724,809
SPRE STRE S=RE 85t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETIT AT AETT BETT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
163,377 637 - 164,014
270,195 - - 270,195
(128,666) (625) - (129,291)
1 W] - -
(5) 5 - -
- 12 - 12
(19,720) (10) - (19,730)
7,167 - - 7,167
292,349 18 - 292,367
FMEEE SRR F=REE dEst
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT BT BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
89,558 18 - 89,576
152,240 - - 152,240
(90,681) - - (90,681)
17 17) - -
) 1 - -
(13) 637 - 624
(11,493) (74) - (11,567)
11,769 69 - 11,838
11,984 - - 11,984
163,377 637 - 164,014
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BIERIARIRE TGt
RRIEEA25% T ARSI 5
Bl REAAE B
SAELAE A e IR D
Epa v &N S
FfRIE IR e -

BEARRNZELRIA
HiE) /AHETEEES
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31. Deferred taxation

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and

unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the balance sheet, and
the movements during the year are as follows:

DUR HARAEFEN 2 S 8

T

A 2021 &£ At 1 January
1H1H 2021

fEI(F)z s Charged/(credited)
#= to income

statement

(EVfEsCHAD (Credited)/charged

EILIE to other

comprehensive
income

PR 57 723 Exchange difference
#2021 4 At 31 December
12 H 31 2021
H
#2020 At 1 January
1A1H 2020
&/ (B g Charged/(credited)
%= to income
statement
HEnHAM A Credited to other
e comprehensive
income
PR 9272240 Exchange difference
#2020 4 At 31 December
12 H 31 2020
H

2021
DoEETE
Accelerated VIR ESL BEAER
tax Property | Z2i] Impairment Hith, sa=t
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance Other Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
44,669 1,136,956 (557,900) (189,092) 434,633
1,393 1,947 (39,395) 47,721 11,666
(3,306) 28,047 24,741
3,523 (13,495) (977) (10,949)
46,062 1,139,120 (610,790) (114,301) 460,091
2020
bz
FiEH o
Accelerated YIS A A

tax Property E5iE Impairment HAth 4=t
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance Other Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
40,868 1,173,512 - (389,790) (37,466) 787,124
3,801 2,554 (142,834) (116,480) (252,959)
(46,489) (33,751) (80,240)
7,379 (25,276) (1,395) (19,292)
44,669 1,136,956 (557,900) (189,092) 434,633
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. REMIE (&) 31. Deferred taxation (continued)
&R EERER A EIRAER Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
JEEEHRAERIEAEK legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
$5 0 IR AEFR I K [5]— taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
EUHERE - RTRTRHERDE AR offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:
R TE RS T 2 B R FAE A T
BE A - TYITE&E
BERNYIRZ &% CEF
NS
2021 2020
AT HEETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
IRV Deferred tax assets (352,791) (430,257)
IR TE A (S Deferred tax liabilities 812,882 864,890
460,091 434,633
2021 2020
AT T IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
IRIEFRIEE E (i 12 Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
{iE B &= twelve months (383,092) (337,687)
IRAERRIEE(E (FEE 12 Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
(EVERESARD) twelve months 884,871 903,250
501,779 565,563
2021412 H 31 H A& As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
ER B R IR AL AR T losses amounting to HK$20,225,000 (2020: HK$2,214,000). These tax losses do not expire
2R E R B under the current tax legislation.

20,225,000 j¢ (2020 4 :
#il% 2,214,000 7T) - %
BTG BRI B
HIEREHAR -
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32.

33.

BEAR

FEHESH AT 2029
FEFHA> 700,000,000
FITE B

FET5ARITRY 2019 4 11
A 20 H & T =
700,000,000 257 1F &
ZH T LR R a(EEE
T = MRy 4
A 10 FHAR EZE (T 2
) (AR GRITH#(E
)RR 2580 - 15
TEREUSEA 2029 4FE 11 F 20
HEHE > BHEGEEH R
2024 4£ 11 F 20 { - fh3
THEHBHEMREN 4
BB 3.80% FEEME—
Ko Hik o (HZEIEARATEEE
MR FE R R
GEATER 5 FHIEE
B (25 S 3 218 B T+
IS SERTES A AR
SRAT I PN B M I H B
DRI 755 ol 7 oK 5
AL F B AT Y (] H T
DIZEmiE EE A (TR
5y ) B -

SZN

BT
7,000,000 f AL

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
32. Subordinated liabilities

2021 2020
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
US$700 million fixed rate subordinated notes issued
due 2029 at amortised cost
5,451,286 5,416,390

This represents US$700,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year subordinated notes qualifying
as Tier 2 capital of the Bank issued on 20 November 2019 in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules (the “Notes”), which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Notes
will mature on 20 November 2029 with an optional redemption date falling on 20 November
2024. Interest at 3.80% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and
the Notes will bear interest at the prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 218 basis points.
The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes at the
option of the Bank in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption date or
for tax or regulatory reasons at any time prior to maturity of the Notes.

33. Share capital

2021 2020
AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Issued and fully paid:
7,000,000 ordinary shares 3,144,517 3,144,517
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34. BHMRATR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34. Additional equity instruments

12 [EFRTTAAIERETRER
M EATIR

AHRITHY 20176 H 2 H
BITTEEE 12 EET
CHOBRAE R ST R A R
B 93.15 (BT AR A
JE BT RPN — R E AR
5 (THINEARTH ) -
ok AP EAR T BN
2022 4F 6 H 2 HE{EER]
Ve [o] H BHAT > SEHEEF AR E
i+ 5.00% - ZE A TTE
HE [l > SRR 5
FAER 5 AR
2 BRNEENZ R
WIMESEITFIZER -

EEREFLERT—RA
AT A RIS BN E

TR B R E HUHFE
R0 MACHIFIEA G R
15 - 281> ASRATIREE IR E
17 3 38 R PR B 2 I S
HE T —REBFE ML

Bl &8 B EAART R
BA BT A%
EE HBINEAT AN
e GHESER
TR 2 H A5 T LTl

722022 426 2 HE{Ef
HARHRE B AR THER
JiE ] e i B P A R AE T Y
BYINEATR HHAZES]
B PR S AR -

2021 N > AT
BONEARTHERE 6 TH
FEIT EhorRl 2021 £
6 H1HAf12021 4 12 H
1 HEXRSfT 3 TH#+T -
(2020 4 : 6 THFETT) °

2021 2020
AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
US$1,200 million perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities 9,314,890 9,314,890

On 2 June 2017, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1
capital securities (“additional equity instruments”) with a face value of US$1,200 million
(equivalent to HK$9,315 million net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 5.00% coupon until the first call date on 2 June 2022.
The coupon will be reset every 5 years if the additional equity instruments are not redeemed
to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing 5-year US Treasury rate plus a fixed initial
spread.

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to cancel coupon
payment (subjected to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions of the additional
equity instruments) and the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative. However, the Bank is
stopped from declaring dividend to its ordinary shareholders unless the next scheduled
coupon payment is paid.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down to the amount as
directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that the Bank would become
non-viable if there is no written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional equity instruments from
2 June 2022 or any subsequent coupon payment date, but subject to restriction as set out in
the terms and conditions.

The Bank has distributed coupon payment for additional equity instruments for a total amount
US$60 million during the year 2021, for each US$30 million was distributed on 1 June 2021
and 1 December 2021 separately (2020: US$60 million).
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PRI (@)

() &EERAIZEERIAT
LEREZRA
(ftt) iR

Ires
IR EE RS
PrEE A AR [l
EifisE 2 S (kR
LRI/ €]
HEE A ESH
RIEEEMESH
JRES Hida s 3 {6 H
ZAFIERTT R FeAt
SRRV ER
JRES g i 3 {6 H
AT e HoAth g
Rl 2 e ST
ZEH
D EE b AERE
ZERERE 2B
PTEER TR 2 %)
B R HAM AR TH 2 85
Ed)
BRI R 2 )
Hith g 2 58)
FRAT e HLAth AR
IR RSB Z )
AVIRIER T N i
ERIAEHEZEY)
TP )
AR s AE i 8%
Ed)

TR

R

i

PRI ATSC BT B2 R
A

WEEBIHERETE
i
- AR
- EAFIE
- ERE

before taxation

Operating profit

Depreciation

Net charge of impairment allowances

Unwind of discount on impairment allowances
Advances written off net of recoveries

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Interest expense on subordinated liabilities

Change in balances with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
over three months

Change in placements with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
over three months

Change in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Change in derivative financial instruments

Change in advances and other accounts

Change in financial investments

Change in other assets

Change in deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Change in financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Change in deposits from customers

Change in other accounts and provisions

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Operating cash inflow before taxation

Cash flows from operating activities included:
- Interest received

- Interest paid
- Dividend received

248

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
35. $EAHERERNE:E  35. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash inflow/(outflow)

2021 2020
BT HTT
HK$°000 HK$'000

3,749,881 4,229,255
534,411 519,134
1,499,269 1,359,147
- (3,179)
(593,586) (1,075,308)
27,728 18,838
209,955 209,386
(208,549) 635,824
(894,347) 7,561,189

(4,517,232) (10,757,524)
(872,184) 853,943

(15,835,318)

(14,998,176)

(5,549,854) 9,796,568
2,461,406 287,570
(11,410,344) 2,080,195
(235,675) 1,602,428
32,151,458 5,742,146
(224,774) (7,107,403)
(103,967) 117,314
188,278 1,071,347
12,017,776 12,587,648
(5,474,353) (6,658,081)
1,905 2,165
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

35. & MERNEE 35. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
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(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
within three months

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions with original maturity within three
months

Treasury bills with original maturity within three
months

Debt securities and

certificates of deposit in issue
At 1 January
Issuance during the year

At 31 December

Subordinated liabilities
At 1 January
Cash flows:

Cost paid for issuance of

subordinated liabilities

Distribution payment for subordinated liabilities
Non-cash changes:

Amortisation of discount and issuance cost

Foreign exchange movement

At 31 December
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(c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2021 2020
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$000

54,876,086 48,556,255

1,233,815 -
274,984 1,182,972
56,384,885 49,739,227
2021 2020
BT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$000
24,014,435 15,471,116
7,740,792 8,543,319
31,755,227 24,014,435
5,416,390 5,438,386
- (168)

(206,870) (206,187)
209,955 209,386
31,811 (25,027)
5,451,286 5,416,390
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35. &ZEEHERERNE: 35. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (continued)

36.

Lease liabilities
At 1 January
Cash flows:
Payment of lease liabilities
Non-cash changes:
Additions
Others

At 31 December

Contingent liabilities and commitments

2021 2020
BT AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

454,071 582,911
(232,940) (267,165)
608,176 86,947
36,071 51,378
865,378 454,071

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of contingent
liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is prepared
with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital adequacy ratio.

Direct credit substitutes

Transaction-related contingencies

Trade-related contingencies

Asset sales with recourse

Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice

Other commitments with an original maturity of
- up to one year
- over one year

Credit risk-weighted amount

2021 2020

BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
26,344,345 12,329,692
1,671,736 1,439,767
20,075,844 18,734,669
3,945,292 498,543
117,673,275 109,315,008
2,438,374 2,251,261
14,643,713 16,002,949
186,792,579 160,571,889
21,882,601 16,409,407

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.

The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics

of each type of contract.
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MBERIEE (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

37. BAKIE 37. Capital commitments
AREEARA A B % The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
2 BEARIESOT statements:
2021 2020
BT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
[ e e NEE R T Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 1,147,563 59,203
EbEEAREL Authorised but not contracted for 4,325 2,659
1,151,888 61,862
A EEARRIE R 57 R The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase premises,
WA B ~ BHSHEIR R computer equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.

WfF > LR AR 21T
BRETRRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Operating lease commitments

As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases:

2021 2020
AT HTT
HK$’000 HK$’000

Land and buildings
- Not later than one year 8,681 8,224
- Later than one year but not later than five years 5,002 4,226
13,683 12,450

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with leases
typically for a period from one to five years. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits.

Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities of
the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the directors
believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the amounts involved
in these claims are not expected to be material.
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(a) HEENE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
40. Segmental reporting

(a) By operating segment
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The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services.
Personal Banking serves individual customers while Corporate Banking deals with non-
individual customers. The Treasury segment is responsible for managing the capital,
liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments and receives funds from
deposit taking activities of Personal Banking and Corporate Banking. These inter-
segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing mechanism of
the Group. The assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted to reflect the
effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the profit and loss information in
relation to Treasury is not comparable to the assets and liabilities information about
Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by supporting units. Charges
are paid to this segment from other business segments based on market rates per square
foot for their occupation of the Group’s premises. The exchange difference arising from
capital of our subsidiary, NCB (China), which is recognised in its income statement, is
also included in this class.

“Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of items related to the
Group as a whole and totally independent of the other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include items directly
attributable to the segment. For management overheads, allocations are made on
reasonable bases.
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40. Segmental reporting (continued)

Year ended 31 December
2021

Net interest
income/(expense)

- External

- Inter-segment

Net fee and commission
income/(expense)

Net trading gain/(loss)

Net gain on financial
instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on other
financial assets

Other operating
(expense)/income

Net operating income
before impairment
allowances

Net reversal/(charge) of
impairment allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit/(loss)

Net loss from disposal/
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment

Profit/(loss) before
taxation
At 31 December 2021

ASSETS
Segment assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Year ended 31 December
2021

Other information

Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Amortisation of securities

(a) By operating segment (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

EASRT EERAT
Personal Corporate 51 v Hitn NEE AHHES xE
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
BT BBTT AT BT BETT BETT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
481,630 4,228,205 1,615,580 1 6,325,416 - 6,325,416
240,582 196,577 (437,159) - - - -
722,212 4,424,782 1,178,421 1 6,325,416 6,325,416
842,772 755,811 120,328 240 (3,607) 1,715,544 - 1,715,544
40,143 (195,859) 341,584 125,123 (102) 310,889 - 310,889
- 61,759 - 61,759 - 61,759
(13,725) 167,017 - 153,292 - 153,292
(6,095) (18,781) 24,880 147,721 11,149 158,874 (136,359) 22,515
1,599,032 4,952,228 1,893,989 273,084 7,441 8,725,774 (136,359) 8,589,415
547,171 (2,080,762) 31,156 3,166  (1,499,269) - (1,499,269)
2,146,203 2,871,466 1,925,145 273,084 10,607 7,226,505 (136,359) 7,090,146
(1,141,261) (1,581,151)  (222,510) (426,231) (105,471)  (3,476,624) 136,359  (3,340,265)
1,004,942 1,290,315 1,702,635 (153,147) (94,864) 3,749,881 - 3,749,881
- (7,831) - (7,831) - (7,831)
1,004,942 1,290,315 1,702,635 (160,978) (94,864) 3,742,050 - 3,742,050
65,264,020 228,924,067 232,454,507 9,137,896 550,510 536,331,000 536,331,000
150,462,636 249,924,033 66,110,363 2,886 3,497,158 469,997,076 469,997,076
- 351,182 - 351,182 - 351,182
58,189 37,592 4,215 426,093 8,322 534,411 534,411
- (283,811) - (283,811) - (283,811)
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MEENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40. Y EHRE (8) 40. Segmental reporting (continued)
(a) #BESE (8 (a) By operating segment (continued)
EASRET RERTT
Personal Corporate &7 fila -4 HAth Nt GHHEH s
Banking Banking Treasury Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
AT T BT T T AT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

& 2020 F 12 H 31 Year ended 31 December
H 2020

FRFIEUA (1) Net interest

income/(expense)
- Ak - External (258,654) 4,528,931 2,098,210 - - 6,368,487 - 6,368,487
- B - Inter-segment 1,140,731 165,166  (1,305,897) - - -
882,077 4,694,097 792,313 - - 6,368,487 - 6,368,487
FIRFE RMEU A~ Netfee and commission
(FZH) income/(expense) 840,539 684,905 95,274 61 (1,323) 1,619,456 - 1,619,456
FRoMEWGE/(B51R)  Nettrading gain/(loss) 39,499 436291 (667,019) 272,085 11 80,867 . 80,867
DA MEEEET AfE25  Net gain on financial
&R T BRI instruments at fair value
through profit or loss - - 435,846 - - 435,846 - 435,846
HAth S FEE > F Net (loss)/gain on other
(E518) i financial assets - (14,529) 264,298 - - 249,769 - 249,769
HAn&EUL A () Other operating
income/(expense) 23,248 (67,735) 44,487 145,403 7,332 152,735 (134,147) 18,588
FEHURE AEMH T2 54E  Net operating income
BULA before impairment
allowances 1,785,363 5,733,029 965,199 417,549 6,020 8,907,160 (134,147) 8,773,013
LS RO ()  Net reversal/(charge) of
impairment allowances 371,524 (1,703,766) (25,950) - (955) (1,359,147) - (1,359,147)
Net operating income 2,156,887 4,029,263 939,249 417,549 5,065 7,548,013 (134,147) 7,413,866
Operating expenses (1,065,254) (1,259,203) (446,381) (407,186) (140,734) (3,318,758) 134,147 (3,184,611)
g (i) Operating profit/(loss) 1,091,633 2,770,060 492,868 10,363 (135,669) 4,229,255 - 4,229,255
HEYEE A o ESR > Net loss from fair value
R adjustments on
investment properties - - - (2,950) - (2,950) - (2,950)
HE EEYE - 888 Netloss from disposal/
V&4 P o] revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment - - - (7,899) - (7,899) - (7,899)
ERfaTSA] . (E5E) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,091,633 2,770,060 492,868 (486) (135,669) 4,218,406 - 4,218,406
#2020 £ 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2020
HE ASSETS
SrEEE Segment assets 61,054,867 219,333,199 214,741,486 8,616,662 1,951,947 505,698,161 - 505,698,161
afi LIABILITIES
S EE Segment liabilities 145,604,471 221,972,695 71,631,122 3,056 3,459,096 442,670,440 - 442,670,440
#E 2020 12 H 31 Year ended 31 December
H 2020
HAtrEpkt Other information
EAM Capital expenditure - - - 144,978 - 144,978 - 144,978
b3 Depreciation 54,919 33,112 3,423 407,174 20,506 519,134 - 519,134
Egan: 1] Amortisation of securities - - (73,790) - - (73,790) - (73,790)
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MEERINEE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40. Y EHRE (8) 40. Segmental reporting (continued)
(b) HzHhEEISRESY (b) By geographical area
DITERHERENE AT The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations of the
I 3 B SEH B W1 subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the locations of the branches responsible for
RERTEE Hifiea®s reporting the results or booking the assets:
R EEBR A ERIRZ
S TR ERN Y
2021 2020
TRHUBE 2R L TRHUREEGRT
ZBEBRA BEsR Al P UN FRAS AT
Net operating =yl Net operating gl
income before Profit income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
AR IT BEWETIT BT T IT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
A Hong Kong 5,673,138 2,798,991 5,661,635 3,550,593
o R Y A Mainland of China 2,916,277 943,059 3,111,378 667,813
=t Total 8,589,415 3,742,050 8,773,013 4,218,406
2021
BRARAFENRE
Contingent
=3 Haf JEREERE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
o Hong Kong 356,529,276 309,300,665 6,987,733 65,215,675
o R AT Mainland of China 179,801,724 160,696,411 2,107,651 121,576,904
=t Total 536,331,000 469,997,076 9,095,384 186,792,579
2020
BRREIRE
Contingent
HEE AR IEREEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT BT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
o Hong Kong 336,658,287 289,806,208 7,038,442 60,975,919
o R A 3, Mainland of China 169,039,874 152,864,232 1,531,652 99,595,970
=r1s Total 505,698,161 442,670,440 8,570,094 160,571,889
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MBERMEE (88) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

41. EREEE 41. Assets pledged as security

7’2021 £ 12 H 31 H » As at 31 December 2021, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$8,460,152,000
N~ 2 A EE® (2020: HK$8,408,994,000) were secured by assets deposited with central depositories to
8,460,152,000 sT ( 2020 facilitate settlement operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
4 N 8,408,994,000 HK$8,546,658,000 (2020: HK$17,562,996,000) were secured by debt securities and bills
7T ) BLAERA PR related to sale and repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group
LR LMERGEE Y BEE to secure these liabilities was HK$17,271,885,000 (2020: HK$27,016,893,000) mainly
FEH - [LAN » AEEE B E included in “Trading assets” and “Financial investments”.

&R RIS TR R
EREHZa BB
8,546,658,000 7T (2020
¢ M5l 17,562,996,000
L) AEEBERILES
R 2 B R
e 17,271,885,000 T
(2020 4 : & W
27,016,893,000 7T ) A
BT RG MR R &
RS MIPIAR -
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MBERMEE (88) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

42. SR T H 158

42. Offsetting financial instruments

TNERYIRAEECIKE 2 The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
AT M PR SE E AR e R enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.
BRI K sm T A
2021
FRARBEEBTTEHZ
REEGERT RAEAES L e
B EmERE  PIITRISR Related amounts
CHE 4R Bl E AR LR not set off in the balance
HEELEE Gross amounts  Net amounts sheet
Gross of recognised of financial BELZ
amounts of financial assets e
recognised liabilities set  presented in SRTE Cash
financial off inthe  the balance Financial collateral ]
assets _balance sheet sheet _instruments received Net amount
T T BT T BETIT BETT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
AR T E Derivative financial
instruments 409,124 - 409,124 (275,561) (68,847) 64,716
HAthEzE Other assets 873,975 (753,279) 120,696 - - 120,696
1,283,099 (753,279) 529,820 (275,561) (68,847) 185,412
2021
FREAREEEBRTEHZ
NHEAsR il
REEAMET Tlragm  Related amounts
CRES4HE H3> Crmie &3y not setoff in the balance
=it BUEEESEE  Net amounts sheet
Gross Gross amounts of financial [tiiv v
amounts of  of recognised liabilities S
recognised financial assets presented in SRITH Cash
financial set offin the  the balance Financial collateral
liabilities balance sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
=T Liabilities
TTHESMTR Derivative financial
instruments 521,805 - 521,805 (275,561) (212,232) 34,012
Hir & & Other liabilities 934,757 (753,279) 181,478 - - 181,478
1,456,562 (753,279) 703,283 (275,561) (212,232) 215,490
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WEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
42. SR T E 24 (88) 42. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

B Assets

1R TR Derivative financial
instruments

HAth & Other assets

=T Liabilities

TTHESMTR Derivative financial
instruments

HArefE Other liabilities

EREEEHITASIMTE TR
TR B2 S Ay S R AR
Atk o i S A Y B M SRR
TERVEM > IR - ST 2
Io8 <8 T R AR B

2020
*ﬁﬁ@é@%\%ﬂ%qﬁﬁﬁz
WEEAERY NEEARE AR 5285
R OIS TYIRISR Related amounts
St il 2 (4 i gag notsetoff in the balance
BEEENEEE  Gross amounts Net amounts of sheet
Gross of recognised financial EE
amounts of financial assets 5
recognised liabilities set off  presented in SR T E Cash
financial  in the balance the balance Financial collateral Pzl
assets sheet sheet instruments received  Net amount
HBHETIT b AT AT AHTIT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
514,215 - 514,215 (507,535) (5,349) 1,331
1,504,891 (1,278,696) 226,195 - - 226,195
2,019,106 (1,278,696) 740,410 (507,535) (5,349) 227,526
2020
FEREBEABETIRH
NIRRT P

REEAMEET YIRS Related amounts
3> Ol 4 affssg  notset off in the balance

Bl & ZELE%E Net amounts of sheet

Gross amounts financial AR

amounts of of recognised liabilities RS

recognised financial assets presented in ERTHE Cash
financial set off in the the balance Financial collateral P |
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged  Net amount
HEHETIL WETT OBETT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,710,709 - 1,710,709 (507,535) (510,362) 692,812
1,348,560 (1,278,696) 69,864 - - 69,864

3,059,269 (1,278,696) 1,780,573 (507,535) (510,362) 762,676

For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale and repurchase transactions
entered into by the Group, related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an
event of default or other predetermined events occur.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

43. Transfers of financial assets

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no transferred financial assets of the Group
that do not qualify for derecognition.

44. Loans to directors

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2021 2020
BT ATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding
at year end 37,497 498
Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding during the year 46,182 535
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MR (8)
45. FE > HRIE A 1355 45. Significant related party transactions
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

General information of the parent companies:

The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings Co., Limited (“Cinda
Financial Holdings”), the Group’s ultimate holding company is China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda”) which is a state-owned financial enterprise
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) by the Ministry of Finance (the
“MOF”) and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Hong Kong Stock Exchange").

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings which is in turn
controlled by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited (“Cinda Hong Kong”).
China Cinda is the controlling entity of Cinda Hong Kong and its major shareholder
and de facto controller is MOF, which is one of the ministries under the State Council
of the PRC Government, primarily responsible for state fiscal revenue and
expenditures, and taxation policies.

China Cinda has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The majority of transactions with China Cinda arises from deposits from customers and
disposal of loans and advances. As at 31 December 2021, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$14,123,405,000 (2020: HK$18,219,567,000) and
HK$1,197,776,000( (2020: Nil) respectively. The aggregate amount of expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions and the net loss arising from disposal with
China Cinda for the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$49,292,000 (2020:
HK$388,867,000) and HK$357,316,000 (2020: Nil) respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. X ERIE A 1355 45. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(&)

(a) B2 B B R E]
2 46 > Fo 45 o o
IR (@)

RERIY BE BB B HEA T
N A IREEPFN o
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(12020 % : & W
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F 202112 431 H
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(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with Cinda Hong Kong arises from deposits from
customers. As at 31 December 2021, the related aggregate amount of the Group was
HK$4,911,717,000 (2020: HK$6,917,977,000). The aggregate amount of expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with Cinda Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2021 was HK$20,773,000 (2020: HK$46,160,000).

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arises from financial investments. As at 31 December 2021, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$ 592,486,000 (2020: HK$959,214,000). The aggregate
amount of income of the Group arising from these transactions with other companies
controlled by the parent companies for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
HK$48,092,000 (2020: HK$ 85,080,000).
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MeEETEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
45. X ERIE A 1355 45. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(8
(a) A E R REAE] (a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
Y& HAi A\ B # controlled by the parent companies (continued)

TR 5 (8D

KRRy B RN T2 2 The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
HAMAFIARZ SR E LT arises from derivative financial instruments. As at 31 December 2021, the related
AR T B2 2021 £ aggregate amount of the Group was HK$19,857,000 (2020: HK$72,992,000) for the
12 A 31 H > AEEH asset side and HK$57,991,000 (2020: Nil) for the liability side respectively. The
RE S AR E B TR S R aggregate amount of income/expenses of the Group arising from these transactions
EE i 19,857,000 with other companies controlled by the parent companies for the year ended 31
gt (2020 4 : & owx December 2021 was income HK$339,000 (2020: HK$103,993,000) for derivative
72,992,000 7T) &ITAE financial assets and expenses HK$59,585,000 (2020: Nil) for derivative financial
& & E o & liabilities.

57,991,000 7 ( 2020
) - BE 2021 4
12 7 31 HuRfFRRE > 8
(SYAIEE I KA
AL B T
AU A R S H S8Ry
AR SRR E B
i 339,000 7T 2020 4E:
Hsl 103,993,000 7T)
KA AR - B

59,585,000 7T ( 2020
F-

263



) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

MeEETEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
45. X ERIE A 1355 45. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(8
(a) A E R REAE] (a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
Y& HAi A\ B # controlled by the parent companies (continued)
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The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arises from advances to customers and deposits from customers. As at 31 December
2021, the related aggregate amount of the Group was HK$149,533,000 (2020:
HK$49,184,000) and HK$ 6,397,258,000 (2020: HK$7,656,394,000) respectively. The
aggregate amount of income and expenses of the Group arising from these
transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies for the period
ended 31 December 2021 were HK$ 4,939,000 (2020: HK$10,000,000) and HK$
84,090,000 (2020: HK$139,305,000) respectively.

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arises from property, plant and equipment, other assets and other accounts and
provisions. As at 31 December 2021, the related aggregate amount of the Group was
HK$401,409,000 (2020: HK$24,069,000) and HK$641,089,000 (2020:
HK$34,239,000), of which HK$391,468,000 (2020: Nil) represent right-of-use assets
and HK$529,950,000 (2020: Nil) represent lease liabilities arising from lease
agreements entered into with other companies controlled by the parent companies. The
aggregate amount of net expenses of the Group arising from these transactions with
other companies controlled by the parent companies for the year ended 31 December
2021 was HK$9,018,000 (net income of 2020: HK$15,838,000).
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45. THE 7 HRE#E A1 45. Significant related party transactions (continued)
5 (&)

(a) HRAE KA E (a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

P42 HA AN S EITH controlled by the parent companies (continued)

x5 (&)
HEEF 2021 F11 H 17 The group has acquired NCB Wealth Management Advisor Limited (previously known
H A= g iR e A IR as “Cinda International Wealth Management Advisor Limited”) on 17 November 2021
AN HE DIKYAEE 883,000 from Cinda International Holdings Limited with approximated amount of HK$883,000.

7o WSO R R

B AR AT (AT
SN

BARAE ).

i i @goh - BAEAM Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies and the other
UNGEIDS &S YVANCIE AT | g =" companies controlled by the parent companies are not considered material.

L2 B HEFTHI R 553l

B

REBEFEEFEG R The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of
S E R TR TS business which include loans, investment securities and money market transactions.

o EAEEK TR

BEREWETERS -
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MBERIEE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. TEAME A5, 45. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(&)

(b) EAB P18 S ~ (T (b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
N B R At state controlled entities
BRI TR S
e A A B A R The Group is subject to the control of the MOF of the PRC Government, which also
EAREEE IS > I8 directly or indirectly controls a significant number of entities through its government
R TS (% authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities. The Group enters into
T~ [ SR R EA R banking transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state
HiEfE S B i controlled entities in the normal course of business at commercial terms.

R HAMERE - A
SEEE—frrE S R

BURFAE ~ (RS - [T
Ja A o LAt B 2
HRGHET H BIRIT TS

T e
EET SR EAR FIR These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:
RTRFIEIE
- fEE - RS MIE - lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;
ORFIFEZAFRN S
- SRITHEZE FER R4S - inter-bank balance taking and placing;
5 5
- HE S IEE - Y RE - sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
(] E L A R A 2 controlled entities;
BepTas T 2 (555
- FRALAINGE ~ DEZR Ko AH R - rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;
&R |
- RAMEHES D & - provision of fiduciary activities; and
MEE NI - E - purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunications and postage services.
TH - EEKEHBEAR
% o
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MERRMEE (88) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. FE > HRIE A3 E 45. Significant related party transactions (continued)
€:-))
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(c) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including Directors and other Senior Management. The Group accepts deposits from
and grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary
course of business. During both the current and prior years, no material transaction
was conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its holding

companies, as well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December is

detailed as follows:

Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits
Post-employment benefits

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

2021 2020

St T BETIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
52,827 44,377
3,705 3,342
56,532 47,719

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate sums of amounts due from subsidiaries and
amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during
the normal course of business at commercial terms are HK$946,715,000 (2020:

HK$115,000) and HK$568,252,000 (2020: HK$1,663,287,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

46. International claims

LA o4 )52 WA R
HUTRSGT C BB Rk
VSRS R M A - B
i IR S TRt
s AR 1% LI 5
Tz m AR R A &
o - HEEMERERTA &
W 2 BS R B AR S
WE G - E T ZEIRA

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties

return of international

after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office
is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the country where its head office
is located.

Pt B A 3 TP et
A > A RS 2= i
PRANZ B - 5 S
AT T o R
e BT 2 48T
FRTAEH -

B B8 1 B 2R Bl
HEsT R & 1k
PR RE4EAE 10%E0L 1

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of
the aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:

AR
2021
FESRTRANGE S
Non-bank private sector
JRERAT B
LRI FeRil
BT Non-bank LN
BT Official financial Non-financial k=t
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
R P Mainland of China 40,469,331 1,911,300 7,391,997 61,445,553 111,218,181
Fics Hong Kong 3,220,875 9,820 16,387,471 31,385,054 51,003,220
2020
FESRATRA AR
Non-bank private sector
FESRAT
RS JE<Fl
BT Non-bank LN i
ST Official financial  Non-financial (EH
Banks sector institutions  private sector Total
AT AT AT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
o [B7] AT Mainland of China 34,673,834 1,476,345 4,629,391 54,192,957 94,972,527
i Hong Kong 1,443,147 16,656 12,088,085 36,578,686 50,126,574
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

47. BEAERKEZSE  47. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity
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(a) Balance sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Advances and other accounts

Financial investments

Interests in subsidiaries

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Certificates of deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities
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2021 2020
AT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

30,636,313 26,269,510
8,723,287 6,497,758
455,043 427,350
208,547,028 197,243,415
99,812,367 95,637,506
11,713,686 11,708,802
327,610 341,080
6,654,356 6,691,738
1,738,683 3,549,464
368,608,373 348,366,623
13,328,393 23,459,579
6,415,312 6,650,987
474,387 1,150,340
279,380,266 249,075,190
936,423 1,377,015
2,834,823 3,189,754
212,285 272,606
804,607 856,964
5,451,286 5,416,390
309,837,782 291,448,825
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MBERMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

47. BEBERKNEIS®E  47. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)
gk (8&)

() EEAEER (8) (a) Balance sheet (continued)
w12 431 H As at 31 December 2021 2020
AT ARTIT
HK$°000 HK$000
=% EQUITY
AEA Share capital 3,144,517 3,144,517
& Reserves 46,311,184 44,458,391
BRI AN E e e E A4 EE Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 49,455,701 47,602,908
HINEART R Additional equity instruments 9,314,890 9,314,890
&N Total equity 58,770,591 56,917,798
AR EREEE Total liabilities and equity 368,608,373 348,366,623
KEEFEE 2022 4 3 Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2022 and signed on behalf of the Board
H 24 H stz A 2L by:
TALREES
BRATEH Chan Sai Ming 285 Liu Jun
#HE Director #HE Director
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(b) Statement of changes in equity

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Premises

Actuarial losses on defined
benefit plan

Financial instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income

Distribution payment for
additional equity
instruments

Transfer from/(to) retained
eamings

At 31 December 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

47. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

s
Reserves

AR

s AH A2

I G

FREE Reserve for

HYNEATH G fair value

[(AZN Additional Premises through other  BZEfEf* R BAFEF

Share equity revaluation comprehensive  Regulatory  Translation Retained 4t
capital _instruments reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,144,517 9,314,890 6,118,943 163,280 1,464,230 (12,144) 33,926,189 54,119,905
- - - - - - 3,098,039 3,098,039
- - (151,235) - - - - (151,235)
- - - - - - (18,136) (18,136)
- - - 334,309 - - - 334,309
- - - 54 - - - 54
- - (151,235) 334,363 - - 3,079,903 3,263,031
- (465,138) - - - - - (465,138)
- 465,138 - - (480,675) - 15,537 -
3,144,517 9,314,890 5,967,708 497,643 983,555 (12,144) 37,021,629 56,917,798
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FUER BRI Rl AR
BER
ARES R AR A
EREZESRTR
BRREEE

Exillies bl
XABINRATRRE

R EEEET

72021512831 H

* BRETEKERHURELE S
SR B B R A B
HRAT R EbE 2 A (ERER
LA T TR )

4P

Y

At 1 January 2021

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises

Actuarial gains on defined

benefit plan
Financial instruments at
fair value through
other comprehensive
income
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income

Distribution payment for
additional equity
instruments

Transfer from retained
eamings

At 31 December 2021

HEER
EEE I
ERiEN-4

(b) Statement of changes in equity (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

47. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

i
Reserves

AfefE

bRt AH MR

fiailliesl- i

BE Reserve for

BNEATIR — EARHE fair value

EA&  Additional Premises  through other  BXEFfEf* oAt BEEA

Share equity revaluation comprehensive Regulatory Translation Retained et
capital instruments reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
b BT b oo BT b oo BT T T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
3,144,517 9,314,890 5,967,708 497,643 983,555 (12,144) 37,021,629 56,917,798
- - - - - - 2,428,012 2,428,012
- - 49,009 - - - - 49,009
- - - - - - 3,282 3,282
- - - (160,768) - - - (160,768)
- - - (5) - - - ()
- - 49,009 (160,773) - - 2,431,294 2,319,530
- (466,737) - - - - - (466,737)
- 466,737 - - 110,196 - (576,933) -
3,144,517 9,314,890 6,016,717 336,870 1,093,751 (12,144) 38,875,990 58,770,591
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or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised.

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. ERAEIEREANE] 48. Ultimate holding company
K [ o B (S A T The Group is indirectly controlled by China Cinda, which is a state-owned financial
H> i EEZEEETEA enterprise established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) by the Ministry of
B LA R BGE (7 I B Finance (the “MOF”) and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
o) P E A REME Hong Kong Limited (“‘Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

("B DRRIIATEA
3% Hp (IR B R &
LHATARNE (T & &R
) EHR S -

49. BIBERZE 49. Approval of financial statements
KT 2022 £ 3 H The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
24 HEEF G RZHE on 24 March 2022.
i o
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

Loans for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and

financial

- Property development
- Property investment

- Financial concerns

- Stockbrokers

- Wholesale and retail trade

- Manufacturing

- Transport and transport
equipment

- Recreational activities

- Information technology

- Others

Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of

flats in Home
Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector
Participation Scheme

and Tenants Purchase

Scheme

- Loans for purchase of
other residential
properties

- Credit card advances

- Others

Total loans for use in Hong

Kong

Trade finance
Loans for use outside Hong

Kong

Gross advances to

customers

1. Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is based on the
categories with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of loans and
advances.

2021
I mE S BAE_R
ZEAE  KENE g1 v _ B
ZEFSRGE % Covered BUBAE BRAERER BRAERER
Gross by collateral Classified Impairment Impairment
advances to or other or HEH allowances- allowances-
customers security impaired Overdue Stage 3 Stage 1and 2
BT BBt  A%TT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
20,727,202 26.83% 326,866 - 197,731 93,336
17,946,060 86.68% 7,646 11,770 - 26,595
18,567,077 7.67% 18,129 18,129 - 46,876
762,051 93.44% - - - 15
5,375,232 80.86% 238,878 18,919 54,880 24,305
5,135,067 30.32% - 55 - 26,169
2,596,818 8.53% - - - 19,106
2,201,987 99.96% - - - 2,619
544,804 3.19% - - - 6,181
19,994,809 62.24% 8,423 66,655 4,119 66,505
235,296 99.97% 1 1,279 - 72
11,309,719 99.97% 1,374 61,280 - 5,432
402 0.00% - - - -
23,427,788 94.82% 6,837 200,337 692 27,311
128,824,312 60.39% 608,154 378,424 257,422 344,522
9,050,383 22.87% 17,884 25,066 18,044 23,194
157,688,166 34.21% 3,803,053 2,370,628 2,256,575 1,113,259
295,562,861 45.27% 4,429,091 2,774,118 2,532,041 1,480,975
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

M BER (8

1. BTESEZZ PSR 1. Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
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2020
N o e
AL S ) FEEE
ZHErts FiE E=PEEEZ DERIER =
&P B % Covered ECRE B Impairment
Gross by collateral Classified Impairment allowances-
advances to or other or HIHA allowances- Stage 1 and
customers security impaired Overdue Stage 3 2
BT BT BT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Property development 18,498,578 24.14% - - - 118,544
- Property investment 18,524,246 82.80% - 3544 - 53,351
- Financial concerns 17,971,842 8.05% - 18,168 - 36,012
- Stockbrokers 373,590 100.00% - - - 40
- Wholesale and retail trade 10,247,604 60.76% 248,681 1,523,638 88,849 62,450
- Manufacturing 6,350,174 29.62% 135,339 141,356 108,271 57,495
- Transport and transport
equipment 5,167,258 10.96% - - - 17,959
- Recreational activities 2,008 40.93% - - - 3
- Information technology 597,882 6.26% - - - 11,249
- Others 19,513,670 59.30% - 3,124 - 62,007
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home
Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector
Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 235,082 99.88% 95 1,258 - 84
- Loans for purchase of
other residential
properties 11,218,032 99.75% 1,457 48,360 - 7,831
- Credit card advances 487 0.00% - - - 58
- Others 21,851,449 93.19% 948 149,907 812 27,440
Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 130,551,902 56.45% 386,520 1,889,355 197,932 454,523
Trade finance 7,777,808 24.82% 317,606 317,606 137,727 25,256
Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 141,392,861 42.80% 1,688,656 1,528,925 1,366,803 845,559
Gross advances to
customers 279,722,571 48.67% 2,392,782 3,735,886 1,702,462 1,325,338

year presentation.
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1. BTESEZZ PSR 1. Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

W %@

AW b (TR B A 1
BN E S R &4l impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

T
TR 2 HK
TRl
- Yk
- WA
- ERsE
- R EEX
- g MR
- RIS
- HARHL
- Hfh
fEA
- WEEEHHEE - AR
MR AL
EEtEE T 2 EK
- BEHEMEEYE S
- [ERFEK
- Hfil
T HE (2 B KA
B RE
TEEHELISMEF 2 Bk
TP B R

Y BECEAFERY > WotbReHOEY -

J The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement, and classified or

2021 2020
e T E
S RAEERK iz TAEEK
Classified or B B Classified or
~ New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
T BT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and financial
- Property development 221,116 - 60,511 -
- Property investment 9,702 - 36,156 640
- Financial concerns 29,446 - 28,732 -
- Stockbrokers 15 - 40 -
- Wholesale and retail trade 49,603 - 122,773 -
- Manufacturing 20,588 751 126,100 1,179
- Transport and transport equipment 13,931 - 8,458 -
- Recreational activities 2,616 - - -
- Information technology 6,157 - 5,462 -
- Others 47,160 520 26,989 -
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of flats in
Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 19 _ 54 _
- Loans for purchase of other
residential properties 1,747 - 5,484 -
- Credit card advances 445 - 21 -
- Others 17,088 1,854 18,838 211
Total loans for use in Hong Kong 419,633 3,125 439,618 2,030
Trade finance 27,021 10,293 154,780 -
Loans for use outside Hong Kong 2,120,930 664,641 1,090,457 1,137,495
Gross advances to customers 2,567,584 678,059 1,684,855 1,139,525
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i BER (&)
2. REMMEESEREKE 2. Liquidity Coverage Ratio and Net Stable Funding Ratio
FREESER
2021 FEEERSE
2021 quarter ended
125 31H 9H30H 6 H30H 3H31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
TR EN M E AR Average value of
M liquidity
coverage ratio 153.44% 144.97% 151.97% 164.15%
2020 FRELHEEE
2020 quarter ended
12H 31H 9H30H 6 H30H 3H31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
TR BN E LR Average value of
HME liquidity
coverage ratio 149.77% 162.49% 150.00% 151.34%
MENEEE RN The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean
SEHEBERNZE of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
Ry T AE B 4% calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.
GERFHREIEEE
LAY BT 3T 8
KA R R B MR
ZeERHFERIINA
WEtEFERER
B -
2021 2020
FEEEESER Net stable funding ratio
FTARFREAERILR Quarter end value of net stable funding ratio
=i 3 - First quarter 117.19% 118.55%
- BT - Second quarter 116.92% 120.00%
- BT - Third quarter 113.75% 117.31%
- BIUFRE - Fourth quarter 117.15% 117.92%
HBFERIFBEESR Quarter end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation
IlERERENFREE methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of stable funding position.
Bk 2 &8 /B#H

RN E TR
femEt e -

TN LR RS The liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio are computed on the consolidated
BEESHERELILE basis which comprises the positions of the Bank and the subsidiaries specified by the
EEWE - WEE HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

CERATSE Ottt ) R
HI) BASRTREE
JHEE Z W A =4
% e
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3. FESRTHIPIME bk i
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3. Non-bank Mainland exposures

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank and its banking subsidiaries.

2021
BEAH BEAR
SEE R FHMY
PEIEE EREEE bR
ltemsin  On-balance Off-balance  #EEfG&E
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
AT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 76,862,236 5,207,415 82,069,651
Local governments, local government-
owned entities and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures 2 37,818,306 9,693,012 47,511,318
PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 92,524,855 36,275,622 128,800,477
Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above 4 5,554,592 1,334,238 6,888,830
Other entities of local governments
not reported in item 2 above 5 400,068 . 400,068
PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 24,351,557 1,606,667 25,958,224
Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures 7 5,444,648 526,028 5,970,676
Total 8 242,956,262 54,642,982 297,599,244
Total assets after provision 9 546,933,922
On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 10 44.42%
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3. JESRTTHItERERIE 3. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

(%)
2020
HiEAHA EEAR
BB FNH FHMY
WREE el JE R
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance LA PR ARIE
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BT AT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PRE - FREURS AR Central government, central
Wi~ HfE AT NEE government-owned entities and their
3 subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 71,507,159 4,859,009 76,366,168
OB ~ #O5EURFARY  Local governments, local government-
i - HiNEB AT NEE owned entities and their subsidiaries
3% and joint ventures 2 30,462,692 6,444,682 36,907,374
T EEEANEREEMEE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
AEEHIRRA ~ TR A or other entities incorporated in
" NGERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 88,638,803 23,597,802 112,236,605
FHIEE FilS—IEF 0 Other entities of central government
R EAt % not reported in item 1 above 4 3,199,293 230,593 3,429,886
REFEFE s I8 /58 Other entities of local governments
JF PN ELA S not reported in item 2 above 5 764,218 i} 764,218
RS NE REEEESNTE - PRC nationals residing outside
fRItERS - EHNERN Mainland or entities incorporated
E8 outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 26,675,971 1,280,597 27,956,568
Hith 32 S FmEEE&EYE  Other counterparties where the
B B ESRATAY S b exposures are considered to be
A non-bank Mainland exposures 7 5,994,587 449258 6,443,845
HEET Total 8 227,242,723 36,861,941 264,104,664
HIRCE G e RV E AL Total assets after provision 9 517,103,055
BEABENGEKXYE On-balance sheet exposures as
(EEELEHE St percentage of total assets 10 43.95%

* BECEAFERY > WotbReHOEY -
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4. Risk management

The Overview

The principal types of risk inherent in the Group’s businesses are credit risk, interest rate risk,
market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, strategic
risk, technology risk, conduct risk and climate risk. The Group’s risk management objective
is to enhance shareholder value by maintaining risk exposures within acceptable levels.

Risk Management Structure

The Bank’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) holds the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s
overall risk management. It establishes a sound risk culture and determines the risk
management strategies and the risk management structure.

To achieve the Group’s goals in risk management, the Board sets up the Risk Management
Committee, which comprises of Independent Non-executive Directors, to oversee the
Group’s various types of risks, review and approve the high-level risk management policies.
Also, Credit Approval Committee is set up under the Risk Management Committee to review
or approve credit applications and credit management related matters exceeding the Chief
Executive’s authority or as required by the policy and monitoring the credit activities of the
Group.

Credit Approval Specialized Committee set up by the Chief Executive is responsible for
approving credit business within the authorisation, Also, according to the risk management
strategies established by the Board, risk management policies and controls are devised and
reviewed regularly by relevant departments and respective management committees set up
by the Chief Executive.

The risk management units develop policies and procedures for identifying, measuring,
evaluating, monitoring, reporting and controlling credit risk, market risk, operational risk,
reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, strategic risk,
technology risk, conduct risk and climate risk; set appropriate risk limits; and continually
monitor risks.

The Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management policies and controls to ensure that the Group is operating according to the

established policies, procedures and limits.
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4. Risk management (continued)
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Risk Management Structure (continued)

Independence is crucial to effective risk management. To ensure the independence of risk
management units and Audit Department, risk management units and Chief Risk Officer
report directly to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit Department reports directly
to the Audit Committee respectively. Both committees are specialised committees set up by
the Board and all members are directors of the Bank.

(i) Credit risk management
Details of credit risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(i) Liquidity risk management
Details of liquidity risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(iii) Market risk management
Details of market risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(iv) Interest rate risk management
Details of interest rate risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(v) Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and system, or from external events. The risk is inherent in every aspect of business
operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to-day operational activities.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(v) Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has implemented the “Three Lines of Defence” for its operational risk
management. All departments or functional units as the first line of defence are the first
parties responsible for operational risk management, and carry out the duties and functions
of self-risk control in the process of business operation through self-assessment and self-
enhancement. The Operational Risk, Legal and Compliance Division together with certain
specialist functional units in relation to operational risk management within the Group,
including the Human Resources Department, Technology Risk Management Division,
Administration Division, Finance Department (collectively known as “specialist functional
units”), are the second line of defence. They are responsible for assessing and monitoring
the operational risk conditions in the first line of defence, and providing them with guidance.
Specialist functional units are required to carry out their managerial duties of the second line
of defence with respect to some specific aspects of operational risk and its related issues.
Besides taking charge of operational risk management in their own units, these units are also
required to provide other units with professional advice/training in respect of certain
operational risk categories and to lead the Group-wide operational risk management. Audit
Department is the third line of defence which provides independent assessment to the
effectiveness and adequacy of the operational risk management framework and is required
to conduct periodic audit of the operational risk management activities of various departments
or functional units within the Group regarding their compliance and effectiveness and to put
forward recommendations for remedial actions.

The Group adheres to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of duties and
authorisation. The Group adopts various operational risk management tools or
methodologies such as key risk indicators, self-assessment, operational risk events reporting
and review to identify, assess, monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities
and products, as well as purchase of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable operational risks.

Business continuity plans are established to support business operations in the event of an
emergency or disaster. Adequate backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are
conducted.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(vi) Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business practices,
whether genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the customer base, or lead to costly
litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is inherent in other types of risk and every
aspect of business operation and covers a wide spectrum of issues.

In order to mitigate reputation risk, the Group has formulated and duly followed its Reputation
Risk Management Policy. The policy aims to identify and prevent reputation risk proactively
at an early stage when an incident occurs. Since reputation risk is often caused by various
types of operational and strategic issues that negatively impact the trust and perception of
the Group, all operational and key risks identified are assessed through the established Key
Control Self-Assessment framework, including risk assessment tools, to evaluate the severity
of their impact on the Group, including the damage to reputation.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to continuously monitor
reputation risk incidents in the financial industry. This continuous monitoring enables the
Group to effectively manage, control and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an
incident. The Group also adopts robust disclosure practices to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps build confidence in the Group and establish a strong public
image.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(vii) Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may
disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial conditions of the Group.
Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in
reputation the Group may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws
and regulations. Legal and compliance risks are managed by the Operational Risk, Legal
and Compliance Division. All legal matters are handled by the Operational Risk, Legal and
Compliance Division. As part of the Group’s corporate governance framework, the policy for
the management of legal and compliance risk is approved by the Risk Management
Committee as delegated by the Board.

(viii)Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause negative impacts on the earnings,
capital, reputation and market position of the Group due to the improper process of strategy
formulation, implementation and adjustment when the Group implements various strategies,
including macro strategies and policies, and formulates various specific plans, programs
and systems for the implementation of strategies and policies. The Board reviews and
approves the strategic risk management policy. Key strategic issues have to be fully
evaluated and properly endorsed by the Senior Management and the Board.

(ix) Technology risk management

Technology risk refers to the risk of direct or indirect losses to the Group caused by improper
or inaccurate controls over Information Technology (IT), which encompasses automated
means of originating, processing, storing and transferring information, and covers recording
devices, communication networks, computer systems (including hardware and software
components and data) and other electronic devices. Information technology risks are
managed by the Technical Risk Management Division. As part of the Group’s corporate
governance framework, the policy of technology risk management is approved by the Risk
Management Committee as delegated by the Board.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(x) Conduct risk management

Conduct risk refers to the risk of customer complaints or losses, warnings or penalty issued
by regulatory bodies to the Group caused by staff non-compliance, improper selling of
financial products, violation of integrity principles or corporate values, violation of code and
other conduct issues. Conduct risk is managed by Human Resources Department and
quarterly reported to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as delegated by the
Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest market situation
and developments.

(xi) Climate risk
Climate risks refer to the risks posed by climate change, such as damage caused by extreme

weather events or a decline in asset value in carbon-intensive sectors. They are broadly
classified into physical risk and transition risk.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review

Major economies have experienced various waves of COVID variants over 2021 and
corresponding lockdown measures significantly lowered down labor mobility and industrial
productivities, hence disrupting the supply chain and pushing up inflation worldwide, which
continuously dragged global economy’s recovery pace.

Under such circumstances, the Group has been sailing in the headwind from gloomy
macroeconomic environment and banking industry. Regarding Mainland China market, the
economy has experienced structural changes, especially in real estate, throughout the year.
These policies have caused a short-term suppression on consumption and investment
growth. China-US tensions have brought uncertainty to export growth. Regarding Hong
Kong SAR market, certain industries, such as food & beverage, accommodation services,
retail, and tourism, have been heavily hit by tightening prevention measures. Border
reopening between Hong Kong and Mainland China has been suspended, which affected
regular cross-border travel and business communication, leaving more conservative
investment appetite. Regarding financial market, global interest rates remained relatively
low throughout 2021. Net interest margin (NIM) has dropped significantly over the year.
Banking industry as a whole is facing challenges over profitability and asset quality.

Encountered above mentioned unfavourable situation, the Group has paid close attention
to market volatility and further enhanced risk management, and actively expanded customer
base and enhanced synergy with Cinda Group. Core deposit and lending grew steadily in
2021, and strategic business growth rapidly.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review(continued)

Financial Review

As at the end of December 2021, total assets of the Group amounted to HK$536,331 million,
increased by 6.06% year-on-year. Deposits from customers and gross advances to
customers achieved HK$383,781million and HK$295,563 million, respectively up 9.14%
and up 5.66% year-on-year. As at the end of December 2021, the classified or impaired loan
ratio of the Group stood at 1.50% .

As at the end of December 2021, the Group recorded HK$3,750 million of operating profit.
Facing the continuous fall of market interest rate, the interest spread narrowed, the Group
committed to improve the asset structure.Net interest income of HK$6,325 million is at
similar level compared to last year and non-interest income of HK$2,264 million. Profit after
tax was HK$3,231 million, down 15.31% year-on-year. Return on average equity was 4.99%
while return on average assets was 0.62%. Net interest margin (NIM) was 1.33%.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Business Review
Personal banking

As at the end of December 2021, net operating income before impairment allowances in
Personal Banking amounted to HK$1,599 million, decreased by 10.44% year-on-year.
During the year, with a client-centric approach, the Group established a new retail business
development model to actively expanded core customer base, and continuously optimized
featured cross-border products. The Group has successfully strived for becoming one of the
first designated banks for “Cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect Scheme”, actively
facilitating the connection of capital market between Mainland and Hong Kong to provide
convenient cross-boundary wealth management for customers. Building a cross-boundary
financial ecosystem with a focus on core customer groups, the Group created products such
as Cross Border Salary Remittance(#%3[%), The Mainland Property Refinancing Service(
BN HY2E R &R #5), The Mainland Talents and Professionals Personal Loan (A, A 4 F4
NEEKETHE]), and property purchasing services for Hong Kong residents in the Greater Bay
Area. NCB Mall has been upgraded. As a result, the bank was the first bank in Hong Kong
to provide cross-boundary RMB remittance services for Hong Kong residences to purchase
residential housing in the Greater Bay Area. The Group expanded its business scope to
insurance brokerage by establishing NCB Wealth Management Advisor Ltd, further enriched
customer choice.

While facing headwinds from pandemic lockdown and downturns in capital market, the
Group successfully boosted the increase of core customers by more than 50% year-on-year
which is a satisfactory growth. Recognized by the market and peers on the cross-border
business achievements, the Group was awarded “Excellence in Greater Bay Area Financial
Brand Value” in Mingpao Awards for Excellence in Finance and Takungpao’s “Best Cross-
boundary Financial Management Award in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area” etc.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Corporate banking

As at the end of December 2021, corporate loans and advances amounted to HK$232,315
million, up 4.71% year-on-year. During the year, the loan and deposit spread narrowed as
market interest rate continued to fall, net interest income in Corporate Banking reached
HK$4,425 million, and net operating income before impairment allowances in Corporate
Banking amounted to HK$4,952 million, down 13.62% year-on-year. During the year, the
Group strived to overcome difficulties, such as the low interest rate environment and risk
accumulation caused by structural changes in particular industries, to deploy resources to
deepen cross-boundary businesses. Focusing the cross-border needs of corporate
customers and enhance the professional competence in cross-boundary finance, the Group
created featured products such as mainland loans with Hong Kong guarantees, cross-
border direct loan and listed company dividend loans. With the synergy of Cinda Group and
efficiency within the Group, development of corporate businesses in the Greater Bay Area
are expected to strengthen. Meanwhile, the Group has actively implemented the strategy of
investment and commercial banks through optimizing customer segmentation collaborating
with FinTech companies on supply chain financing business as a pilot business model. In
response to initiation by the government and social responsibilities, the Group continued to
provide relief measures to clients during the pandemic. For example, the Group affiliated
with the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited (HKMCI) SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme (SFGS), which is suitable for 80%, 90% guaranteed products and "100%
Guaranteed Preferential Loans", and fully supported the HKMA's Pre-approved Principal
Repayment Scheme (PPPHS), which has been launched for a total of four rounds.

289



) NCB #1:§ 7% s 4

REBZLZ
M BER (8

5. RBERE (§)

B (&)

MEEE

BE 2021 12 HE » M&
SRR E 2 (R AT 2 0 4L
BULA Ryl 18.94 {FoT >
HEAE T 96.23% - £/ - H
BB R ISR TR
ZRERGEE - FEEAE
B RR G S EER S
TEE T SETEHA - FH5
REHEHEEH AH K
B BAREWTREY L T
T EREL ST b —
b HEHV RSN RE L
TEMIFER RS B - T E
FHEERY - cEVHE
S & o MR AES - i
FREATEEY  (&#%
THREE R - JNEX SR
FRIHTE - [\l - KITHERA
RS - FrEAIRT (B A
RS IIREE RN - AR
HREFE L - NRIEE
K PSS R R i T
TEEE -

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Treasury

As at the end of December 2021, net operating income before impairment allowances
generated by Treasury amounted to HK$1,894 million, increased 96.23% year-on-year.
During the year, facing the worst performance of the Hong Kong stock market in the world,
which dragged down the investment sentiment and the shrinking clients’ demand for
investment and wealth management, and other stresses, the Group proactively made
predictions on the market. The dynamic management of the bond investment portfolio was
effective, and the bond investment income increased steadily. Promoted the diversification
and integration of treasury products, launched foreign exchange option products on behalf
of clients, time deposits pre-settlement forwards, bond trading in secondary market and
other businesses, and improved the treasury product system. Improved client visits, actively
developed capital market business, and rapidly increased customer stickness by issuance
business, and the foreign exchange transaction volume also reached a new high. At the
same time, the Group vigorously promoted RMB business, and continued to innovate and
optimize products such as RMB option-linked deposits and RMB-linked investment
products, resulting in significant increases in RMB deposits, exchange transaction volume
and income.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Mainland Business

NCB (China) actively strengthen business development and product innovation, and
accelerates technical enablement and intelligent operations. NCB (China) practices the
concept of "financial services for the real economy”, and creates a new corporate account
opening process through digital means to effectively improve the efficiency of corporate
account opening. Based on the practical foundation and specialty advantages of local
economic development, NCB (China) has implemented the letter of guarantee credit
enhancement business for real enterprises, vigorously supported the development of real
industries, and promoted the regionalization of the strategy of inclusive financing. It was
awarded the "Good News of Financial Inclusion" award by the China Banking Association.
Fully taking integration advantages between inside and outside China, NCB (China) steadily
promoted the development of various businesses, and strengthened the implementation of
full-caliber external debt, bond issuance with standby letter of credit and other businesses.
The market share of remitment of The Northbound Scheme in Cross-boundary Wealth
Management Connect Scheme ranks at the top among banks in Shenzhen. Moreover, NCB
(China) has set up the sub-branch in Zhuhai, and further leveraged the synergy with the
parent bank in Greater Bay Area.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Risk management

With strengthening risk management and control, the Group proactively prevented from
major market risks, and actively disposed risks associated to legacy issues. Continuously
optimized credit structure, reduced the exposure over real estate projects. The Group exited
large real estate projects with high risk, and put more efforts on loan review and collection of
projects in default risk, to ensure asset quality.

Fully fulfii compliance requirements, strictly follow regulatory requirements and the
deployment of China Cinda's Group, the Group implement requirements including corporate
governance, normalized management and control of related-party transactions, strengthen
authorization management, and improve anti-money laundering mechanisms, and perform
their respective functions in the three lines of defense to ensure compliance operations;
actively improve the level of compliance management, comprehensively review various
compliance systems of the whole bank; coordinate with the strategic adjustment of target
customers, optimize anti-money laundering policies and suspicious transaction monitoring
capabilities, and continuously consolidate the foundation for risk management such as
compliance and anti-money laundering.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Outlook

Looking forward to 2022, the spread of new virus variants will slow down global economic
recovery, reflecting a moderate growth momentum.

For mainland China, the authority has been adopting loose monetary policies and
expansionary fiscal policies. The mainland economy is expected to experience a relatively
slow recovery in the first half of 2022 before recovery speeding up in the second half of the
year. On real estate front, the authority mitigated risks through regulatory policies guiding
the industry to digest internal risks through project mergers and acquisitions, limiting
spillover risks due to regulatory policies and lowering impact to the economy. Outside
mainland China, US Federal Reserve will end its bond purchase plan around the end of first
quarter and is expected to raise interest rate three times in 2022. Despite facing pandemic
headwinds, the US may accelerate monetary tightening given that US labour market
continue to improve steadily and inflation rate continue to hover at high level.

The Group will continue to promote strategic transformation, build a sustainable
development model, and strengthen comprehensive risk management to amid market
changes and intensified industry competition. The Group will continue to grasp development
opportunities brought by further integrating into the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area, and will also allocate more of its resources to establish a professional bank that
combines cross-border and investment and commercial banks. By employing our
differentiated, regional and digital business strategies, the Group will effectively leverage on
the synergy to strengthen our profile as a brand of cross-border bank.
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RS Appendix
RERFTZ I EAE] Subsidiaries of the Bank
AERATHIB A TR E RS WA]  The particulars of our subsidiaries are as follows:
T
R V=
g R B HEA  ERTRA mEms  TEE
TR Place and date of incorporation/ Registered capital/ Interest Principal
Name operation issued share capital held activities
FAEREEHYT (R AIRAFE P FEEA 100% TS
2007 £ 12 H 14 H A 9,500,000,000 jT
Nanyang Commercial Bank The People’s Republic of China Registered capital Banking
(China), Limited 14 December 2007 RMB9,500,000,000 business
FEREIRTEARAE s begiilid 100% SatiR%
1976 210 H 22 H &% 3,000,000 7T
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong Ordinary shares Trustee
Trustee Limited 22 October 1976 HK$3,000,000 services
ER A E AR AT HiH Eepiilis 100% ERH
1984 F5 H 25 H 7% 3,050,000 ¢
Kwong Li Nam Investment Agency Hong Kong Ordinary shares Investment
Limited 25 May 1984 HK$3,050,000 agency
FEREEIRTT (RELAN) ARAE | &4 bzl 100% AHEA RS
198048 A 22 H & 50,000 JT
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong Ordinary shares Nominee
(Nominees) Limited 22 August 1980 HK$50,000 services
FRE & B AR A T HH Eepiilis 100% IRk atac &
NCB Wealth Management Advisor 2004 4£9 H 13 H ’%m 22,000,000 7t |
Limited* Hong Kong Ordinary shares
13 September 2004 HK$22,000,000 Insurance
Broker &
Consultancy

TN T Ry 2021 SR -

*This subsidiary was newly acquired in 2021.
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Definitions

In this Financial Statements, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

Terms

Meanings

“ALCO”

the Asset and Liability Management Committee

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

the Board of Directors of the Bank

“BOCI-Prudential Manager”

BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of Hong Kong, in which held by BOCI Asset Management Limited and Prudential
Corporation Holdings Limited.

“BOCI-Prudential Trustee”

BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong, in which held by BOC Group Trustee Company Limited Prudential Corporation
Holdings Limited.

“CET?1”

Common Equity Tier 1

“China Cinda”

China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd., a wholly state-owned financial enterprise
established in the PRC

“Cinda Hong Kong”

China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited

“Cinda Financial Holdings”

Cinda Financial Holdings Co., Limited

“CVA” Credit Valuation Adjustment
“‘DVA” Debit Valuation Adjustment
‘EV” Economic Value Sensitivity Ratio
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Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings

“FIRB” Foundation Internal Ratings-based

“HKAS(s)" Hong Kong Accounting Standard(s)

“HKFRS(s)’ Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard(s)
“HKICPA” Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
“HK(IFRIC)-Int” Hong Kong (IFRIC) Interpretation

“HKMA” Hong Kong Monetary Authority

“HK(SIC)-Int” Hong Kong (SIC) Interpretation

“Hong Kong” or “Hong Kong SAR”

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

“ICAAP” Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards
“IMM” Internal Models

“IRB” Internal Ratings-based

“LCR” Liquidity Coverage Ratio

“MPF” Mandatory Provident Fund

“MPF Schemes Ordinance”

the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, as amended

“Mainland” or “Mainland of China”

the mainland of the PRC

“NCB (China)’

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank

298




) NCB #1:§ 7% 644

Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings

“ORSO schemes” the Occupational Retirement Schemes under Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the Laws of Hong Kong

“‘OTC” Over-the-counter

“‘PRC” the People’s Republic of China

“PVBP” Price Value of a Basis Point

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

“SEC-SA” Securitization Standardised Approach
“STC” Standardised (Credit Risk)

“STM” Standardised (Market Risk)

“STO” Standardised (Operational Risk)

“Stock Exchange” or “Hong Kong
Exchange”

Stock

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“the Bank” Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cinda Financial Holdings

“the Group” the Bank and its subsidiaries collectively referred as the Group

“‘us” the United States of America

“VAR” Value at Risk
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